
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

 

    

  

 

                                                                                                                                                                                          
 

AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

Regular Board Meeting 

 Tuesday, September 13, 2016 

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 
   9:00 AM Call to Order  

   Approval of Minutes 

 August 30, 2016 Board Meeting 

 

   Review Agenda 

 

Consent Agenda  

       

Auditor 

a. Surplus of Personal Property  

Commissioners 

b. Payment Authorization for Peer Review Meeting of Mental Health Wing Addition @ the Jail  

c. A Time of Remembrance Proclamation  

Facilities 

d. Bid Award to M.G. Wagner Co. Inc. for Roof Replacement Project  

Fairgrounds  

e. Amended Contract #1 w/CKJT Architects for Engineering Services; Amending Res 2016-539 

f. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0124-101, Dept. 000 

Human Services 

g. Amended Agreement #3 w/Children’s Developmental Center for Disabilities Services  

h. Amended Agreement #3 w/Columbia Industries for Disabilities Services  

i. Amended Agreement #3 w/The Arc of Tri-Cities for Disabilities Services  

j. Amended Agreement #4 w/BF Community Action Committee for Emergency Solutions 

Grant Services  

k. Amended Agreement #2 w/Sharon Adolphsen for Parent Coalition Services  

l. Amended Agreement #3 w/Goodwill Industries of the Columbia  

m. Veterans Assistance Fund Policies & Procedures; Rescinding Resolution 07 002 

n. Amended Agreement #3 w/Service Alternatives, Inc. for Disabilities Services 

o. Amended Agreement #3 w/Ambitions Community Support Services for Disabilities Services 

p. One-Time Payment to Relias Learning LLC for eLearning Services 

Information Technologies 

q. Purchase of Four Getac Extreme Tablets & Warranties from PCS Mobile for Patrol Vehicles  

r. Purchase of Barracuda Email Security Gateway Appliances & Warranty from Leverage 

Information Systems   

Juvenile 

s. Amended Contract #2 w/Aramark Correctional Services for Food Services  

t. Truancy Contract w/Kiona-Benton School District  

u. Truancy Contract w/Richland School District  

v. Agreement w/State of WA Administrative Office of the Courts for Becca Services  

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator             

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on the highlighted area. 



Agenda - Board of County Commissioners 

September 13, 2016 

Page 2 

 

 

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190;   Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080,   Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

 

w. Guest Speaker Contract w/D Wavra for Case Management Assessment Process Training  

x. Purchase of 2014 Ford Econoline 15 Passenger Van from McCurley Integrity Dealerships  

y. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138 

Personnel 

z. Participating Agreement w/United Employees Benefit Trust for Juvenile Detention  

aa. Participating Agreement w/United Employees Benefit Trust for Courthouse Union 

Public Safety 

bb. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 106 

Public Works  

cc. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500  

dd. Continued Service Agreement w/Guardian Security Systems, Inc for Alarm System 

Monitoring 

ee. Authorization for On-Site Motor Grader Training from Roadwise, Inc. 

ff. Setting Bid Date for CE 2010 SMP – Rachel & Leslie Roads to Clover Road  

gg. Contract w/D & D Tri-Rivers Excavating, Inc for Kennewick Annex Parking Lot  

hh. Contract w/Stripe Rite, Inc. for CE 2003 SMP Pavement Marking 

ii. Salary Request Statement  

Sheriff 

jj. Solicitation of Bids for Jail Chemicals & Janitorial Supplies 

kk. Solicitation of Bids for Employee BDU Uniforms 

ll. Solicitation of Bids for Paper & Glove Supplies 

mm Solicitation of Bids for Inmate Supplies  

nn.  Solicitation of Bids for Employee Class A Uniforms  

oo. Amended Contract #1 w/Psychological Consultants, Inc. for As Needed Evaluations 

pp. MOU w/Lourdes Counseling Center Mental Health Evaluations 

qq. MOU w/US Dept. of Justice for DEA Task Force 

rr. MOU Modification #2 w/United States Marshal for Joint Law Enforcement Operations 

ss. Salary Request Statement 

Treasurer   

tt. Purchaser’s Revised Commitment Letter for CRID No. 21; Amending Res No. 2016-626 

 

Scheduled Business 

 

WTSC Agreement for Grant Funding for Traffic Safety Emphasis ~ Lt. Caughey  

 

Document Management Agreement w/CI Information Management ~ R Lukson & M Ault 

 

Use of Jail Facilities Agreement Discussion ~ Smith Kelty  

 

Unscheduled Visitors 

   Other Business   
 

   Executive Session 

 

   Discussion of a Public Employee ~ D Sparks 

     

  

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us
WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight

WEH
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 

 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

 

Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, August 30, 2016, 9:00 a.m. 

Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 

 

Present: Chairman Shon Small 

  Commissioner Jerome Delvin 

  Commissioner James Beaver 

  County Administrator David Sparks   

  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 

 

Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 

Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; County 

Engineer Matt Rasmussen; Assistant County Engineer Robert Blain; Planning Manager Mike 

Shuttleworth; DPA Ryan Brown; Clerk Josie Delvin; District Court Administrator Jacki Lahtinen; 

GIS Manager Mary Phillips; DPA Steve Hallstrom; Michelle Cooke, Planning; Bryan Thorp, Road 

Department.   

 

Approval of Minutes 

 

The Minutes of August 23, 2016 were approved.   

 

Review Agenda 

 

Two executive sessions were added to the agenda. 

 

Consent Agenda 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “m”.  

Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 

 

Auditor 

a. Management Letter to State Auditor  

Facilities 

b. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110 

c. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110 to Dept. 126 

Human Services 

d. Amended Agreement #2 w/Domestic Violence Services for Emergency Solutions Grant 

Information Technologies 
e. Purchase of Storage Area Network Units for Data Centers from Thornburg Computer 

Services 



 - 2 - 

Juvenile 

f. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 173  

Office of Public Defense  

g. Public Defense Services Agreement w/M Trombley for Juvenile Court  

Parks  

h. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 126  

Personnel 

i. Establishing an Engineering Technician I Classification Description & Salary Grade 

Public Works  
j. Award of Kennewick Annex Parking Lot Grading to D & D Tri-Rivers Excavating, Inc. 

k. Purchase of 60 Tons of HF-150 Oil from Idaho Asphalt Supply, Inc.   

l. Updated Road Department Organization Chart 

m. Purchase of Hazardous Waste Disposal Services From Clean Harbors Environmental 

Services 

 

Copier Lease Agreement – Clerk’s Office 

 

Clerk Josie Delvin presented a copier lease agreement with Ricoh for the Board’s approval.  She 

indicated the PA had declined to approve as to form and Reid Hay sent a letter explaining why. 

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the copier agreement for the Clerk’s office 

with Ricoh as presented.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

PEDA Update 

 

Deb Heintz, Prosser Mayor Randy Taylor, and Port of Benton Commissioner Jane Hagarty updated 

the Board on PEDA.  Ms. Hagarty said that PEDA had partnerships with the City, County and the 

Port and the Port used them very heavily in marketing for the Vintner’s Village in Prosser.  

 

Ms. Heintz discussed the 10-year work plan 2015-2025 and its strategic concepts including:  

residential properties and increased availability of land and infrastructure, transportation, business 

retention and recruitment, and training opportunities to strengthen economic development. 

 

Mayor Taylor said that PEDA was listening to the voice of the people and that Prosser now had a 

Shopko for local residents.  The residents were asking for better opportunities in a grocery store 

and so they would be using that information to improve the local grocery store or use it as a 

marketing tool.  They wanted to keep the customers in Prosser instead of traveling to Yakima 

County for their grocery needs.   

 

Ms. Heintz said that Prosser had $24 million in new construction this year and retail sales tax had 

a 515% increase.  She said they were asking the County to increase its funding contribution from 

$10,000 to $30,000 per year, the same contribution as the City of Prosser and Port of Benton.   

 

Chairman Small said he was in favor of looking at the request in the budget to see if could be done.   

Commissioner Delvin said he talked with Mr. Sparks about it and understood that when the County 

was having financial problems these amounts were reduced.  He said he was willing to have them 



 - 3 - 

review the request and the contract to see what they could do and would be supportive of some 

type of increase.   

 

Commissioner Beaver said there were a lot of requests out there and would have to see where this 

fit in the whole budget. 

 

Commissioner Delvin said he would defer to David Sparks and Loretta Smith Kelty to see the 

deliverables in the contract to justify the increase.   

 

Planning Department Update 

 

Mike Shuttleworth and Michelle Cooke gave a Powerpoint presentation and discussed the 

following: 

 

 Permit Activities 

 2016 Planning Department Projects 

o Comprehensive Plan Update – Open Houses 

o County Wide Planning Policies Process 

o UGA Updates – Part of 2017 Update 

o Voluntary Stewardship Program 

o Permit Application and Process Review 

 

Six-Year Road Prospectus 

 

Matt Rasmussen, along with Bryan Thorp, said the Road Department submitted to CRAB a 

preliminary prospectus for four road projects.  After final ratings and budget limits imposed by 

CRAB, two projects (Bert James Road and Hanks Road) fit the submittal requirement, however, 

only one could be approved.  The County Engineer recommended the Board select Hanks Road as 

the preferred project and approve the resolution as presented.   

 

Commissioner Delvin asked if they had talked to the landowners and Mr. Rasmussen said not yet, 

but they would talk to them about the project and how to proceed with the least amount of impact.   

 

MOTION:  Commissioner Delvin moved to approve the Resolution authorizing the County 

Engineer to sign the Final Prospectus for Rata funds through the CRAB for the Hanks Road Project 

from Crosby Road one half mile East of McDonald Road.  Commissioner Beaver seconded and 

upon vote, the motion carried.   

 

Other Business 

 

Yakima Basin Water Group 

 

Commissioner Delvin said he attended a meeting in Yakima last week for the subcommittee for 

the economics portion of the water plan and they wanted to hire an economist to do a study on the 

basin.  He said that three bids were submitted and they were proposing $10,000 each from Kittitas, 



 - 4 - 

Yakima, and Benton Counties, and $10,000 each from the irrigators and private business.  Mr. 

Sparks said he believed this type of commitment was doable since it encompassed the entire basin.  

 

Flip Flop Fridays 

 

Commissioner Delvin said that Columbia Industries sold its large grill that Benton County used 

for the Kennewick Flip Flop Friday and he needed to look into getting a large grill.  Mr. Rasmussen 

indicated he would check with Pasco Rentals.   

 

Lobbyist for Benton County  

 

Commissioner Delvin said he wanted to put on the agenda a discussion about hiring a lobbyist to 

look after issues for them.  He said he would send out an email to other elected officials and 

managers to see if they had issues for the legislative agenda and whether they needed to hire 

someone or not.   

 

Discussions on “Other Business” 

 

Commissioner Delvin suggested the Board members and other elected officials discuss big issues 

with David and Loretta prior to bringing up during “Other Business” so there was an opportunity 

to have these discussions on the agenda and other elected officials could attend as well.  He said 

he was just looking at improving the communication.  The Board agreed.   

 

Mr. Sparks said that PEDA made its request, but there were other requests to look at and they 

needed time to review these requests to they could make educated decisions.   

 

BCES 

 

Chairman Small said he attended another BCES meeting last Thursday with Ms. Smith Kelty.  

Three main things were discussed:  $1/2 million for Franklin County and Pasco would reflect a 

membership and not a buy-in; they would be responsible to help pay for upgrades and any budget 

increases (and if they could not do that, they would only be subscribers); they would be drafting 

an MOU for signature.  He said he believed the concerns they talked about were being addressed.   

 

The Board briefly recessed, reconvening at 9:59 a.m. 

 

Executive Session – Labor and Personnel Issues 

 

The Board went into executive session with DPA Steve Hallstrom and DBA Ryan Brown at 9:59 

a.m. for approximately 15 minutes to discuss labor and personnel issues.  Also present were Loretta 

Smith Kelty, David Sparks, and Cami McKenzie.  The Board came out at 10:13 a.m.  No decisions 

were made in executive session.   

  



 - 5 - 

 

Vouchers 

 

Check Date: 08/26/2016 

 

Transfers #: 08261601-08261611 

Total all funds: $669,056.60 

 

Warrant #: 144650-144766 

Total all funds: $406,538.40 

 

Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 

 

Resolutions 

 

2016-642: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110 

2016-643: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 110 to Dept. 126 

2016-644: Amended Agreement #2 w/Domestic Violence Services for Emergency Solutions 

Grant 

2016-645: Purchase of Storage Area Network Units for Data Centers from Thornburg 

Computer Services 

2016-646: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0115-101, Dept. 173  

2016-647: Public Defense Services Agreement w/M Trombley for Juvenile Court  

2016-648: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 126  

2016-649: Establishing an Engineering Technician I Classification Description & Salary 

Grade 

2016-650: Award of Kennewick Annex Parking Lot Grading to D & D Tri-Rivers Excavating, 

Inc. 

2016-651: Purchase of 60 Tons of HF-150 Oil from Idaho Asphalt Supply, Inc.   

2016-652: Updated Road Department Organization Chart 

2016-653: Purchase of Hazardous Waste Disposal Services From Clean Harbors 

Environmental Services 

2016-654: Contract with Ricoh for lease of a copier for the Clerk’s – Juvenile Office 

2016-655: Authorizing the Final Prosectus for Rata Funds for the Hanks Road Project  

 

There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 10:13 

a.m.  

 

 

_______________________________   ______________________________ 

Clerk of the Board      Chairman 

 



A. Coverdell 

 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

 

As outlined in Resolution 07-752, the Personal Property Manager requests that supply 

and equipment items be declared surplus and be disposed of. 

 

 

SUMMARY  

The Personal Property Manager has determined that the personal property on the attached 

exhibit can be declared surplus and disposed of accordingly. These are items located in 

the old engineering building located behind the County Courthouse. This building has been 

used as storage and the listed items are excess and of no value to the owning departments 

or any other departments and are of questionable condition not suitable for release to the 

public. 

 
  

AGENDA/WORKSHOP ITEM TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED         

Meeting Date: September 13, 2016 Execute Contract      Consent Agenda x    

Subject: 

Declaration of Surplus 

Property  Pass Resolution  x   Public Hearing     

   Pass Ordinance      1st Discussion     

By: A. Coverdell Pass Motion      2nd Discussion     

Reviewed By: V. Pettey / B. Chilton Other      Other      

                    

WEH
Text Box
a. Surplus of Personal Property



A. Coverdell 

RESOLUTION 
 

 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY POLICY, RE: SURPLUS OF PERSONAL PROPERTY IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH RESOLUTION 07-752 
 
 
WHEREAS, The Benton County Auditor is the Personal Property Manager and maintains an updated 
inventory listing of County Personal Property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Personal Property Manager has identified items located within the Old Engineering 
Building located behind the Courthouse which have become obsolete; and, 
 
WHEREAS, it is the recommendation of the Personal Property Manager that the listed property be 
declared surplus; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board finds it to be in the best interest of the citizens of Benton County to surplus 
antiquated and obsolete property; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, that based on the recommendation of the Personal Property Manager the listed 
property in Attachment A is hereby determined to be surplus. The listed items are excess equipment 
and of no value to the owning departments or any other departments and are of questionable condition 
not suitable for release to the public. The items will be disposed of as waste or recycled depending on 
final condition assessment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this _________day of _____________________, 2016. 
 
       

_______________________________________ 
      Chairman of the Board 
 

_______________________________________ 
      Member 
 

_______________________________________ 
      Member  

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners of 
Benton County, Washington  

 
Attest: ___________________________ 

Clerk of the Board    
 

  

  



A. Coverdell 

ATTACHMENT A 

 

Multiple file cabinets (planning dept) 
 
Minolta DR2800 microfilming camera (tag 00561) 
 
Unknown equipment (tag 02318) 
 
Unknown equipment (tag 02328) 
 
Multiple metal shelving units 
 
Multiple wood shelving units 
 
Multiple tables, desks, chairs 
 
 
HP fax machine (tag 15622) 
 
Unknown equipment (tag 11521) 



RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING PAYMENT OF LUNCH FOR THE PEER 
REVIEW MEETING OF MENTAL HEALTH WING ADDITION AT THE BENTON 
COUNTY JAIL 
 
WHEREAS, on August 24, 2016 a three member team from Snohomish County traveled to the 
Kennewick Justice Center for a peer review of the purposed Mental Health Addition at the 
Benton County Jail; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Snohomish County Team agreed to participate in the peer review if lunch was 
provided; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County Administrator authorized the Public Service Administrator to pay for 
the lunch of the Snohomish County Team in the amount of $52.39 including W.S.S.T; NOW 
THEREFORE, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington 
concurs with the County Administrator and herby authorizes the payment of $52.39 including 
W.S.S.T. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this                day of                         , 2016. 
  

______________________________________ 
 Chairman of the Board 
  
                                  ______________________________________ 
 Chairman ProTem 

  
 ______________________________________  
 Member 
  
                                                                                         Constituting the Board of Commissioners  
                                                                                                          of Benton County, Washington 
 
Attest _________________________________ 
                     Clerk of the Board 

cc: Auditor, Commissioners   P. Schut 

WEH
Text Box
b. Payment Authorization for Peer Review Meeting of Mental Health Wing Addition @ the Jail



WEH
Text Box
c. A Time of Remembrance Proclamation





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 9/13/2016     

Subject: Justice Center 

Roof 

Replacement 

Prepared by:       Larry Hueter 

Reviewed by:   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 

Pass Resolution  _____  

Pass Ordinance  _____  

Pass Motion  _____  

Other   None 

 

Consent Agenda            
_____  

Public Hearing            _____  

1st Discussion            _____ 

2nd Discussion            _____ 

Other             _____  

  

 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
On September 1, 2016 Benton County received four bids for the roof replacement of five buildings at the 
Justice Center. 
 
After review, M.G. Wagner Co. Inc. was the lowest responsible bidder.   
 
 

SUMMARY 
 
M.G. Wagner Co., Inc.  
 
Base Bid:  $1,838,307.00  
Alternate 1:   $     29,015.00 (replace two skylights) 
Contingency: $   150,000.00  
  $2,017,322.00 
 
Sales Tax: $   173,489.69 
 
Total:  $2,190,811.69 
 
There is a good potential for Change Orders on this project and would recommend a contingency of eight 
percent (8%) $150,000.00 be added to the bid prices.   
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 

 
Award bid to M.G. Wagner Co. Inc. as lowest responsible bidder for the roof replacement project at the 
Benton County Justice Center Campus.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

 
$2,190,811.69 – Capital Fund  

 
 
 
 

WEH
Text Box
d. Bid Award to M.G. Wagner Co. Inc. for Roof Replacement Project



cc: Facilities    C. McKenzie 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 
IN THE MATTER OF PROVIDING NOTICE OF THE LOWEST RESPONSIBLE BIDDER FOR THE ROOF 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT AT THE BENTON COUNTY JUSTICE CENTER CAMPUS TO M.G. WAGNER 
CO. INC.  
  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2016‐082 the Board of Benton County Commissioners approved an 
architectural and engineering contract with Meier Enterprises, Inc. for the design and engineering 
of the roof replacement at the Benton County Justice Center; and  
 
WHEREAS, on June 21, 2016 the Board authorized the Public Services Administrator to proceed 
with advertising for bids from qualified contractors for roof replacement of five (5) structures at 
the Benton County Justice Center Campus; and  
 
WHEREAS, on September 1, 2016 representatives of Benton County and Meier Enterprises, Inc. 
received and opened four (4) bids  as follows:   
 
Contractor          Base Bid    Alt. 1    Alt. 2 
Cobra Roofing Services, Spokane, WA:  $2,455,000    $30,000  <91,000> 
Gillespie Roofing, Inc., Walla Walla, WA:  $1,991,150    $27,900  <89,450> 
Icon Corporation, Spokane Valley, WA:  $2,293,000    $34,000  <101,000> 
M.G. Wagner Co. Inc., Yakima, WA:    $1,838,307    $29,015  <116,055> 
 
WHEREAS,  the  Public  Services  Administrator,  Benton  County  Project  Manager,  and 
representatives of Meier Enterprises, Inc. reviewed the bid proposals and recommend award of 
the bid to M.G. Wagner Co. Inc. as the lowest responsible bidder; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the  Public  Services  Administrator  and  Project  Manager  recommend  the  Board 
approve a contingency of up to $150,000 be added to the bid; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
   



   
 

BE  IT  RESOLVED,  the  Board  of  Benton  County  Commissioners  hereby  concurs  with  the 
recommendation and awards the bid to M.G. Wagner Co. Inc. for the roof replacement project 
at the Benton County Justice Center Campus and authorizes staff to prepare a contract between 
Benton County and M.G. Wagner Co. Inc. to be placed on the agenda at a later date.   
 
Dated this _______ day of _______________, 2016. 

  ___________________________                
  Chairman of the Board 

 
  

  ___________________________              
  Member 

 
 

  ___________________________                
  Member 

    Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington 

Attest....................................................... 
                    Clerk of the Board  



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date 08/30/16 
Subject:         CKJT Architects  
Prepared by:   J. Donley  
Reviewed by:  P. Schut 

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract __X__ 
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 

 

Consent Agenda            __X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

The Benton County entered into a contract via resolution 2016-539 with CKJT Architects to provide 
architectural and engineering services for the remodel of buildings 2 and 3 at the Benton County 
Fairgrounds.  It was recently determined a heavy timber pavilion should be added to provide shade 
between the buildings. This first amendment is necessary to add the cost of architectural and 
engineering services for the heavy timber pavilion. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Amendment between Benton County and CKJT Architects. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Total construction cost of the remodel project is estimated, as of the effective date of this Contract, 
to be One Hundred-Forty Nine Thousand Six Hundred Sixty-One Dollars and Sixty Cents 
($149,661.60) 
 
MOTION 
 
Move to approve the attached contract amendment between Benton County and CKJT Architects.   
                  
 

WEH
Text Box
e. Amended Contract #1 w/CKJT Architects for Engineering Services; Amending Res 2016-539



Orig: Commissioners 
cc: Auditor; S.Araiza; Facilities; CKJT Architects; F.Bowen  J.Donley 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

IN THE MATTER OF THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES CONTRACT WITH CKJT ARCHITECTS, PLLC. TO PROVIDE 
ARCHITECTURAL AND ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE REMODEL OF 
EXHIBIT HALLS 2 & 3 AT THE BENTON COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS; AMENDING 
RESOLUTION 2016-539 
 
WHEREAS, per resolution 2016-539 dated July 12, 2016 the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners entered into a contract with CKJT Architects, PLLC., to provide Architectural 
and Engineering services for the remodel of exhibit halls 2 & 3 at the Benton County 
Fairgrounds; and  
 
WHEREAS, this first amendment is necessary to add the cost of architectural and engineering 
design of a new heavy timber pavilion between exhibit halls 2 & 3 increasing the amount from 
“shall not exceed an amount equal to eight and one-half percent (8.5%) of the total construction 
cost of the remodel project for Exhibit Halls 2 and 3 of the Benton County Fairgrounds, including 
W.S.S.T. Eight and one-half percent (8.5%) of the total construction cost of the remodel project is 
estimated, as of the effective date of this Contract, to be One Hundred Thirty-Three Thousand 
Eight Hundred Eighty-Eight Dollars and Sixty Cents ($133,888.60), including W.S.S.T”, to 
“shall not exceed an amount equal to eight and one-half percent (8.5%) of the total construction 
cost of the remodel project for Exhibit Halls 2 and 3 of the Benton County Fairgrounds, including 
W.S.S.T. Eight and one-half percent (8.5%) of the total construction cost of the remodel project is 
estimated, as of the effective date of this Contract, to be One Hundred-Forty Nine Thousand Six 
Hundred Sixty-One Dollars and Sixty Cents ($149,661.60), including W.S.S.T”,; NOW, 
THEREFORE,  

 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby concurs with the 
attached first amendment to the professional services contract, to add the cost of architectural and 
engineering design of a new heavy timber pavilion between exhibit halls 2 & 3; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby authorizes 
the Chairman of the Board to sign the first amendment to the professional services contract 
attached hereto. 
 
Dated this . . . . . . . day of . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . , 2016.   

 
       

Chairman of the Board  
 

       
Chairman Pro-Tem 

 
            ___ 

Member 
 

       Constituting the Board of County 
Attest: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .   Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 
 Clerk of the Board        
 



















 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: 09-13-16 
Subject: Line Item 

Transfer 
Prepared by:       J. Donley  
Reviewed by:       

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  __x___  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            _x____  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION / SUMMARY 
Transfer needed to comply with line item budgeting as approved by resolution 2014-911 for payment to 
CKJT Architects for architectural design and engineering of the remodel of Buildings 2 & 3 at the Benton 
County Fairgrounds 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve line item transfer. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Transferring funds from 575.401.4103 Professional Services to 594.751.6401 Capital Outlay.   
 
MOTION 
 
Move to approve the requested line item transfer 
 

WEH
Text Box
f. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0124-101, Dept. 000



Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor, File, Prepared by: 

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN
FAIRGROUNDS OPERATING BUDGET FUND NUMBER 0124-101,
DEPARTMENT NUMBER 000

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds
shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto.

Clerk of the Board

Chairman of the Board

Member

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept 000 TRANSFER TO:  Dept 000

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

575.401 4103 Professional Services $149,662 594751 6401 Capital Outlay $149,662

TOTAL $149,662 TOTAL $149,662

Explanation:

Prepared by: J. Donley Date:  06-Sep-2016

Approved  Denied  Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Transfer needed to pay for Architectual and Design Services for the Remodel of Building 2 & 3 at the Benton County Fairgrounds.

No Department

Fairgrounds Operating Budget

000

0124-101



WEH
Text Box
g. Amended Agreement #3 w/Children’s Developmental Center for Disabilities Services











WEH
Text Box
h. Amended Agreement #3 w/Columbia Industries for Disabilities Services











WEH
Text Box
i. Amended Agreement #3 w/The Arc of Tri-Cities for Disabilities Services











WEH
Text Box
j. Amended Agreement #4 w/BF Community Action Committee for Emergency Solutions Grant Services









WEH
Text Box
k. Amended Agreement #2 w/Sharon Adolphsen for Parent Coalition Services









WEH
Text Box
l. Amended Agreement #3 w/Goodwill Industries of the Columbia











WEH
Text Box
m. Veterans Assistance Fund Policies & Procedures; Rescinding Resolution 07 002













































































WEH
Text Box
n. Amended Agreement #3 w/Service Alternatives, Inc. for Disabilities Services











WEH
Text Box
o. Amended Agreement #3 w/Ambitions Community Support Services for Disabilities Services











WEH
Text Box
p. One-Time Payment to Relias Learning LLC for eLearning Services







BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Benton County Sheriff’s Patrol is in need of four additional GETAC laptops for the Patrol 
Vehicles. 

SUMMARY 

The Sheriff’s Patrol Deputies were outfitted with GETAC F110 ruggedized tablets in the 
last biennium.  The Sheriff’s department is in need of four additional units.  Information 
Technology recommends the purchase of four GETAC F110 ruggedized tablets, vehicle 
docking stations, accessories, Protection Plus Extended Warranty and Benton County’s custom 
configuration for the new Patrol vehicles.   

RECOMMENDATION 

Recommend the Board of Benton County Commissioners approve the purchase of four GETAC 
F110, vehicle docking station, maintenance plan, accessories and Service Center Image Load for 
$17,332.00 excluding WSST.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

   None, Public Safety Sheriff Patrol has funds allocated for this project. 

MOTION 

AGENDA/WORKSHOP ITEM TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Meeting Date: September 13, 2016 Execute Contract  Consent Agenda X 
Subject: Authorize purchase of four 

GETAC Rugged Tablet-Sheriff 
Patrol Car Pass Resolution X Public Hearing 

Pass Ordinance 1st Discussion 
By: Teri L. Holmes Pass Motion 2nd Discussion 
Reviewed By: Loretta SmithKelty Other Other 

WEH
Text Box
q. Purchase of Four Getac Extreme Tablets & Warranties from PCS Mobile for Patrol Vehicles



Orig: Information Technology 
cc: Auditor 

Prepared by: T. Holmes 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE PURCHASE OF FOUR GETAC F110 G3 
EXTREME TABLETS, HAVIS VEHICLE DOCKING STATIONS, ACCESSORIES AND 
EXTENDED WARRANTY FOR SHERIFF PATROL VEHICLES FROM PCS MOBILE, 
DENVER CO. 
 
WHEREAS, The Benton County Sheriff’s department has expressed a need for four GETAC 
F110 rugged tablets, vehicle docking stations, extended warranty and accessories to outfit 
Patrol Cars; and 
 
WHEREAS, Information Technology recommends continuing the use of GETAC F110 rugged 
tablets, vehicle docking stations, accessories and extended warranty as the best fit for 
Benton County Patrol Vehicles; and  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2012-677 of Benton County’s Procurement, Leasing, and Contract 
Policy, Section 7 Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreements: RCW 39.34.030 
allows the County to join with other governmental agencies for purchase or leases; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Washington State DES Contract #08313 lists PCS Mobile, Denver 
Colorado as an authorized reseller of GETAC computers and Havis vehicle docking 
stations; and 
 
WHEREAS, Information Technology has reviewed the quote from PCS Mobile for 
completeness and recommends purchasing four GETAC F110 tablets, Havis vehicle docking 
stations, iKey USB Keyboard, accessories, and extended warranty from PCS Mobile, Denver 
CO., as the most advantageous to the county with price and other factors considered; and 
 
WHEREAS, Public Safety funds were allocated and will be used for this purchase; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners, 
Benton County Washington authorizes the purchase of four GETAC F110 G3 Extreme 
Tablets, Havis Vehicle docking stations, iKey Keyboard, accessories, and extended warranty  
from PCS Mobile, Denver, CO in an amount not to exceed $17,335 plus WSST.  
 
Dated this  day of  ,   
  
  
 Chairman of the Board 
  
  
 Member 
  
  
 Member 

 
Constituting the Board of County Commissioners 

Attest:   of Benton County, Washington
 Clerk of the Board  
 





  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  
 

Early in 2015 we switched to Microsoft Online Protection for our email filtering needs.  It has 
become apparent that a sole solution cannot be best at everything.  We would like to supplement 
Microsoft Exchange Online Protection with a 2nd product, Barracuda Email Security Gateway.  
Spammers and phishers are more sophisticated than ever and providing email security a priority 
for Information Technology.  Adding Barracuda Email Security Gateways will ultimately provide 
us with a stronger border and allow us to provide better email filtering options.  The project is a 
priority for Information Technology, we feel adding these appliances is a proactive step. 

 
SUMMARY  

Using Washington State Contract (T10-MST-296) vendors and members of National 
Association of State Procurement Officials (WSCA/NASPO) quotes were solicited for Barracuda 
Email Security Gateway appliances, licenses and extended warranty.  The responses were 
reviewed for fit and function by the Information Technology.  

RECOMMENDATION  

Information Technology recommends the Board of Benton County Commissioners approve the 
purchase of two Barracuda Email Security Gateway 400 appliances, licenses, and warranty 
support for both the Justice Center and Courthouse Data Centers utilizing Washington State and 
NASPO T10-MST-296 contract from Leverage Information Systems, Woodinville, WA in an 
amount not to exceed $20,066.56 excluding Washington State Sales Tax.   

FISCAL IMPACT  

   None, replacement funds are available. 
 
MOTION  

AGENDA/WORKSHOP ITEM TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED         
Meeting Date: September 13, 2016 Execute Contract      Consent Agenda X   
Subject: Authorize purchase Barracuda 

Email Security Gateways using 
replacement funds Pass Resolution  X   Public Hearing     

   Pass Ordinance     1st Discussion    
By: Teri L. Holmes Pass Motion     2nd Discussion     
Reviewed By: Loretta SmithKelty Other     Other      
                    

WEH
Text Box
r. Purchase of Barracuda Email Security Gateway Appliances & Warranty from Leverage Information Systems



RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 

 
IN THE MATTER OF PURCHASING BARRACUDA EMAIL SECURITY GATEWAY 

APPLIANCES, LICENSES, AND 3 YEAR EXTENDED WARRANTY FOR BOTH JUSTICE 

CENTER AND COURTHOUSE DATA CENTER FROM LEVERAGE INFORMATION 

SYSTEMS, WOODINVILLE, WA.  

 
WHEREAS, it is highly desirable to supplement Microsoft Exchange Online Protection email 
filter; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Barracuda Email Security Gateway provides an industry standard solution used 
by many of our colleagues; and 
 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2012-677 of Benton County’s Procurement, Leasing, and Contract 
Policy, Section 7 Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreements: RCW 39.34.030 
allows the County to join with other governmental agencies for purchase or leases; and 
 
WHEREAS, vendors on the Washington State Contract (T10-MST-296 06112) and NASPO 
ValuePoint were solicited to submit quotes for Barracuda Email Security Gateway appliances, 
licenses and 3 year extended warranty; and 
 

Leverage Information Systems Woodinville, WA $20,066.56  

Barracuda Networks, Inc.   $21,312.00 

Compunet Salt Lake City, UT $20,272.86 

 
WHEREAS, Information Technology has reviewed the responses received and recommends 

purchasing the Barracuda Email Security Gateway appliances, licenses and 3 year extended 

warranty from Leverage Information Systems as the most advantageous to the county with 

price and other factors considered;  NOW, THEREFORE, 

 
BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County 
Washington authorizes Information Technology to purchase from Leverage Information 
Systems the Barracuda Email Security Gateway appliances, licenses and 3 year extended 
warranty in an amount not to exceed $20,066.56 excluding Washington State Sales Tax for 
Justice Center and Courthouse Data Centers.   
 

 
Dated this day of , 

 

 
 

Chairman of the Board 
 

 
 

Member 
 

 
 

Member 
 

 
Attest: of Benton County, Washington. 

Clerk of the Board 

 
Original: Central Services 
Copies: Auditor 

T Holmes 

 











WEH
Text Box
s. Amended Contract #2 w/Aramark Correctional Services for Food Services











WEH
Text Box
t. Truancy Contract w/Kiona-Benton School District



















WEH
Text Box
u. Truancy Contract w/Richland School District



















WEH
Text Box
v. Agreement w/State of WA Administrative Office of the Courts for Becca Services



























WEH
Text Box
w. Guest Speaker Contract w/D Wavra for Case Management Assessment Process Training











WEH
Text Box
x. Purchase of 2014 Ford Econoline 15 Passenger Van from McCurley Integrity Dealerships







Dated this day of , 

Attest:

cc: Dept., Auditor Prepared by: J. Bowe

Member

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners

of Benton County, Washington.

Clerk of the Board

RESOLUTION

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON:

IN THE MATTER OF COUNTY FUNDS RE: TRANSFER OF FUNDS WITHIN

CURRENT EXPENSE FUND NUMBER 0000101, DEPARTMENT NUMBER 138

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, that funds

shall be transferred as outlined in Exhibit "A", attached hereto .

Chairman of the Board

Member

WEH
Text Box
y. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 138



EXHIBIT "A"

Dept Name: Dept Nbr:

Fund Name: Fund Nbr:

TRANSFER FROM:  Dept TRANSFER TO:  Dept 

BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT BASE SUB LINE ITEM LINE ITEM NAME AMOUNT

(6 digit) (4 digit) (6 digit) (4 digit)

512.232 4181 Administrative Services $391 512.232 4696 Workmans Comp $92

512.232 4697 Insurance Management $299

TOTAL $391 TOTAL $391

Explanation:  

Prepared by: Jennifer Bowe Date:  25-Aug-2016

Approved q Denied q Date:  

Chairman

Member

Member

Line item transfer necessary to cover 2015-2016 Workman's Comp and Insurance Management assessments. Original budget appropriations at budget

approval and adoption were inaccurate.  

BENTON COUNTY LINE ITEM TRANSFER

Adult & Juvenile Drug Court 138

Current Expense 0000101



 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
 
Meeting Date: 09/13/2016 
Subject:               UEBT 

Participation 
Agreement-
Juvenile 
Detention 

Prepared by: K. Ainsworth   
Reviewed by:      S. Hallstrom   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract ___            
Pass Resolution  _X_          
Pass Ordinance  ___           
Pass Motion  ___           
Other   ___         

 
 
Consent Agenda  X     
Public Hearing              
1st Discussion             
2nd Discussion              
Other              

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
United Employees Benefit Trust (UEBT) requires parties to a collective bargaining agreement providing for 
participation in the UEBT health insurance plans sign the UEBT Participation Agreement.  The Agreement 
has been reviewed by Stephen Hallstrom, Senior DPA, and he approves as to form.  The Personnel 
Assistant requests that the Chairman of the Board of Benton County Commissioners sign and date the 
document where indicated on the last page. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Same as above.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Recommend the Board of Benton County Commissioners sign the Resolution. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
No fiscal impact or supplement required. 
 
 

 
 

kaa1
Typewritten Text

WEH
Text Box
z. Participating Agreement w/United Employees Benefit Trust for Juvenile Detention



 cc: Personnel, Payroll, UEBT, Commissioners                                                                                                   
 

RESOLUTION 
  

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS TO SIGN THE UNITED EMPLOYEES BENEFIT TRUST (UEBT) PARTICIPATION 
AGREEMENT 
 
WHEREAS, United Employees Benefit Trust (UEBT) revised their Participation Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, UEBT requires parties to a collective bargaining agreement providing for participation in the 
UEBT sign the UEBT Participation Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, Benton County is a participating employer of the UEBT and provides UEBT health insurance 
plans to full-time benefit eligible Benton County Juvenile Detention employees represented by Teamsters 
Local 839; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Collective Bargaining agreement between Benton County and Local 839, representing  
Juvenile Detention Employees was not signed until March 16, 2016, and UEBT has since been drafting 
the proposed Participation Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the UEBT requires that a Participation Agreement be signed between Benton County and 
the Benton County Juvenile Detention employees represented by Teamsters Local 839; NOW, 
THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Chairman of the Board of Benton County Commissioners sign the revised 
UEBT Participation Agreement, effective for the term of the Benton County Juvenile Detention 
employees, represented by Teamsters Local 839, Collective Bargaining Agreement from January 1, 
2015, through December 31, 2016. 
 
 
 
Dated this __________________ day of ________________, 20___. 
 
 
 

________________________                
Chairman of the Board 

 
 

________________________ 
Member 

 
 

________________________ 
Member  

               
Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                    Clerk of the Board 









kaa1
Typewritten Text

kaa1
Typewritten Text



 
 

 
AGENDA ITEM 

 
Meeting Date: 09/13/2016 
Subject:               UEBT 

Participation 
Agreement-
Courthouse 

Prepared by: K. Ainsworth   
Reviewed by:      S. Hallstrom   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract ___           
Pass Resolution  _X_          
Pass Ordinance  ___           
Pass Motion  ___           
Other   ___         

 
Consent Agenda  X     
Public Hearing              
1st Discussion             
2nd Discussion              
Other              

 
 

 
  

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
United Employees Benefit Trust (UEBT) requires parties to a collective bargaining agreement providing for 
participation in the UEBT health insurance plans sign the UEBT Participation Agreement.  The Agreement 
has been reviewed by Stephen Hallstrom, Senior DPA, and he approves as to form.  The Personnel 
Assistant requests that the Chairman of the Board of Benton County Commissioners sign and date the 
document where indicated on the last page. 

 
SUMMARY 
 
Same as above.   
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Recommend the Board of Benton County Commissioners sign the Resolution. 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 
No fiscal impact or supplement required. 

 
 
 
 

WEH
Text Box
aa. Participating Agreement w/United Employees Benefit Trust for Courthouse Union



 cc: Personnel, Payroll, UEBT, Commissioners                                                                                                   

 

RESOLUTION 
  

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS TO SIGN THE UNITED EMPLOYEES BENEFIT TRUST (UEBT) PARTICIPATION 
AGREEMENT 
 
WHEREAS, United Employees Benefit Trust (UEBT) revised their Participation Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, UEBT requires parties to a collective bargaining agreement providing for participation in the 
UEBT sign the UEBT Participation Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, Benton County is a participating employer of the UEBT and provides UEBT health insurance 
plans to full-time benefit eligible Benton County Courthouse employees represented by AFSCME Local 
874; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Collective Bargaining agreement between Benton County and Local 847, Council 2, 
AFSCME representing Courthouse Employees was not signed until May 10, 2016, and UEBT has since 
been drafting the proposed Participation Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the UEBT requires that a Participation Agreement be signed between Benton County and 
the Benton County Courthouse employees represented by AFSCME; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED that the Chairman of the Board of Benton County Commissioners sign the revised 
UEBT Participation Agreement, effective for the term of the Benton County Courthouse employees, 
represented by AFSCME, Collective Bargaining Agreement from January 1, 2016, through December 31, 
2018. 
 
 
 
Dated this __________________ day of ________________, 20___. 
 
 
 

________________________                
Chairman of the Board 

 
 

________________________ 
Member 

 
 

________________________ 
Member  

               
Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                    Clerk of the Board 









kaa1
Typewritten Text

kaa1
Typewritten Text

kaa1
Typewritten Text

kaa1
Typewritten Text



WEH
Text Box
bb. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0148-101, Dept. 106







WEH
Text Box
cc. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0101-101, Dept. 500







WEH
Text Box
dd. Continued Service Agreement w/Guardian Security Systems, Inc for Alarm System Monitoring



WEH
Text Box
ee. Authorization for On-Site Motor Grader Training from Roadwise, Inc.







WEH
Text Box
ff. Setting Bid Date for CE 2010 SMP – Rachel & Leslie Roads to Clover Road



WEH
Text Box
gg. Contract w/D & D Tri-Rivers Excavating, Inc for Kennewick Annex Parking Lot







WEH
Text Box
hh. Contract w/Stripe Rite, Inc. for CE 2003 SMP Pavement Marking









WEH
Text Box
ii. Salary Request Statement



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Sept. 13, 2016       
Subject: IFB – Chemical & 

Janitorial Supplies  
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  

   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract ___ _  
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
Per Resolution 2012-677, Section 2.2.3 Purchases or Leases of $25,000 or more, “purchases or leases 
of supplies, materials or equipment over twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) shall follow the “Formal 
Competitive Bid” requirements as established in RCW 36.23.245, unless otherwise exempt under RCW 
39.04.280”.  
 
To comply with Resolution 2012-677, the Sheriff’s Office is required to follow the formal competitive bid 
process for the procurement of chemical and janitorial supplies for the Benton County Bureau of 
Corrections for calendar years 2017/2018.  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM  
 
Ryan Lukson, DPA  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Invitation for Bids (IFB) for the procurement of Chemical & Janitorial 
Supplies - CB 16-08.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Expenditures will be included in the 2017/2018 budget.  
 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
jj. Solicitation of Bids for Jail Chemicals & Janitorial Supplies



Orig: Sheriff’s Office    Prepared by: L. Small  
cc:  CB 16-08 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE SOLICITATION OF BIDS FOR THE 
PROCUREMENT OF JAIL CHEMICAL AND JANITORIAL SUPPLIES FOR THE 
BENTON COUNTY BUREAU OF CORRECTIONS  
 
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton 
County, Washington, that attached invitation for bids and corresponding documents for the 
procurement of jail chemical and janitorial supplies for the Benton County Bureau of 
Corrections shall be prepared and advertised pursuant to the provisions of RCW 36.32.245, as 
more fully described in the invitation for bids CB 16-08 attached hereto; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the bids will be received by the Benton County Bureau of 
Corrections, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336 until 5:00 PM on 
Wednesday, October 5, 2016 and not thereafter, and will be publicly opened by representatives 
of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office at 9:00 AM (PST) on Thursday, October 6, 2016 at 7122 
W. Okanogan Place Bldg. A, Kennewick, WA 99336 in the Jail Conference Room.   
 
 
 
 
Dated this  _____________ day of __________________, 2016. 
 

 
 
 

 ___________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 

 
  

 ___________________________              
 Member 

 
 

 ___________________________                
 Member 

  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                  Clerk of the Board 
 

 



 

  
 

    
  

                                          
September 13, 2016 
 

INVITATION FOR BIDS (IFB) – COUNTY BID 16‐08 
 
BIDS FOR:  JAIL CHEMICAL AND JANITORIAL SUPPLIES FOR THE BENTON COUNTY 

BUREAU OF CORRECTIONS 
DEADLINE FOR  
BID SUBMITTAL:  WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 5, 2016 UNTIL 5:00 P.M.,  
  BENTON COUNTY BUREAU OF CORRECTIONS,  
  7122 W OKANOGAN PLACE, BLDG. B, KENNEWICK, WA 99336     
  NO BIDS WILL BE ACCEPTED AFTER THAT DATE AND TIME.   
  
 
Benton County (County) is soliciting bids for the purchase of Jail Chemical and Janitorial Supplies 
for the Benton County Bureau of Corrections (Jail), 7122 W. Okanogan Pl., Bldg. B, Kennewick, 
WA 99336. The awarding Vendor shall provide all necessary equipment for the dispensing of all 
laundry  chemicals and  shall  repair and maintain  said equipment at no additional  cost  to  the 
County.   The Vendor will be required to respond to all service calls for any repairs of maintenance 
within 36 hours or less of initial notification.  The County invites you to submit a bid to provide 
products and supplies that will meet or exceed the specifications set forth in Exhibit A – Vendor 
Bid.  Although the County anticipates purchasing the quantity of products provided in Exhibit A, 
those quantities are only estimates.  As such, the County makes no guarantee as to the quantity 
of products provided in Exhibit A it will purchase over the term of the Agreement.  By submitting 
a bid, Vendor agrees to provide any and all purchases at the same cost per item as provided in 
Exhibit A for the two (2) year term of the Agreement commencing upon signature of both parties 
to a negotiated contract as outlined in Exhibit D attached herein. In the event Vendor offers any 
of the items listed in Exhibit A at a sale price to that provided in Exhibit A, Vendor shall provide 
that sale price to the County for said item.  Vendor must provide all items listed in Exhibit A to be 
considered a responsive bidder. Failure to provide a price for any item will result in automatic bid 
disqualification. Any and all orders for products listed in Exhibit A will occur throughout the term 
of the Agreement. 

 

BIDDERS’ RECEIPT OF THE IFB PACKAGE 

a) The below Procurement/Contract Coordinator of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office is the 
only  individual  authorized  to  provide  the  IFB  package  to  interested  companies  or 
individuals.  Bidders who are working from an IFB package obtained from any other source 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 



  
 

may  be  working  from  an  incomplete  set  of  documents.  The  County  assumes  no 
responsibility for a bid’s errors, omissions or misinterpretations resulting from a bidder’s 
use of an incomplete IFB package. 
 

b) Bidders who have received the IFB package from a source other than the Sheriff’s Office 
Procurement/Contract Coordinator, or who have downloaded the IFB package from the 
County’s website, are advised to contact Lisa Small of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office 
at  (509)  735‐6555  ext.  3880  to  provide  their  company’s  name,    address,  telephone 
number, fax number and contact name. This will ensure that the bidder will receive all 
communication regarding the IFB such as Amendments and Clarifications. 

 

Your bid should be submitted in the official bid format as provided in Exhibit A and placed in a 
SEALED ENVELOPE marked “SEALED BID – Jail Chemical and Janitorial Supplies CB 16‐08.”  
Bids may be mailed or hand delivered to the Benton County Bureau of Corrections, 7122 W. 
Okanogan Place, Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336 until 5:00 PM (PST) Wednesday, October 5, 
2016.  NO BIDS WILL BE ACCEPTED AFTER THAT DATE AND TIME. Emailed and faxed bids are 
not acceptable and will not be considered. The bids will be publicly opened by representatives 
of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office at 9:00 AM (PST) on Thursday, October 6, 2016 at 7122 W. 
Okanogan Place Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336 in the Jail Conference Room. 
    
1. The County reserves the right to reject any or all bids for good cause pursuant to RCW 

36.32.245 and to waive informalities in the bidding process.  

2. This document and the materials enclosed herewith constitute an invitation to submit 
bids only and do not  represent an offer by  the County.   Bids submitted  in  response 
hereto shall constitute offers to sell the supplies meeting the County’s specifications.  If 
the  County  does  not  exercise  its  option  to  reject  any  or  all  bids  pursuant  to  RCW 
36.32.245,  the  County will  enter  into  a    resolution  providing  notice  of  the  lowest 
responsible bidder in the form of Exhibit E, accepting the bid of the lowest responsible 
bidder.  Upon entry of the resolution, the lowest responsible bidder shall be required 
to enter into an Agreement in the form of Exhibit D within 10 days of said resolution. 

3. The County is not liable for any costs incurred by bidders prior to issuance of or entering 
into  an  Agreement.  Costs  associated  with  developing  the  bid,  preparing  for  oral 
presentations, and any other expenses  incurred by the bidder  in responding to this IFB 
are entirely the responsibility of the bidder, and shall not be reimbursed in any manner 
by the County. 

4. Accuracy for all mathematical and number entries to Exhibit A is the sole responsibility of 
the bidder. Benton County will not be responsible for errors made by the bidder to Exhibit 
A. 

5. Bidders shall submit specifications of their bid, showing their compliance with the Jail’s 
requirements on the enclosed Vendor Bid Form, referenced as Exhibit A, or in a format 
matching the forms provided. All portions thereof must be completed in ink or mechanical 
means, setting forth all information requested.  At a MINIMUM, each of the items listed 
in the Vendor Bid Form should be addressed.  Any additional features promoted by the 





  
 

 
Exhibit A   

VENDOR BID FORM 
 
 
PROJECT IDENTIFICATION:   Jail Chemical and Janitorial Supplies for the Benton County 

Bureau of Corrections (Jail)           
 
THIS BID SUBMITTED TO:    Benton County Commissioners Office 
          Attn: Lisa Small 
          7122 W Okanogan Place, Bldg. B 
          Kennewick, WA 99336 
  
1. The undersigned Vendor proposes and agrees that if this bid is accepted it will enter into an 

Agreement with the County  in the form reflected  in Exhibit D to this  Invitation for Bids to 
supply all  items as specified or  indicated  in the Agreement for the prices and amounts set 
forth therein.  

 
2.  The Vendor accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Invitation for Bids.   This bid will 

remain open for up to 30 days after the day of submission.   
 
3.  In  submitting  this bid,  the Vendor  represents,  as more  fully  set  forth  in  Exhibit D  to  the 

Invitation for Bids, that: 
 

a)  The Vendor has examined copies of the entire Invitation for Bids, all exhibits thereto, and 
of the following addenda, if issued.  Receipt of addenda is hereby acknowledged: 

 
    Date:      Addenda Number: 
 
    ___________                     
 
    ___________             
 

b)  This bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed person, 
firm, or corporation and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement or rules of 
any  group,  association,  organization,  or  corporation;  the  Vendor  has  not  directly  or 
indirectly induced or solicited any other Vendor to submit a false or sham bid; the Vendor 
has not solicited or induced any person, firm, or corporation to refrain from bidding; and 
the Vendor has not sought by collusion to obtain for himself any advantage over any other 
vendor or over the County. 

 
4.  The Vendor will provide the products for the prices and amounts as set forth in paragraph 9 

below. 
 
5.  The Vendor agrees to supply the products in accordance with the terms and conditions set 

forth in Exhibit D.  
 



  
 

 
Exhibit A 
 
6.  The following documents are attached to and must be submitted in order for the bid to be 

considered: 
   

(a)  Affidavit of Non‐Collusion. 
 
(b) Anti‐Discrimination Certificate. 

 
7.  Communications  concerning  this  bid  shall  be  addressed  to  the  address  of  the  Vendor 

indicated below: 
 

__________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone____________________________Fax______________________________ 

 
 
8.  The terms used in this bid that are defined in Exhibit D have the meanings assigned to them 

in Exhibit D. 
 

 
 
 
   



Section 9. Exhibit A

Request for Bid ‐ CB 16‐08

 Chemical and Janitorial Supplies

Line    

Item 
Item  Description  Packaging  Brand Name

Product Code /   

Item Number

Active 

Ingredient 

Percentage 

Oz. Per Load

"Estimated" 

Quantity of 

Preferred Packaging  

(A)

Price per            

Packaging           

(B) 

"Estimated"      

Total             

(A x B) =          

1

Concentrated Liquid Laundry 

Detergent ‐ 100 Lb. Load 

Machine 16% ‐ 20% Active 

Ingredient                         

Must contain hard water tolerants; able to 

be used in automated dispensing system 

in both large and small washing machines.

55 Gallon Drum  20  $                             ‐    $                        ‐   

2

Liquid Oxygenated Bleach  ‐ 

100 Lb. Load Machine                  

34% Oxygenated Bleach               

color‐safe for all fabrics; able to be used in 

automated dispensing system in both 

large and small washing machines

55 Gallon Drum  20  $                             ‐    $                        ‐   

3

Concentrated Liquid Laundry 

Detergent  ‐ 3.5 Cubic Feet 

Washing Machine                          

16% ‐ 20% Active Ingredient       

Must contain hard water tolerants; able to 

be used in residential size washing 

machines.

5 Gallon Pail  10  $                             ‐    $                        ‐   

4

Liquid Oxygenated Bleach  ‐        

3.5 Cubic Feet Washing 

Machine                                          

34% Oxygenated Bleach               

color‐safe for all fabrics; able to be used in 

residential size washing machines.
5 Gallon Pail  10  $                             ‐    $                        ‐   

$                        ‐   

Line    

Item 
Item  Description  Packaging  Brand Name 

Product Code /   

Item Number

"Estimated" 

Quantity of 

Preferred 

Packaging   

(A)

Price Per 

Packaging       

(B)

"Estimated"      Total 

(A x B) =            

5 General Cleaner 
Quart'r Packs Extra Strength Cleaner 

(Green) 

Case             

4 Pk/80/CS 
Stearns  ST‐680 40 

 $                      ‐    ‐$                           

6 Disinfectant 
Quart'r Packs Powdered Detergent 

Disinfectant (Red) 

Case             

4 PK/125/CS
Stearns  ST‐690 40

 $                      ‐    ‐$                           

7 Floor Cleaner  GS Neutral Floor Cleaner (Yellow)

Case             

72/2oz per/CS    

for 2‐3 Gal 

Buckets 

Stearns  ST‐846 70 

 $                      ‐    ‐$                           

8 Bottle ‐ General Cleaner  
Quart'r Packs Extra Strength Cleaner Large 

Mouth Bottle ‐ (Green) 
each Stearns  ST9680 20 

 $                      ‐    ‐$                           

9 Bottle ‐ Disinfectant Bottle 
Quart'r Packs Disinfectant Large Mouth 

Bottle ‐ (Red) 
each Stearns  ST9690 20 

 $                      ‐    ‐$                           

LAUNDRY CHEMICALS 

JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 

Subtotal for Laundry Chemical 



Section 9. Exhibit A

Request for Bid ‐ CB 16‐08

 Chemical and Janitorial Supplies

Line    

Item 
Item  Description  Packaging  Brand Name 

Product Code /   

Item Number

"Estimated" 

Quantity of 

Preferred 

Packaging   

(A)

Price Per 

Packaging       

(B)

"Estimated"      Total 

(A x B) =            

10
Spray Head for General 

Cleaner Bottle 

Green/White Spray Head for Large Mouth 

Spray Bottle 
each Stearns  ST‐ZS‐0550 20 

 $                      ‐    ‐$                           

11
Spray Head for Disinfectant 

Bottle 

Red/White Spray Head for Large Mouth 

Bottle 
each Stearns  ST‐ZS‐0570 20 

 $                      ‐    ‐$                           

12 Floor Finish

Slip‐resistant poly shield, water‐based, 

emulsion‐type, metal‐interlocked, 

urethane ‐ fortified, acrylic copolymer 

floor finish. Minimal maintenance, 

maintained with weekly high speed 

burnishing. For high traffic areas. Dries to 

a high gloss. Levels with no streaks or mop 

trails. Re‐coats and blends well with 

existing coats. Retains gloss and possesses 

excellent resistance to scuffs and black 

heel marks. 

5 Gallon Pail   20   $                      ‐    ‐$                           

13 Floor Stripper

Must be able to remove finish from a 

variety of floor surfaces, including tile and 

asphalt. Must rinse with water and not 

require a neutralizer.

Case             

4x1Gal/Case 
20   $                      ‐    ‐$                           

14 Floor Maintainer  Snap Back Buffing (Flooring)
Case             

4x1Gal/Case 
20   $                      ‐    ‐$                           

15 Hand Soap Dispensers   Foamy Dispensers ‐ Black  each 12  $                      ‐    ‐$                           

16 Foaming Hand Soap 
one gallon container; use current 

dispenser (See note A below) 

Case             

4x1Gal/Case 
40  $                      ‐    ‐$                           

17
Floor Buffing/Stripping Pads ‐

17" White 
 White Polishing Pad 17" (5/pk)

Package          

5/PK
10   $                      ‐    $                             ‐   

18
Floor Buffing/Stripping Pads ‐

Red
Red Buffing Pad 17" (5/pk)

Package          

5/PK
10   $                      ‐    $                             ‐   

19
Floor Buffing/Stripping Pads ‐

Black
Black Strip Pad 17" (5/pk)

Package          

5/PK
10   $                      ‐    $                             ‐   



Section 9. Exhibit A

Request for Bid ‐ CB 16‐08

 Chemical and Janitorial Supplies

Line    

Item 
Item  Description  Packaging  Brand Name 

Product Code /   

Item Number

"Estimated" 

Quantity of 

Preferred 

Packaging   

(A)

Price Per 

Packaging       

(B)

"Estimated"      Total 

(A x B) =            

20 Floor Polishing Pads ‐ White  White Polishing Pad 20" (5/pk)
Package          

5/PK
10   $                      ‐    $                             ‐   

21 Dishwashing Liquid 
Dawn Ultra Antibacterial Hand Soap ‐ 21.6 

FL oz. 
each Dawn  200   $                      ‐    $                             ‐   

22 Scouring Powder  28 oz. Cleanser (12 per case) 
Case             

24/Case 
20   $                      ‐    $                             ‐   

23 Bar Towel 
Green Striped Bar Towel, 16 x 19, 100% 

High Grade Cotton, White w/Green Stripe ‐ 

Length 19in ‐ Width 16in ‐ 12/Dozen 

Dozen            

12/Dozen 
20   $                      ‐    $                             ‐   

 $                             ‐   Subtotal for Janitorial Supplies  



 

  
 

 
Exhibit A  

BASE BID AMOUNT 
 
LUMP SUM (excluding sales tax) $ 
_______________________________________________________________ 
 
LUMP SUM (excluding sales tax), in words    
 
SUBMITTED ON  _____________________________, 2016 
 
The Vendor by whom this bid is submitted and by whom the Agreement will be entered into, in case this 
bid is accepted, is a Corporation, Partnership, or Individual doing business at: 
 
       
(STREET) 
 
       
(CITY)  (STATE)  (ZIP) 
 
The undersigned hereby certifies and represents to signing this bid on behalf of the Vendor and admits the 
undersigned is authorized to do so by said Vendor. 
 
   
Legal Name of Vendor 
 
   
Signature of Authorized Person 
 
   
Title   



 

 

Exhibit B 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF NON‐COLLUSION 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
County of Benton 

 
 
                      ,  (Vendor), 

being first duly sworn, certifies that the bid above submitted is a genuine bid and not a sham or 

collusive bid or a bid made in the interest or on behalf of any person not therein named; and it is 

further certified that the said Vendor has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any Vendor 

on the above work or supplies to put in a sham bid, or any other person or corporation to refrain 

from submitting a bid; and that said Vendor has not in any manner sought by collusion to secure 

an advantage over other Vendor or Vendors. 

 
 
                       
(Company Name) 
 
 
                       
(Vendor’s Signature) 
 
 
                       
(Typed Name and Title) 
 
 
 
SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me this     day of      , 2016. 
 
 
 
                       
 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of _____________,  

residing at            



 

 

Exhibit C 
ANTI‐DISCRIMINATION CERTIFICATE 

 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
County of Benton 

 
 
The Vendor hereby stipulates that no person shall be discriminated against in the bidding of the 

supplies and/or materials herein and that the Vendor shall not refuse employment to any person 

related to this Agreement because of such person’s race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, 

handicap or national origin. Any such discrimination shall be deemed a violation of this bid and 

shall render this bid subject to forfeiture. 

 
 
                       
(Company Name) 
 
 
                       
(Vendor's Signature) 
 
 
                       
(Typed Name and Title) 
 
 
   
SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me this     day of      , 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
                       
 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of _____________,  

residing at              

   



 

 

Exhibit D 
 

“SAMPLE” VENDOR PURCHASING AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement is made and entered into by and between BENTON COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its 
principal offices at 620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "County"), and [name of Vendor and 
Vendor’s  legal  form,  i.e.  “Inc”  or  “LLC”  if  applicable], with  its  principal  offices  at  [Vendor’s  address], 
(hereinafter "Vendor"). 
 
In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows:   
 
1.  Vendor agrees to furnish to the County the products as  listed  in Exhibit A, for [Jail Chemical and 
Janitorial Supplies CB 16‐08] in accordance with its bid dated ______________ and to supply the product 
strictly  in accordance with  the  specifications and  requirements  set  forth  therein. The County anticipates 
purchase of  the  items  listed  in Exhibit A but does not guarantee any specific minimum quantity. Vendor 
agrees to provide any and all purchases at the same cost per item as provided in Exhibit A for the term of 
the Agreement. In the event the Vendor offers any of the items listed on Exhibit A at a sale price to that 
provided in Exhibit A attached hereto, the Vendor shall automatically provide that sale price to the County 
for said  item. Vendor further agrees if it is unable to provide any of the products listed herein during the 
course of this Agreement it will provide a reasonable substitute of said products to the County at the same 
price.  What constitutes a reasonable substitute of any product provided herein is to be determined at the 
sole discretion of  the County. The Vendor shall provide all necessary equipment  for  the dispensing of all 
laundry chemicals and shall repair and maintain said equipment at no additional cost to the County.  Vendor 
is required to respond to all service calls for the repairs or maintenance on said equipment within 36 hours 
of initial notification by the County.    
 
2.  The  Vendor's  bid  for  [Jail  Chemical  and  Janitorial  Supplies  CB  16‐08],  and  corresponding 
documents, all of which are on file in the office of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office, shall constitute a 
part of  this Agreement and are by  this  reference  incorporated and made a part of  this Agreement as 
though fully set forth.  Each party expressly covenants and agrees to carry out and fully perform each and 
all of the provisions of these documents upon its or his part to be performed. 
 
3.  County will compensate Vendor for the purchase of goods at the price set forth in Exhibit A with an 
overall Agreement  amount  not  to  exceed  $_______________  including Washington  State  Sales  Tax.   A 
purchase order is required for each order.  The Vendor will supply the quantities of product requested by the 
County during the term of this Agreement. The Vendor may submit invoices to the COUNTY not more than 
once per month during the course of this Agreement.  Invoices shall cover the products supplied to the County 
during the billing period.  The County shall pay the Vendor for products provided in the month following the 
actual delivery of products and will remit payment within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt. 
 
4.  All deliveries are to be made F.O.B. Benton County Jail, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Kennewick, WA 
between the hours 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, except on regularly observed state 
or federal holidays, unless otherwise requested by the County. Destination will be determined at time of 
order. 

 



 

 

5.  Each party to this Agreement shall have a representative.  Each party may change its 
representative upon providing written notice to the other party.  The parties' representatives are as 
follows: 

 

a.  For Vendor:  [Insert name and address] 

 

b.  For County:    Lisa Small  

7122 W. Okanogan Place Bldg. B 

Kennewick, WA 99336 

(509) 735‐6555 ext. 3880 

Lisa.Small@co.benton.wa.us 

 

6.  Delivery of products cited herein by Vendor must be made within 7 days of order by the County. 
If product can’t be delivered within that period of time for any reason, Vendor must immediately notify 
the County’s above Agreement representative. 
 
7.  The Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County, its appointed and elective officers 
and employees, from and against all  loss or expense, including but not  limited to judgments, settlements, 
attorney's  fees and  costs by  reason of any and all  claims and demands upon  the County,  its elected or 
appointed officials or employees for damages arising out of any act or omission of the Vendor, its officers, 
agents and employees.   This  includes negligence on  the part of  the Vendor and  its officers, agents and 
employees due to violation of any code or regulation. It is further provided that no liability shall attach to the 
County by reason of entering into this Agreement, except as expressly provided herein. 
 
8.  This Agreement shall commence upon signature of both parties and shall continue until December 
31, 2018.  
 
9.  The Vendor shall perform the terms of this Agreement using only its bona fide employees or agents, 
and  the obligations and duties of  the Vendor under  this Agreement shall not be assigned, delegated, or 
subcontracted to any other person or firm without the prior express written consent of the County. 
 
10.  Insurance:   
 
  a.   Workers  Compensation:    Vendor  shall  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations.  Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers compensation 
coverage shall be provided for all employees of Vendor and employees of any subvendor or sub‐subvendor.  
Coverage  shall  include  bodily  injury  (including  death)  by  accident  or  disease, which  arises  out  of  or  in 
connection with the performance of this Contract.  Vendor shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 
from the Department of Labor and Industries prior to commencement of work.  Except as prohibited by law, 
Vendor waives all rights of subrogation against the County for recovery of damages to the extent they are 
covered by workers compensation and employers liability. 
 



 

 

If  Vendor,  subvendor,  or  sub‐subvendor  fails  to  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations and County incurs fines or is required by law to provide benefits 
to or obtain coverage for such employees, Vendor shall indemnify the County. Indemnity shall include all 
fines, payment of benefits to Vendor or subvendor employees, or their heirs or legal representatives, and 
the  cost of effecting  coverage on behalf of  such employees. Any amount owed  to County by Vendor 
pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be deducted from any payments owed by County to Vendor 
for performance of this Contract.  
 
  b.  Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability Insurance:  Prior to the start of work 
under  this Contract, Vendor shall maintain commercial general  liability coverage  (policy  form CG0001 or 
equivalent) to protect the Vender from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, personal injury and property 
damage, which may arise from any actions or inactions under this Contract by Vendor or by anyone directly 
employed by or contracting with Vendor.   The minimum commercial general liability insurance limits shall be 
as follows: 
 
  $2,000,000 General Aggregate 
  $2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 
  $1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 
  $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 
The  commercial  general  liability policy will  contain an endorsement naming  the County,  its elected and 
appointed officials, employees and agents as an Additional  Insured and an endorsement  that specifically 
states that Vendor’s commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and not contributory, with any other 
insurance maintained by the County. 
 
The Vender will  provide  commercial  general  liability  coverage  that  does  not  exclude  any  activity  to  be 
performed  in  fulfillment  of  this Contract  and  does  not  exclude  liability  pursuant  to  the  indemnification 
requirement  under  Section  7.    Vendor’s  commercial  general  liability  policy  shall  provide  cross  liability 
coverage, indicating essentially that except with respect to the limits of insurance and any rights or duties 
specifically assigned in this coverage part to the first named insured, this insurance applies as if each named 
insured were the only named insured, and separately to each insured against whom claims are made or suit 
is brought. 
 
Vendor shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 
 

$500,000 Each Accident 
$500,000 Policy Limit for Disease 
$500,000 Each Employee for Disease 
 

  c.  Automobile  Liability:  The  Vendor  shall  maintain,  during  the  life  of  this  Contract, 
Automobile Liability Insurance (ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto (Symbol 1), or 
if the Vendor has no owned autos, hired (Symbol 8) and non‐owned autos (Symbol 9), in the amount of 
not  less  than one million dollars  ($1,000,000) per accident  for Bodily  Injury and Property Damage  to 
protect  Vendor  from  claims which may  arise  from  the  performance  of  this  Contract, whether  such 
operations be by the Vendor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Vendor.  
 
  d.  Other Insurance Provisions: 
 



 

 

1. The  Vendor’s  liability  insurance  provisions  shall  be  primary  with  respect  to  any 
insurance or self‐insurance programs covering the County, its elected and appointed 
officers, officials, employees and agents. Vendor’s liability insurance policies must be 
endorsed  to  show  this  primary  coverage.  Any  insurance,  self‐insured  retention, 
deductible or  risk  retention maintained or participated  in by  the County  shall be 
excess and not contributory to Vendor’s insurance policies. 
 

2. The Vendor’s liability insurance policies shall contain no special limitations on the scope 
of protection afforded to the County as an additional insured.  
 

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect coverage 
provided to the County, its officers, officials, employees or agents. 
 

4. The Vendor’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.  
 

5. The Vendor shall include all subvendors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish 
separate  certificates  and  endorsements  for  each  subvendor.  All  coverage  for 
subvendors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.  
 

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage required by this Contract are 
not  intended  to  be  an  indication  of  exposure  nor  are  they  limitations  on 
indemnification.  
 

7. The  Vendor  shall maintain  all  required  policies  in  force  from  the  time  purchasing 
commences until purchasing  is completed.   Certificates, policies, and endorsements 
expiring  before  completion  of  purchases  shall  be  promptly  replaced.    All  liability 
insurance required under this Contract shall be written on an Occurrence Policy form.   
 

8. Vendor hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect to each  insurance policy 
maintained under this Contract. When required by an insurer, or if a policy condition 
does not permit VENDOR to enter into a pre‐loss agreement to waive subrogation 
without an endorsement, then Vendor agrees to notify the insurer and obtain such 
endorsement.  This  requirement  shall  not  apply  to  any  policy  which  includes  a 
condition expressly prohibiting waiver of subrogation by the insured or which voids 
coverage should the Vendor enter  into such a waiver of subrogation on a pre‐loss 
basis.  

 
9. Compensation and/or payments due to Vendor under this Agreement are expressly 

conditioned  upon  Vendor’s  strict  compliance  with  all  insurance  requirements. 
Payment to Vendor may be suspended in the event of non‐compliance. Upon receipt 
of  evidence  of  Vendor's  compliance,  such  payments  not  otherwise  subject  to 
withholding or set‐off will be released to Vendor. 

 
  e.  Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers:   
 

  All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued by companies authorized to do 
business under the laws of the State of Washington and have a A. M. Best's rating of at least A‐VII 



 

 

or  better  in  the  most  recently  published  edition  of  Best’s  Reports.  Any  exception  to  this 
requirement must be reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk Manager. If an 
insurer  is  not  admitted  to  do  business  within Washington  State,  all  insurance  policies  and 
procedures  for  issuing  the  insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 RCW and 284‐15 
WAC.  
   

1. All insurance to be maintained by the Vendor, other than Professional Liability, Auto 
Liability  and Workmen’s  Compensation,  shall  specifically  include  the  County,  its 
elected officials, employees and volunteers as an “Additional  Insured” by way of 
endorsement and shall not be reduced or canceled without thirty (30) days written 
prior  notice  to  the  County.  Any  insurance  or  self‐insurance maintained  by  the 
COUNTY, its elected and appointed officials, employees and agents shall be excess 
of the Vendor’s insurance and shall not contribute to it. 

 
2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements attached, are to be provided 

to the County’s Contract Representative referenced in Section 5. 
 
3. All written notices under  this Section 10 and notice of  cancellation or  change of 

required  insurance  coverages  shall  be  mailed  to  the  County’s  Contract 
Representative referenced in Section 5.  

 
4. The  Vendor  or  its  broker  shall  provide  a  copy  of  any  and  all  insurance  policies 

specified  in this Contract upon request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the 
following address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A, 
Kennewick, WA 99336.  

 
11.   The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, or waiver of any provision(s) of this 
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice the right of 
the waiving party  to enforce any of  the provisions of  this Agreement at a  later  time.   All waivers of any 
provision(s) of this Agreement shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no action or inaction shall be 
construed to be such a waiver. 
 
12.   This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and delivered within the State 
of Washington, and it is agreed by each party hereto that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of Washington, both as to its interpretation and performance.  Any action at law, suit in equity, or 
judicial proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted and maintained only in any of the courts 
of competent jurisdiction in Benton County, Washington. 
 
13.  The County, to the extent permitted by law, and the Vendor each bind themselves, their partners, 
successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, 
successors, administrators, and assigns of such other party in respect to all covenants to this Agreement. 
 
14.  If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this Agreement to be illegal, 
or invalid in whole or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the parties' 
rights and obligations shall be construed and enforced as  if this Agreement did not contain the particular 
provision held to be invalid.  If it should appear that any provision of this Agreement is in conflict with any 
statutory provision of the State of Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall be deemed 



 

 

inoperative and null and void  insofar as  it may be  in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to 
conform to such statutory provision. 
 
15.  The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of its terms and conditions.  Any 
oral  or  written  representations  or  understandings  not  incorporated  in  this  Agreement  are  specifically 
excluded. 
 
16.  Any notices shall be effective if personally served upon the other party or if mailed by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, to the addresses set out in the Agreement Representatives Section 
of this Agreement.  Notice may also be given by facsimile with the original to follow by regular mail.  Notice 
shall be deemed to be given three days following the date of mailing or immediately, if personally served.  For 
service by facsimile, service shall be effective at the beginning of the next working day. 
 
17.  All Agreement terms, which by their context are clearly intended to survive the termination and/or 
expiration of this Agreement, shall so survive.   
 
18.  The County may terminate the Agreement in whole or in part whenever the County determines, in 
its  sole discretion,  such  termination  is  in  the best  interests of  the County.   Whenever  the Agreement  is 
terminated in accordance with this paragraph, the Vendor shall be entitled to payment for actual products 
received by County at the prices set forth herein prior to termination.  If sufficient funds are not appropriated 
or allocated for payment under this Agreement for any future fiscal period, the County will not be obligated 
to make payments for purchases for amounts incurred after the end of the current fiscal period.  No penalty 
or expense shall accrue to the County in the event this provision applies. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement this _____ day of ____________ 2016. 
 
 
BENTON COUNTY           [VENDOR’S BUSINESS NAME] 
              
           
 
___________________________________    ___________________________________ 
Shon Small, Chairman          Date      Name/Title                                            Date 
Benton County Commissioner 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
By: ________________________________   
       Ryan J. Lukson 
       Civil Deputy Prosecuting Attorney   
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 
 

Exhibit F 
RESOLUTION 

 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 
IN THE MATTER OF PROVIDING NOTICE OF THE LOWEST RESPONSIBLE 
BIDDER FOR THE PURCHASE OF JAIL CHEMICAL AND JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 
(CB 16-08) 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Benton County Commissioners solicited bids for the procurement of 
jail chemical and janitorial supplies per Resolution 2016-xxx; and 
 
WHEREAS, representatives of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office received and opened [number 
of bids] on [date] as provided in the invitation to bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, the bids were from the following amounts: 
[list bidder’s, bid amount ]; and   
 
WHEREAS,  the representatives of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office reviewed the bid 
proposals and recommend awarding the vendor purchasing agreement to [vendor’s business 
name]; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington 
hereby has deemed [Vendor’s Business Name] to be the lowest responsible bidder for the 
purchase of jail chemical and janitorial supplies and shall be required to enter into an Agreement 
in the form of Exhibit D to the Benton County Bureau of Corrections Jail Chemical Supplies 
Invitation for Bid CB 16-08 within ten (10) days of this notice. 
 
 
Dated this  _____________ day of __________________, 2016. 
 

 ___________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 

  
 ___________________________              

 Member 
 

 ___________________________                
 Member 

  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                    Clerk of the Board  



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Sept. 13, 2016       
Subject: IFB – Employee BDU 

Uniforms 
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  

   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract ___ _  
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
Per Resolution 2012-677, Section 2.2.3 Purchases or Leases of $25,000 or more, “purchases or leases 
of supplies, materials or equipment over twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) shall follow the “Formal 
Competitive Bid” requirements as established in RCW 36.23.245, unless otherwise exempt under RCW 
39.04.280”.  
 
To comply with Resolution 2012-677, the Sheriff’s Office is required to follow the formal competitive bid 
process for the procurement of Employee BDU Uniforms. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM  
 
Ryan Lukson, DPA  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Invitation for Bids (IFB) for the procurement of Employee BDU 
Uniforms and other related items - CB 16-10.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Expenditures will be included in the 2017/2018 budget.  
 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
kk. Solicitation of Bids for Employee BDU Uniforms



Orig: Sheriff’s Office   Prepared by: L. Small  
cc:  CB 16-10 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE SOLICITATION OF BIDS FOR THE 
PROCUREMENT OF EMPLOYEE BDU UNIFORMS AND OTHER RELATED 
ITEMS FOR THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE  
 
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton 
County, Washington, that attached invitation for bids and corresponding documents for the 
procurement of employee BDU uniforms and other related items for the Benton County 
Sheriff’s Office shall be prepared and advertised pursuant to the provisions of RCW 36.32.245, 
as more fully described in the invitation for bids CB 16-10 attached hereto; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the bids will be received by the Benton County Bureau of 
Corrections, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336 until 5:00 PM on 
Wednesday, October 5, 2016 and not thereafter, and will be publicly opened by representatives 
of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office at 9:00 AM (PST) on Thursday, October 6, 2016 at 7122 
W. Okanogan Place Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336 in the Jail Conference Room.  
 
 
 
 
Dated this  _____________ day of __________________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 

 ___________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 

 
  

 ___________________________              
 Member 

 
 

 ___________________________                
 Member 

  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                  Clerk of the Board 
 

 



 

  
 

    
  

                                          
September 13, 2016 
 

INVITATION FOR BIDS (IFB) – COUNTY BID 16‐10 
 
BIDS FOR:  EMPLOYEE BDU UNIFORMS AND OTHER RELATED ITEMS FOR THE BENTON 

COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
DEADLINE FOR  
BID SUBMITTAL:  WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 5, 2016 UNTIL 5:00 P.M.,  
  BENTON COUNTY BUREAU OF CORRECTIONS,  
  7122 W OKANOGAN PLACE, BLDG. B, KENNEWICK, WA 99336     
  NO BIDS WILL BE ACCEPTED AFTER THAT DATE AND TIME.   
 
 
Benton County (County) is soliciting bids for the purchase of Employee Uniforms – BDU/Blauer 
and Other Related Items for the Benton County Sheriff’s Office, 7122 W. Okanogan Pl., Bldg. B, 
Kennewick, WA 99336 from any and all potential vendors.  The County invites you to submit a 
bid  to provide products and  supplies  that will meet or exceed  the  specifications  set  forth  in 
Exhibit A – Vendor Bid.   Although the County anticipates purchasing the quantity of products 
provided  in  Exhibit  A,  those  quantities  are  only  estimates.    As  such,  the  County makes  no 
guarantee as to the quantity of products provided in Exhibit A it will purchase over the term of 
the Agreement.  By submitting a bid Vendor agrees to provide any and all purchases at the same 
cost per item as provided in Exhibit A for the two (2) year term of the Agreement commencing 
January 1, 2017. In the event Vendor offers any of the items listed in Exhibit A at a sale price to 
that provided in Exhibit A, Vendor shall provide that sale price to the County for said item.  Vendor 
must provide all items listed in Exhibit A to be considered a responsive bidder. Failure to provide 
a price for any item will result in automatic bid disqualification. Any and all orders for products 
listed in Exhibit A will occur throughout the term of the Agreement. 

 

BIDDERS’ RECEIPT OF THE IFB PACKAGE 

a) The below Procurement/Contract Coordinator of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office is the 
only  individual  authorized  to  provide  the  IFB  package  to  interested  companies  or 
individuals.  Bidders who are working from an IFB package obtained from any other source 
may  be  working  from  an  incomplete  set  of  documents.  The  County  assumes  no 
responsibility for a bid’s errors, omissions or misinterpretations resulting from a bidder’s 
use of an incomplete IFB package. 
 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 



  
 

b) Bidders who have received the IFB package from a source other than the Sheriff’s Office 
Procurement/Contract Coordinator, or who have downloaded the IFB package from the 
County’s website, are advised to contact Lisa Small of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office 
at  (509)  735‐6555  ext.  3880  to  provide  their  company’s  name,    address,  telephone 
number, fax number and contact name. This will ensure that the bidder will receive all 
communication regarding the IFB such as Amendments and Clarifications. 

 

Your bid should be submitted in the official bid format as provided in Exhibit A and placed in a 
SEALED ENVELOPE marked “SEALED BID – Employee Uniforms – BDU/Blauer and Other Related 
Items  CB  16‐10.”    Bids may  be mailed  or  hand  delivered  to  the  Benton  County  Bureau  of 
Corrections,  7122 W.  Okanogan  Place,  Bldg.  B,  Kennewick, WA  99336  until  5:00  PM  (PST) 
Wednesday, October  5,  2016.   NO BIDS WILL BE ACCEPTED AFTER  THAT DATE AND  TIME. 
Emailed and faxed bids are not acceptable and will not be considered. The bids will be publicly 
opened by representatives of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office at 9:00 AM (PST) on Thursday, 
October 6, 2016 at 7122 W. Okanogan Place Bldg. A, Kennewick, WA 99336 in the Jail Conference 
Room. 
    
1. The County reserves the right to reject any or all bids for good cause pursuant to RCW 

36.32.245 and to waive informalities in the bidding process.  

2. This document and the materials enclosed herewith constitute an invitation to submit 
bids only and do not  represent an offer by  the County.   Bids submitted  in  response 
hereto shall constitute offers to sell the supplies meeting the County’s specifications.  If 
the  County  does  not  exercise  its  option  to  reject  any  or  all  bids  pursuant  to  RCW 
36.32.245,  the  County will  enter  into  a    resolution  providing  notice  of  the  lowest 
responsible bidder in the form of Exhibit E, accepting the bid of the lowest responsible 
bidder.  Upon entry of the resolution, the lowest responsible bidder shall be required 
to enter into an Agreement in the form of Exhibit D within 10 days of said resolution. 

3. The County is not liable for any costs incurred by bidders prior to issuance of or entering 
into  an  Agreement.  Costs  associated  with  developing  the  bid,  preparing  for  oral 
presentations, and any other expenses  incurred by the bidder  in responding to this IFB 
are entirely the responsibility of the bidder, and shall not be reimbursed in any manner 
by the County. 

4. Accuracy for all mathematical and number entries to Exhibit A is the sole responsibility of 
the bidder. Benton County will not be responsible for errors made by the bidder to Exhibit 
A. 

5. Bidders shall submit specifications of their bid, showing their compliance with the Jail’s 
requirements on the enclosed Vendor Bid Form, referenced as Exhibit A, or in a format 
matching the forms provided. All portions thereof must be completed in ink or mechanical 
means, setting forth all information requested.  At a MINIMUM, each of the items listed 
in the Vendor Bid Form should be addressed.  Any additional features promoted by the 
bidder should emphasize the benefits, but also address the  impact of such features on 
the price quoted.   

6. Bids  must  be  executed  by  a  person  or  persons  legally  authorized  to  execute  such 
documents on behalf of the bidding entity. 





  
 

Exhibit A 
VENDOR BID FORM 

 
 
PROJECT IDENTIFICATION:   Employee Uniforms – BDU/Blauer and Other Related Items 

for the Benton County Sheriff’s Office 
 
THIS BID SUBMITTED TO:    Benton County Commissioners Office 
          Attn: Lisa Small 
          7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B 
          Kennewick, WA 99336 
 
1. The undersigned Vendor proposes and agrees that if this bid is accepted it will enter into an 

Agreement with the County  in the form reflected  in Exhibit D to this  Invitation for Bids to 
supply all  items as specified or  indicated  in the Agreement for the prices and amounts set 
forth therein.  

 
2.  The Vendor accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Invitation for Bids.   This bid will 

remain open for up to 30 days after the day of submission.   
 
3.  In  submitting  this bid,  the Vendor  represents,  as more  fully  set  forth  in  Exhibit D  to  the 

Invitation for Bids, that: 
 

a)  The Vendor has examined copies of the entire Invitation for Bids, all exhibits thereto, and 
of the following addenda, if issued.  Receipt of addenda is hereby acknowledged: 

 
    Date:      Addenda Number: 
 
    ___________                     
 
    ___________             
 

b)  This bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed person, 
firm, or corporation and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement or rules of 
any  group,  association,  organization,  or  corporation;  the  Vendor  has  not  directly  or 
indirectly induced or solicited any other Vendor to submit a false or sham bid; the Vendor 
has not solicited or induced any person, firm, or corporation to refrain from bidding; and 
the Vendor has not sought by collusion to obtain for himself any advantage over any other 
vendor or over the County. 

 
4.  The Vendor will provide the products for the prices and amounts as set forth in paragraph 9 

below. 
 
5.  The Vendor agrees to supply the products in accordance with the terms and conditions set 

forth in Exhibit D.   
 
 



  
 

 
Exhibit A 
 
 
6.  The following documents are attached to and must be submitted in order for the bid to be 

considered: 
   

(a)  Affidavit of Non‐Collusion. 
 
(b) Anti‐Discrimination Certificate. 

 
7.  Communications  concerning  this  bid  shall  be  addressed  to  the  address  of  the  Vendor 

indicated below: 
 

__________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone____________________________Fax______________________________ 

 
 
8.  The terms used in this bid that are defined in Exhibit D have the meanings assigned to them 

in Exhibit D. 
 

 
 
 
   



 9. Exhibit A

Request for Bid ‐ CB 16‐10

Employee Uniforms ‐ BDU/Blauer

Line     

Item 
Item  Description  Unit 

Product Code /    

Item Number 

"Estimated"      

Qty of Purchase 

of Each Item     

A

Price per       

"Each" Item     

B

 Total 

"Estimated" 

Purchase 

Amount       

A  x  B = 
Blauer Style #8446‐45 short sleeve MNS with dept.
patches on each sleeve, zipper front,  badge patch and 
name patch. (no badge patch for patrol)
Blauer Style #8436‐45 long sleeve MNS with dept.
patches on each sleeve, badge patch and 
name patch. (no badge patch for patrol)

Safariland ALS # 6360‐8192‐131
STX Tactical S&W M&P 5", w/X200 light

Bianchi AccuMold Triple Threat II double mag
pouch size 02

 $                   ‐   
BDU Short sleeve shirts                     

Silver/Tan 

7 BDU Pants ‐ OD Green 

3

10 Coat ‐ Inner  DELTA ‐ black F5474 Dept. patches sewn on ea.  $                   ‐   

9 Coat ‐ Outer  DELTA ‐ black F5472 Dept. patches sewn on ea.  $                   ‐   

8 BDU Pants ‐ Forest Green Flying Cross Style #47300 Forest Green pant ea.

 $                   ‐   

20  $                    ‐     $                   ‐   

 $                   ‐   

11 Outer Duty Belt  Bianchi AccuMold outer duty belt ea.  $                   ‐   

12 Inner Duty Belt  Bianchi AccuMold inner duty belt ea.

20  $                    ‐   

30  $                    ‐   

14 X26 Taser Holster  Black Hawk BHP taser serpa duty holster ea.  $                   ‐   

13 Holster (Patrol)  ea.  $                   ‐   

6

1  $                    ‐   

 $                    ‐   

 $                   ‐   

15 Mag Pouch (open top)  Bianchi AccuMold Open Top Magazine Holder Dual ea.  $                   ‐   

17 Peerless standard Handcuffs ea.  $                   ‐   

16 Mag Pouch  ea.

6  $                    ‐   

6  $                    ‐   

BDU Long sleeve shirts                     

Silver/Tan 
ea.  $                   ‐   2

 $                   ‐   

10 $                    ‐     $                   ‐   

BDU Short sleeve shirts                     

Silver/Tan 

Blauer #8910W (Women) Short Sleeve with dept. patches 

on each sleeve, zipper installed. (no badge patch or name 

patch) 

ea.

Hand Cuffs 

4
BDU Short sleeve shirts                     

Silver/Tan 

Blauer #8910 (Men) Short Sleeve with dept. patches on 

each sleeve, zipper installed. (no badge patch or name 

patch) 

ea.

150 $                    ‐   

150 $                    ‐   

125  $                    ‐   

75 $                    ‐   

Blauer Style #8810X‐28 OD Green pant ea.

1 ea.

20  $                    ‐   

50  $                    ‐   

20  $                    ‐   



 9. Exhibit A

Request for Bid ‐ CB 16‐10

Employee Uniforms ‐ BDU/Blauer

Line     

Item 
Item  Description  Unit 

Product Code /    

Item Number 

"Estimated"      

Qty of Purchase 

of Each Item     

A

Price per       

"Each" Item     

B

 Total 

"Estimated" 

Purchase 

Amount       

A  x  B = 

"Benton County Sheriff's Dept"
In matching colors 

29 Vest Carrier Panel w/Velcro Back Panel with Velcro Backing  ea.  20  $                    ‐     $                   ‐   

Vest Carriers  Safariland "Oregon City" External Carriers  ea.  20  $                    ‐     $                   ‐   27

28 Vest Carrier Nape Tape w/Velcro Cloth Name Tape with Velcro Backing 

20 Bianchi Stinger Flashlight Holder ea.  $                   ‐   

OC‐10 case

Stinger Flashlight Holder

18 Peerless hinged hand cuffs ea.

20  $                    ‐   

5  $                    ‐   

22 Steel Friction lock baton foam grip 21" ea.  $                   ‐   

Radio Case

ASP

Bianchi Radio Case #7314S 20  $                    ‐   

5  $                    ‐   

31 3" wide in matching colors pair  $                   ‐   

Cpl. Chevrons

Sgt. Chevrons

Bianchi Belt Keepers ( Pack of 4 )  ea.  $                   ‐   Belt Keepers

pair

pairBoots (Patrol & Correction) Danner Acadia ‐ Nylon & Leather

Boots (Patrol & Correction)

 $                   ‐   

 $                   ‐   Danner Acadia ‐ 200gram Insulated ‐ Low top & High top25

26

30 3" wide in matching colors pair  $                   ‐   

25  $                    ‐   

25  $                    ‐   

ea.  20  $                    ‐     $                   ‐   

36 Gloves Comparable to Hatch RHK25 Reactor Hard Knuckle pair

35 Name patch in matching colors ea.

24

21

19

34 ea.in matching colors

Bianchi ASP Baton Holder ea.  $                   ‐   

 $                   ‐   

32 pair  $                   ‐   Shoulder patch

FTO patch

23

 $                   ‐   

ASP Holder

 $                   ‐   

 $                   ‐   

ea.  $                   ‐   

 $                   ‐   Hand Cuffs 

Bianchi AccuMold OC case ea.  $                   ‐   

10  $                    ‐   

5  $                    ‐   

10  $                    ‐   

50  $                    ‐   

12  $                    ‐   

Total Bid Proposal 

50  $                    ‐   

1000  $                    ‐   

5  $                    ‐   

5  $                    ‐   



 

  
 

Exhibit A  
 
 

BASE BID AMOUNT 
 
LUMP SUM (excluding sales tax) $_________________________________________________ 
 
LUMP SUM (excluding sales tax), in words    
 
SUBMITTED ON  _____________________________, 2016 
 
The Vendor by whom this bid is submitted and by whom the Agreement will be entered into, in case this 
bid is accepted, is a Corporation, Partnership, or Individual doing business at: 
 
       
(STREET) 
 
       
(CITY)  (STATE)  (ZIP) 
 
The undersigned hereby certifies and represents to signing this bid on behalf of the Vendor and admits the 
undersigned is authorized to do so by said Vendor. 
 
   
Legal Name of Vendor 
 
   
Signature of Authorized Person 
 
   
Title   



 

 

Exhibit B 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF NON‐COLLUSION 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
County of Benton 

 
 
                      ,  (Vendor), 

being first duly sworn, certifies that the bid above submitted is a genuine bid and not a sham or 

collusive bid or a bid made in the interest or on behalf of any person not therein named; and it is 

further certified that the said Vendor has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any Vendor 

on the above work or supplies to put in a sham bid, or any other person or corporation to refrain 

from submitting a bid; and that said Vendor has not in any manner sought by collusion to secure 

an advantage over other Vendor or Vendors. 

 
 
                       
(Company Name) 
 
 
                       
(Vendor’s Signature) 
 
 
                       
(Typed Name and Title) 
 
 
 
SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me this     day of      , 2016. 
 
 
 
                       
 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of _____________,  

residing at            



 

 

Exhibit C 

ANTI‐DISCRIMINATION CERTIFICATE 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
County of Benton 

 
 
The Vendor hereby stipulates that no person shall be discriminated against in the bidding of the 

supplies and/or materials herein and that the Vendor shall not refuse employment to any person 

related to this Agreement because of such person’s race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, 

handicap or national origin. Any such discrimination shall be deemed a violation of this bid and 

shall render this bid subject to forfeiture. 

 
 
                       
(Company Name) 
 
 
                       
(Vendor's Signature) 
 
 
                       
(Typed Name and Title) 
 
 
   
SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me this     day of      , 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
                       
 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of _____________,  

residing at              

   



 

 

Exhibit D 
 

“SAMPLE” VENDOR PURCHASING AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement is made and entered into by and between BENTON COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its 
principal offices at 620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "County"), and [name of Vendor and 
Vendor’s  legal  form,  i.e.  “Inc.”  or  “LLC”  if  applicable], with  its  principal  offices  at  [Vendor’s  address], 
(hereinafter "Vendor"). 
 
In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows:   
 
1.  Vendor agrees to furnish to the County the products as listed in Exhibit A, for [Employee Uniforms – 
BDU/Blauer and Other Related Items CB 16‐10] in accordance with its bid dated ______________ and to 
supply the product strictly  in accordance with the specifications and requirements set forth therein.   The 
County anticipates purchase of the  items listed  in Exhibit A but does not guarantee any specific minimum 
quantity. Vendor agrees to provide any and all purchases at the same cost per item as provided in Exhibit 
A for the term of the Agreement. In the event the Vendor offers any of the items listed on Exhibit A at a 
sale price to that provided in Exhibit A attached hereto, the Vendor shall automatically provide that sale 
price to the County for said item. Vendor further agrees if it is unable to provide any of the products listed 
herein during the course of this Agreement  it will provide a reasonable substitute of said products to the 
County at the same price.  What constitutes a reasonable substitute of any product provided herein is to be 
determined at the sole discretion of the County. 
 
2.  The Vendor's bid for [Employee Uniforms – BDU/Blauer and Other Related Items CB 16‐10], and 
corresponding documents, all of which are on file in the office of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office, shall 
constitute  a  part of  this Agreement  and  are  by  this  reference  incorporated  and made  a  part of  this 
Agreement as though fully set forth.   Each party expressly covenants and agrees to carry out and fully 
perform each and all of the provisions of these documents upon its or his part to be performed. 
 
3.  County will compensate Vendor for the purchase of goods at the price set forth in Exhibit A with an 
overall  Agreement  amount  not  to  exceed  $______________  including Washington  State  Sales  Tax.    A 
purchase order is required for each order.  The Vendor will supply the quantities of product requested by the 
County during the term of this Agreement. The Vendor may submit invoices to the COUNTY not more than 
once per month during the course of this Agreement.  Invoices shall cover the products supplied to the County 
during the billing period.  The County shall pay the Vendor for products provided in the month following the 
actual delivery of products and will remit payment within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt. 
 
4.  All  deliveries  are  to  be made  F.O.B.  Benton  County  Jail,  7122 W.  Okanogan  Place,  Bldg.  B, 
Kennewick, WA between the hours 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, except on regularly 
observed  state  or  federal  holidays,  unless  otherwise  requested  by  the  County.  Destination  will  be 
determined at time of order. 

 

5.  Each party to this Agreement shall have a representative.  Each party may change its 
representative upon providing written notice to the other party.  The parties' representatives are as 
follows: 

 



 

 

a.  For Vendor:    [Insert name and address] 

 

 

b.  For County:    Lisa Small, Procurement / Contract Coordinator 

7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B 

Kennewick, WA 99336 

509‐735‐6555 Ext. 3880 

Lisa.Small@co.benton.wa.us  

 

6.  Delivery of products cited herein by Vendor must be made within 7 days of order by the County. 
If product can’t be delivered within that period of time for any reason, Vendor must immediately notify 
the County’s above Agreement representative. 
 
7.  The Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County, its appointed and elective officers 
and employees, from and against all  loss or expense, including but not  limited to judgments, settlements, 
attorney's  fees and  costs by  reason of any and all  claims and demands upon  the County,  its elected or 
appointed officials or employees for damages arising out of any act or omission of the Vendor, its officers, 
agents and employees.   This  includes negligence on  the part of  the Vendor and  its officers, agents and 
employees due to violation of any code or regulation. It is further provided that no liability shall attach to the 
County by reason of entering into this Agreement, except as expressly provided herein. 
 
8.  This Agreement shall commence January 1, 2017 and shall continue until December 31, 2018.  
 
9.  The Vendor shall perform the terms of this Agreement using only its bona fide employees or agents, 
and  the obligations and duties of  the Vendor under  this Agreement shall not be assigned, delegated, or 
subcontracted to any other person or firm without the prior express written consent of the County. 
 
10.  Insurance:   
 
  a.   Workers  Compensation:    Vendor  shall  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations.  Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers compensation 
coverage shall be provided for all employees of Vendor and employees of any subvendor or sub‐subvendor.  
Coverage  shall  include  bodily  injury  (including  death)  by  accident  or  disease, which  arises  out  of  or  in 
connection with the performance of this Contract.  Vendor shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 
from the Department of Labor and Industries prior to commencement of work.  Except as prohibited by law, 
Vendor waives all rights of subrogation against the County for recovery of damages to the extent they are 
covered by workers compensation and employers liability. 
 
If  Vendor,  subvendor,  or  sub‐subvendor  fails  to  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations and County incurs fines or is required by law to provide benefits 
to or obtain coverage for such employees, Vendor shall indemnify the County. Indemnity shall include all 
fines, payment of benefits to Vendor or subvendor employees, or their heirs or legal representatives, and 
the  cost of effecting  coverage on behalf of  such employees. Any amount owed  to County by Vendor 



 

 

pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be deducted from any payments owed by County to Vendor 
for performance of this Contract.  
 
  b.  Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability Insurance:  Prior to the start of work 
under  this Contract, Vendor shall maintain commercial general  liability coverage  (policy  form CG0001 or 
equivalent) to protect the Vender from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, personal injury and property 
damage, which may arise from any actions or inactions under this Contract by Vendor or by anyone directly 
employed by or contracting with Vendor.   The minimum commercial general liability insurance limits shall be 
as follows: 
 
  $2,000,000 General Aggregate 
  $2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 
  $1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 
  $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 
The  commercial  general  liability policy will  contain an endorsement naming  the County,  its elected and 
appointed officials, employees and agents as an Additional  Insured and an endorsement  that specifically 
states that Vendor’s commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and not contributory, with any other 
insurance maintained by the County. 
 
The Vender will  provide  commercial  general  liability  coverage  that  does  not  exclude  any  activity  to  be 
performed  in  fulfillment  of  this Contract  and  does  not  exclude  liability  pursuant  to  the  indemnification 
requirement  under  Section  7.    Vendor’s  commercial  general  liability  policy  shall  provide  cross  liability 
coverage, indicating essentially that except with respect to the limits of insurance and any rights or duties 
specifically assigned in this coverage part to the first named insured, this insurance applies as if each named 
insured were the only named insured, and separately to each insured against whom claims are made or suit 
is brought. 
 
Vendor shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 
 

$500,000 Each Accident 
$500,000 Policy Limit for Disease 
$500,000 Each Employee for Disease 

 
  c.  Automobile  Liability:  The  Vendor  shall  maintain,  during  the  life  of  this  Contract, 
Automobile Liability Insurance (ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto (Symbol 1), or 
if the Vendor has no owned autos, hired (Symbol 8) and non‐owned autos (Symbol 9), in the amount of 
not  less  than one million dollars  ($1,000,000) per accident  for Bodily  Injury and Property Damage  to 
protect  Vendor  from  claims which may  arise  from  the  performance  of  this  Contract, whether  such 
operations be by the Vendor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Vendor.  
 
  d.  Other Insurance Provisions: 
 

1. The  Vendor’s  liability  insurance  provisions  shall  be  primary  with  respect  to  any 
insurance or self‐insurance programs covering the County, its elected and appointed 
officers, officials, employees and agents. Vendor’s liability insurance policies must be 
endorsed  to  show  this  primary  coverage.  Any  insurance,  self‐insured  retention, 
deductible or  risk  retention maintained or participated  in by  the County  shall be 



 

 

excess and not contributory to Vendor’s insurance policies. 
 

2. The Vendor’s liability insurance policies shall contain no special limitations on the scope 
of protection afforded to the County as an additional insured.  
 

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect coverage 
provided to the County, its officers, officials, employees or agents. 
 

4. The Vendor’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.  
 

5. The Vendor shall include all subvendors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish 
separate  certificates  and  endorsements  for  each  subvendor.  All  coverage  for 
subvendors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.  
 

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage required by this Contract are 
not  intended  to  be  an  indication  of  exposure  nor  are  they  limitations  on 
indemnification.  
 

7. The  Vendor  shall maintain  all  required  policies  in  force  from  the  time  purchasing 
commences until purchasing  is completed.   Certificates, policies, and endorsements 
expiring  before  completion  of  purchases  shall  be  promptly  replaced.    All  liability 
insurance required under this Contract shall be written on an Occurrence Policy form.   
 

8. Vendor hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect to each  insurance policy 
maintained under this Contract. When required by an insurer, or if a policy condition 
does not permit VENDOR to enter into a pre‐loss agreement to waive subrogation 
without an endorsement, then Vendor agrees to notify the insurer and obtain such 
endorsement.  This  requirement  shall  not  apply  to  any  policy  which  includes  a 
condition expressly prohibiting waiver of subrogation by the insured or which voids 
coverage should the Vendor enter  into such a waiver of subrogation on a pre‐loss 
basis.  

 
9. Compensation and/or payments due to Vendor under this Agreement are expressly 

conditioned  upon  Vendor’s  strict  compliance  with  all  insurance  requirements. 
Payment to Vendor may be suspended in the event of non‐compliance. Upon receipt 
of  evidence  of  Vendor's  compliance,  such  payments  not  otherwise  subject  to 
withholding or set‐off will be released to Vendor. 

 
  e.  Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers:   
 

  All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued by companies authorized to do 
business under the laws of the State of Washington and have a A. M. Best's rating of at least A‐VII 
or  better  in  the  most  recently  published  edition  of  Best’s  Reports.  Any  exception  to  this 
requirement must be reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk Manager. If an 
insurer  is  not  admitted  to  do  business  within Washington  State,  all  insurance  policies  and 
procedures  for  issuing  the  insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 RCW and 284‐15 
WAC.  



 

 

   
1. All insurance to be maintained by the Vendor, other than Professional Liability, Auto 

Liability  and Workmen’s  Compensation,  shall  specifically  include  the  County,  its 
elected officials, employees and volunteers as an “Additional  Insured” by way of 
endorsement and shall not be reduced or canceled without thirty (30) days written 
prior  notice  to  the  County.  Any  insurance  or  self‐insurance maintained  by  the 
COUNTY, its elected and appointed officials, employees and agents shall be excess 
of the Vendor’s insurance and shall not contribute to it. 

 
2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements attached, are to be provided 

to the County’s Contract Representative referenced in Section 5. 
 
3. All written notices under  this Section 10 and notice of  cancellation or  change of 

required  insurance  coverages  shall  be  mailed  to  the  County’s  Contract 
Representative referenced in Section 5.  

 
4. The  Vendor  or  its  broker  shall  provide  a  copy  of  any  and  all  insurance  policies 

specified  in this Contract upon request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the 
following address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A, 
Kennewick, WA 99336.  

 
11.   The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, or waiver of any provision(s) of this 
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice the right of 
the waiving party  to enforce any of  the provisions of  this Agreement at a  later  time.   All waivers of any 
provision(s) of this Agreement shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no action or inaction shall be 
construed to be such a waiver. 
 
12.   This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and delivered within the State 
of Washington, and it is agreed by each party hereto that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of Washington, both as to its interpretation and performance.  Any action at law, suit in equity, or 
judicial proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted and maintained only in any of the courts 
of competent jurisdiction in Benton County, Washington. 
 
13.  The County, to the extent permitted by law, and the Vendor each bind themselves, their partners, 
successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, 
successors, administrators, and assigns of such other party in respect to all covenants to this Agreement. 
 
14.  If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this Agreement to be illegal, 
or invalid in whole or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the parties' 
rights and obligations shall be construed and enforced as  if this Agreement did not contain the particular 
provision held to be invalid.  If it should appear that any provision of this Agreement is in conflict with any 
statutory provision of the State of Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall be deemed 
inoperative and null and void  insofar as  it may be  in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to 
conform to such statutory provision. 
 
15.  The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of its terms and conditions.  Any 
oral  or  written  representations  or  understandings  not  incorporated  in  this  Agreement  are  specifically 
excluded. 



 

 

 
16.  Any notices shall be effective if personally served upon the other party or if mailed by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, to the addresses set out in the Agreement Representatives Section 
of this Agreement.  Notice may also be given by facsimile with the original to follow by regular mail.  Notice 
shall be deemed to be given three days following the date of mailing or immediately, if personally served.  For 
service by facsimile, service shall be effective at the beginning of the next working day. 
 
17.  All Agreement terms, which by their context are clearly intended to survive the termination and/or 
expiration of this Agreement, shall so survive.   
 
18.  The County may terminate the Agreement in whole or in part whenever the County determines, in 
its  sole discretion,  such  termination  is  in  the best  interests of  the County.   Whenever  the Agreement  is 
terminated in accordance with this paragraph, the Vendor shall be entitled to payment for actual products 
received by County at the prices set forth herein prior to termination.  If sufficient funds are not appropriated 
or allocated for payment under this Agreement for any future fiscal period, the County will not be obligated 
to make payments for purchases for amounts incurred after the end of the current fiscal period.  No penalty 
or expense shall accrue to the County in the event this provision applies. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement this _____ day of ____________ 2016. 
 
 
BENTON COUNTY           [VENDOR’S BUSINESS NAME] 
              
           
 
___________________________________    ___________________________________ 
Shon Small, Chairman          Date      Name/Title                                            Date 
Benton County Commissioner 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
By: ________________________________   
       Ryan J. Lukson 
       Civil Deputy Prosecuting Attorney   
 

 
   





 

 

 
Exhibit F 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 
IN  THE MATTER  OF  PROVIDING  NOTICE  OF  THE  LOWEST  RESPONSIBLE  BIDDER  FOR  THE 
PURCHASE OF EMPLOYEE UNIFORMS – BDU/BLAUER AND OTHER RELATED ITEMS (CB 16‐10) 
 
WHEREAS,  the Board of Benton County Commissioners  solicited bids  for  the procurement of 
employee uniforms – BDU/BLAUER and other related items per Resolution 2016‐xxx; and 
 
WHEREAS, representatives of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office received and opened [number 
of bids] on [date] as provided in the invitation to bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, the bids were from the following Bidders: 
[list bidder’s, bid amount ];and 
 
WHEREAS, the representatives of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office reviewed the bid proposals 
and  recommend  awarding  the  vendor  purchasing  agreement  to  [vendor’s  business  name]; 
NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE  IT  RESOLVED,  the  Board  of  Benton  County  Commissioners,  Benton  County, Washington 
hereby  has  deemed  [Vendor’s  Business Name]  to  be  the  lowest  responsible  bidder  for  the 
purchase of employee uniforms – BDU/Blauer and other related items and shall be required to 
enter  into an Agreement  in the form of Exhibit D to the Benton County Bureau of Corrections 
Invitation for Bid CB 16‐10 within ten (10) days of this notice. 
 
 
Dated this  _____________ day of __________________, 2016. 
 

  ___________________________                
  Chairman of the Board 

  
  ___________________________              

  Member 
 

  ___________________________                
  Member 

  
  Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 

Attest....................................................... 
                    Clerk of the Board 



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Sept. 13, 2016       
Subject: IFB – Paper & Glove 

Supplies  
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  

   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract ___ _  
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
Per Resolution 2012-677, Section 2.2.3 Purchases or Leases of $25,000 or more, “purchases or leases 
of supplies, materials or equipment over twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) shall follow the “Formal 
Competitive Bid” requirements as established in RCW 36.23.245, unless otherwise exempt under RCW 
39.04.280”.  
 
To comply with Resolution 2012-677, the Sheriff’s Office is required to follow the formal competitive bid 
process for the procurement of paper & glove supplies for the Benton County Bureau of Corrections and 
Sheriff’s Patrol for calendar years 2017/2018.  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM  
 
Ryan Lukson, DPA  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Invitation for Bids (IFB) for the procurement of Paper and Glove 
Supplies - CB 16-07.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Expenditures will be included in the 2017/2018 budget.  
 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
ll. Solicitation of Bids for Paper & Glove Supplies



Orig: Sheriff’s Office Prepared by: L. Small 
cc:  CB 16-07 file 

RESOLUTION 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE SOLICITATION OF BIDS FOR THE 
PROCUREMENT OF PAPER AND GLOVE SUPPLIES FOR THE BENTON COUNTY 
BUREAU OF CORRECTIONS AND SHERIFF’S PATROL  

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, 
Washington, the invitation for bids and corresponding documents for the procurement of paper 
and glove supplies for the Benton County Bureau of Corrections and Sheriff’s Patrol be advertised 
pursuant to the provisions of RCW 36.32.245, as more fully described in the invitation for bids 
CB 16-07 attached hereto; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the bids will be received by the Benton County Bureau of 
Corrections, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336 until 5:00 PM on 
Wednesday, October 5, 2016 and not thereafter, and will be publicly opened by representatives 
of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office at 9:00 AM (PST) on Thursday, October 6, 2016 at 7122 
W. Okanogan Place Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336 in the Jail Conference Room.  

Dated this  _____________ day of __________________, 2016. 

___________________________
 Chairman of the Board 

___________________________              
 Member 

___________________________
 Member 

Constituting the Board of Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington 

Attest....................................................... 
Clerk of the Board 



 

  
 

    
  

                                          
September 13, 2016 
 

INVITATION FOR BIDS (IFB) – COUNTY BID 16‐07 
   
BIDS FOR:  PAPER AND GLOVE SUPPLIES FOR THE BENTON COUNTY BUREAU OF 

CORRECTIONS AND SHERIFF’S PATROL  
DEADLINE FOR  
BID SUBMITTAL:  WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 5, 2016 UNTIL 5:00 P.M.,  
  BENTON COUNTY BUREAU OF CORRECTIONS,  
  7122 W OKANOGAN PLACE, BLDG. B, KENNEWICK, WA 99336     
  NO BIDS WILL BE ACCEPTED AFTER THAT DATE AND TIME.   
  
 
Benton County (County)  is soliciting bids for the purchase of Paper and Glove Supplies for the 
Benton County Bureau of Corrections (Jail) and Patrol, 7122 W. Okanogan Pl., Bldg. B, Kennewick, 
WA 99336 from any and all potential vendors.  The County invites you to submit a bid to provide 
products and supplies that will meet or exceed the specifications set forth in Exhibit A – Vendor 
Bid.  Although the County anticipates purchasing the quantity of products provided in Exhibit A, 
those quantities are only estimates.  As such, the County makes no guarantee as to the quantity 
of products provided in Exhibit A it will purchase over the term of the Agreement.  By submitting 
a bid, Vendor agrees to provide any and all purchases at the same cost per item as provided in 
Exhibit A for the two (2) year term of the Agreement commencing January 1, 2017. In the event 
Vendor offers any of the  items  listed  in Exhibit A at a sale price to that provided  in Exhibit A, 
Vendor shall provide that sale price to the County for said item.  Vendor must provide all items 
listed in Exhibit A to be considered a responsive bidder. Failure to provide a price for any item 
will result in automatic bid disqualification. Any and all orders for products listed in Exhibit A will 
occur throughout the term of the Agreement. 

 

BIDDERS’ RECEIPT OF THE IFB PACKAGE 

a) The below Procurement/Contract Coordinator of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office is the 
only  individual  authorized  to  provide  the  IFB  package  to  interested  companies  or 
individuals.  Bidders who are working from an IFB package obtained from any other source 
may  be  working  from  an  incomplete  set  of  documents.  The  County  assumes  no 
responsibility for a bid’s errors, omissions or misinterpretations resulting from a bidder’s 
use of an incomplete IFB package. 
 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 



  
 

b) Bidders who have received the IFB package from a source other than the Sheriff’s Office 
Procurement/Contract Coordinator, or who have downloaded the IFB package from the 
County’s website, are advised to contact Lisa Small of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office 
at  (509)  735‐6555  ext.  3880  to  provide  their  company’s  name,    address,  telephone 
number,  email  and  contact  name.  This  will  ensure  that  the  bidder  will  receive  all 
communication regarding the IFB, such as amendments and clarifications. 

 
Your bid should be submitted in the official bid format as provided in Exhibit A and placed in a 
SEALED ENVELOPE marked “SEALED BID – Paper and Glove Supplies CB 16‐07”.   Bids may be 
mailed or hand delivered to the Benton County Bureau of Corrections, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, 
Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336 until 5:00 PM (PST) Wednesday, October 5, 2016.  NO BIDS WILL 
BE ACCEPTED AFTER THAT DATE AND TIME. Emailed and faxed bids are not acceptable and will 
not be considered. The bids will be publicly opened by representatives of  the Benton County 
Sheriff’s Office at 9:00 AM (PST) on Thursday, October 6, 2016 at 7122 W. Okanogan Place Bldg. 
B, Kennewick, WA 99336 in the Jail Conference Room. 
    
1. The County reserves the right to reject any or all bids for good cause pursuant to RCW 

36.32.245 and to waive informalities in the bidding process.  

2. This document and the materials enclosed herewith constitute an invitation to submit 
bids only and do not  represent an offer by  the County.   Bids submitted  in  response 
hereto shall constitute offers to sell the supplies meeting the County’s specifications.  If 
the  County  does  not  exercise  its  option  to  reject  any  or  all  bids  pursuant  to  RCW 
36.32.245,  the  County  will  enter  into  a  resolution  providing  notice  of  the  lowest 
responsible bidder in the form of Exhibit F, accepting the bid of the lowest responsible 
bidder.  Upon entry of the resolution, the lowest responsible bidder shall be required 
to enter into an Agreement in the form of Exhibit D within 10 days of said resolution. 

3. The County is not liable for any costs incurred by bidders prior to issuance of or entering 
into  an  Agreement.  Costs  associated  with  developing  the  bid,  preparing  for  oral 
presentations, and any other expenses  incurred by the bidder  in responding to this IFB 
are entirely the responsibility of the bidder, and shall not be reimbursed in any manner 
by the County. 

4. Accuracy for all mathematical and number entries to Exhibit A is the sole responsibility of 
the bidder. Benton County will not be responsible for errors made by the bidder to Exhibit 
A. 

5. Bidders shall submit specifications of their bid, showing their compliance with the Jail’s 
requirements on the enclosed Vendor Bid Form, referenced as Exhibit A, or in a format 
matching the forms provided. All portions thereof must be completed in ink or mechanical 
means, setting forth all information requested.  At a MINIMUM, each of the items listed 
in the Vendor Bid Form should be addressed.  Any additional features promoted by the 
bidder should emphasize the benefits, but also address the  impact of such features on 
the price quoted.   

6. Bids  must  be  executed  by  a  person  or  persons  legally  authorized  to  execute  such 
documents on behalf of the bidding entity. 





  
 

Exhibit A         
VENDOR BID FORM 

 
 
PROJECT IDENTIFICATION:   Paper and Glove Supplies for the Benton County Bureau of 

Corrections (Jail) and Patrol           
 
THIS BID SUBMITTED TO:    Benton County Bureau of Corrections  
          Attn: Lisa Small 
          7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B 
          Kennewick, WA 99336 
  
1. The undersigned Vendor proposes and agrees that if this bid is accepted it will enter into an 

Agreement with the County  in the form reflected  in Exhibit D to this  Invitation for Bids to 
supply all  items as specified or  indicated  in the Agreement for the prices and amounts set 
forth therein.  

 
2.  The Vendor accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Invitation for Bids.   This bid will 

remain open for up to 30 days after the day of submission.   
 
3.  In  submitting  this bid,  the Vendor  represents,  as more  fully  set  forth  in  Exhibit D  to  the 

Invitation for Bids, that: 
 

a)  The Vendor has examined copies of the entire Invitation for Bids, all exhibits thereto, and 
of the following addenda, if issued.  Receipt of addenda is hereby acknowledged: 

 
    Date:      Addenda Number: 
 
    ___________                     
 
    ___________             
 

b)  This bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed person, 
firm, or corporation and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement or rules of 
any  group,  association,  organization,  or  corporation;  the  Vendor  has  not  directly  or 
indirectly induced or solicited any other Vendor to submit a false or sham bid; the Vendor 
has not solicited or induced any person, firm, or corporation to refrain from bidding; and 
the Vendor has not sought by collusion to obtain for himself any advantage over any other 
vendor or over the County. 

 
4.  The Vendor will provide the products for the prices and amounts as set forth in paragraph 9 

below. 
 
5.  The Vendor agrees to supply the products in accordance with the terms and conditions set 

forth in Exhibit D.   
 
  



  
 

Exhibit A  
 
 
6.  The following documents are attached to and must be submitted in order for the bid to be 

considered: 
   

(a)  Affidavit of Non‐Collusion. 
 
(b) Anti‐Discrimination Certificate. 

 
7.  Communications  concerning  this  bid  shall  be  addressed  to  the  address  of  the  Vendor 

indicated below: 
 

__________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone____________________________Fax______________________________ 

 
 
8.  The terms used in this bid that are defined in Exhibit D have the meanings assigned to them 

in Exhibit D. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
   



Exhibit A

9.

Exhibit A

Request for Bid ‐ CB 16‐07

Paper and Glove Supplies

Line    

Item 
Item  Description 

Desired        

Packaging   

Product Code / 

Item Number 

"Estimated" 

Purchase Amount 

A

Cost per Desired 

Packaging        

B

Total "Approx." 

Purchase Amount     

A  x  B =

40 

400 

150 

96 

20 6 Case  $                               ‐   

5 Case  $                               ‐   Trash bags 33 gal clear; 250/roll; 25 rolls/case  

Trash bags 12-16 gal clear; 1000/roll; 20 rolls/case $                        ‐   

 $                               ‐   

7 Roll  $                               ‐   2 mil poly tubing clear; 12 in  x  3,000 ft  10  $                        ‐   

4 Case  $                               ‐   White roll paper towels
8 inch X 800 feet; large core;                 

6 rolls/case

1 Case  $                               ‐   

3 Case  $                               ‐   

2 Case  $                               ‐   

Toilet tissue

BW54000 Ecosoft Bath Tissue 2Ply       

96RLS/500/case                                    

sheet size 4‐3/8 X 3‐3/4  36lbs/case

Paper towels, multi fold
white; 9.125 x 9.5 in, 250/bndl;  16 

bndls/case 
Nitrile gloves / blue / 5 mil / 

Medical Examination 

multiple sizes (S, M, L, XL, 2XL)              

10bx/100/case

1,650  $                        ‐   

$                        ‐   

$                        ‐   

$                        ‐   

$                        ‐   



 

  
 

Exhibit A  
 
 

BASE BID AMOUNT 
 
LUMP SUM (excluding sales tax) $_________________________________________________ 
 
LUMP SUM (excluding sales tax), in words    
 
SUBMITTED ON _____________________________, 2016 
 
The Vendor by whom this bid is submitted and by whom the Agreement will be entered into, in case this 
bid is accepted, is a Corporation, Partnership, or Individual doing business at: 
 
       
(STREET) 
 
       
(CITY)  (STATE)  (ZIP) 
 
The undersigned hereby certifies and represents to signing this bid on behalf of the Vendor and admits the 
undersigned is authorized to do so by said Vendor. 
 
   
Legal Name of Vendor 
 
   
Signature of Authorized Person 
 
   
Title   



 

 

Exhibit B 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF NON‐COLLUSION 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
County of Benton 

 
 
                      ,  (Vendor), 

being first duly sworn, certifies that the bid above submitted is a genuine bid and not a sham or 

collusive bid or a bid made in the interest or on behalf of any person not therein named; and it is 

further certified that the said Vendor has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any Vendor 

on the above work or supplies to put in a sham bid, or any other person or corporation to refrain 

from submitting a bid; and that said Vendor has not in any manner sought by collusion to secure 

an advantage over other Vendor or Vendors. 

 
 
                       
(Company Name) 
 
 
                       
(Vendor’s Signature) 
 
 
                       
(Typed Name and Title) 
 
 
SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me this     day of      , 2016. 
 
 
 
 
                       
 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of _____________,  

residing at            



 

 

Exhibit C 

ANTI‐DISCRIMINATION CERTIFICATE 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
County of Benton 

 
 
The Vendor hereby stipulates that no person shall be discriminated against in the bidding of the 

supplies and/or materials herein and that the Vendor shall not refuse employment to any person 

related to this Agreement because of such person’s race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, 

handicap or national origin.  Any such discrimination shall be deemed a violation of this bid and 

shall render this bid subject to forfeiture. 

 
 
                       
(Company Name) 
 
 
                       
(Vendor's Signature) 
 
 
                       
(Typed Name and Title) 
 
 
   
SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me this     day of      , 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
                       
 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of _____________,  

residing at              

   



 

 

Exhibit D 
 

“SAMPLE” VENDOR PURCHASING AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement is made and entered into by and between BENTON COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its 
principal offices at 620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "County"), and [name of Vendor and 
Vendor’s  legal  form,  i.e. “Inc.” or “LLC”  if applicable],  (hereinafter “Vendor) with  its principal offices at 
[Vendor’s address], (hereinafter "Vendor"). 
 
In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows:   
 
1.  Vendor agrees  to  furnish  to  the County  the products as  listed  in Exhibit A,  for  [Paper and Glove 
Supplies CB 16‐07] in accordance with its bid dated _______________and to supply the product strictly in 
accordance with the specifications and requirements set forth therein.  The County anticipates purchasing 
the quantity of products provided  in  Exhibit A, but does not  guarantee  any  specific minimum quantity.  
Vendor agrees to provide any and all purchases at the same cost per item as provided in Exhibit A for the 
term of the Agreement. In the event the Vendor offers any of the items listed on Exhibit A at a sale price 
to that provided in Exhibit A attached hereto, the Vendor shall automatically provide that sale price to the 
County for said item. Vendor further agrees if it is unable to provide any of the products listed herein during 
the course of this Agreement  it will provide a reasonable substitute of said products to the County at the 
same price.  What constitutes a reasonable substitute of any product provided herein is to be determined at 
the sole discretion of the County. 
 
2.  The Vendor's bid for [Paper and Glove Supplies CB 16‐07], and corresponding documents, all of 
which  are  on  file  in  the  office  of  the  Benton  County  Sheriff’s Office,  shall  constitute  a  part  of  this 
Agreement and are by this reference incorporated and made a part of this Agreement as though fully set 
forth.   Each party expressly  covenants and agrees  to  carry out and  fully perform each and all of  the 
provisions of these documents upon its or his part to be performed. 
 
3.  County will compensate Vendor for the purchase of goods at the price set forth in Exhibit A with an 
overall Agreement amount not to exceed $_____________ including Washington State Sales Tax.  A purchase 
order is required for each order.  The Vendor will supply the quantities of product requested by the County 
during the term of this Agreement. The Vendor may submit invoices to the COUNTY not more than once per 
month during the course of this Agreement.  Invoices shall cover the products supplied to the County during 
the billing period.  The County shall pay the Vendor for products provided in the month following the actual 
delivery of products and will remit payment within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt. 
 
4.  All  deliveries  are  to  be made  F.O.B.  Benton  County  Jail,  7122 W.  Okanogan  Place,  Bldg.  B, 
Kennewick, WA 99336 between the hours 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, except on 
regularly observed state or federal holidays, unless otherwise requested by the County. Destination will 
be determined at time of order. 
 
5.  Each party to this Agreement shall have a representative.  Each party may change its 
representative upon providing written notice to the other party.  The parties' representatives are as 
follows: 
 

 



 

 

 

a.  For Vendor:    [Insert name and address] 

 

 

b.  For County:    Lisa Small, Procurement/Contract Coordinator  

7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B 

Kennewick, WA 99336 

509‐735‐6555 Ext. 3880 

Lisa.Small@co.benton.wa.us  

 

6.  Delivery of products cited herein by Vendor must be made within 7 days of order by the County. 
If product can’t be delivered within that period of time for any reason, Vendor must immediately notify 
the County’s above Agreement representative. 
 
7.  The Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County, its appointed and elective officers 
and employees, from and against all  loss or expense, including but not  limited to judgments, settlements, 
attorney's  fees and  costs by  reason of any and all  claims and demands upon  the County,  its elected or 
appointed officials or employees for damages arising out of any act or omission of the Vendor, its officers, 
agents and employees.   This  includes negligence on  the part of  the Vendor and  its officers, agents and 
employees due to violation of any code or regulation. It is further provided that no liability shall attach to the 
County by reason of entering into this Agreement, except as expressly provided herein. 
 
8.  This Agreement shall commence January 1, 2017 and shall continue until December 31, 2018.  
 
9.  The Vendor shall perform the terms of this Agreement using only its bona fide employees or agents, 
and  the obligations and duties of  the Vendor under  this Agreement shall not be assigned, delegated, or 
subcontracted to any other person or firm without the prior express written consent of the County. 
 
10.  Insurance:   
 
  a.   Workers  Compensation:    Vendor  shall  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations.  Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers compensation 
coverage shall be provided for all employees of Vendor and employees of any subvendor or sub‐subvendor.  
Coverage  shall  include  bodily  injury  (including  death)  by  accident  or  disease, which  arises  out  of  or  in 
connection with the performance of this Contract.  Vendor shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 
from the Department of Labor and Industries prior to commencement of work.  Except as prohibited by law, 
Vendor waives all rights of subrogation against the County for recovery of damages to the extent they are 
covered by workers compensation and employers liability. 
 
If  Vendor,  subvendor,  or  sub‐subvendor  fails  to  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations and County incurs fines or is required by law to provide benefits 
to or obtain coverage for such employees, Vendor shall indemnify the County. Indemnity shall include all 
fines, payment of benefits to Vendor or subvendor employees, or their heirs or legal representatives, and 



 

 

the  cost of effecting  coverage on behalf of  such employees. Any amount owed  to County by Vendor 
pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be deducted from any payments owed by County to Vendor 
for performance of this Contract.   
 
  b.  Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability Insurance:  Prior to the start of work 
under  this Contract, Vendor shall maintain commercial general  liability coverage  (policy  form CG0001 or 
equivalent) to protect the Vender from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, personal injury and property 
damage, which may arise from any actions or inactions under this Contract by Vendor or by anyone directly 
employed by or contracting with Vendor.   The minimum commercial general liability insurance limits shall be 
as follows: 
 
  $2,000,000 General Aggregate 
  $2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 
  $1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 
  $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 
The  commercial  general  liability policy will  contain an endorsement naming  the County,  its elected and 
appointed officials, employees and agents as an Additional  Insured and an endorsement  that specifically 
states that Vendor’s commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and not contributory, with any other 
insurance maintained by the County. 
 
The Vender will  provide  commercial  general  liability  coverage  that  does  not  exclude  any  activity  to  be 
performed  in  fulfillment  of  this Contract  and  does  not  exclude  liability  pursuant  to  the  indemnification 
requirement  under  Section  7.    Vendor’s  commercial  general  liability  policy  shall  provide  cross  liability 
coverage, indicating essentially that except with respect to the limits of insurance and any rights or duties 
specifically assigned in this coverage part to the first named insured, this insurance applies as if each named 
insured were the only named insured, and separately to each insured against whom claims are made or suit 
is brought. 
 
Vendor shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 
 

$500,000 Each Accident 
$500,000 Policy Limit for Disease 
$500,000 Each Employee for Disease 

 
  c.  Automobile  Liability:  The  Vendor  shall  maintain,  during  the  life  of  this  Contract, 
Automobile Liability Insurance (ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto (Symbol 1), or 
if the Vendor has no owned autos, hired (Symbol 8) and non‐owned autos (Symbol 9), in the amount of 
not  less  than one million dollars  ($1,000,000) per accident  for Bodily  Injury and Property Damage  to 
protect  Vendor  from  claims which may  arise  from  the  performance  of  this  Contract, whether  such 
operations be by the Vendor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Vendor.  
 
  d.  Other Insurance Provisions: 
 

1. The  Vendor’s  liability  insurance  provisions  shall  be  primary  with  respect  to  any 
insurance or self‐insurance programs covering the County, its elected and appointed 
officers, officials, employees and agents. Vendor’s liability insurance policies must be 
endorsed  to  show  this  primary  coverage.  Any  insurance,  self‐insured  retention, 



 

 

deductible or  risk  retention maintained or participated  in by  the County  shall be 
excess and not contributory to Vendor’s insurance policies. 
 

2. The Vendor’s liability insurance policies shall contain no special limitations on the scope 
of protection afforded to the County as an additional insured.  
 

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect coverage 
provided to the County, its officers, officials, employees or agents. 
 

4. The Vendor’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.  
 

5. The Vendor shall include all subvendors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish 
separate  certificates  and  endorsements  for  each  subvendor.  All  coverage  for 
subvendors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.  
 

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage required by this Contract are 
not  intended  to  be  an  indication  of  exposure  nor  are  they  limitations  on 
indemnification.  
 

7. The  Vendor  shall maintain  all  required  policies  in  force  from  the  time  purchasing 
commences until purchasing  is completed.   Certificates, policies, and endorsements 
expiring  before  completion  of  purchases  shall  be  promptly  replaced.    All  liability 
insurance required under this Contract shall be written on an Occurrence Policy form.   
 

8. Vendor hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect to each  insurance policy 
maintained under this Contract. When required by an insurer, or if a policy condition 
does not permit VENDOR to enter into a pre‐loss agreement to waive subrogation 
without an endorsement, then Vendor agrees to notify the insurer and obtain such 
endorsement.  This  requirement  shall  not  apply  to  any  policy  which  includes  a 
condition expressly prohibiting waiver of subrogation by the insured or which voids 
coverage should the Vendor enter  into such a waiver of subrogation on a pre‐loss 
basis.  

 
9. Compensation and/or payments due to Vendor under this Agreement are expressly 

conditioned  upon  Vendor’s  strict  compliance  with  all  insurance  requirements. 
Payment to Vendor may be suspended in the event of non‐compliance. Upon receipt 
of  evidence  of  Vendor's  compliance,  such  payments  not  otherwise  subject  to 
withholding or set‐off will be released to Vendor. 

 
  e.  Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers:   
 

  All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued by companies authorized to do 
business under the laws of the State of Washington and have a A. M. Best's rating of at least A‐VII 
or  better  in  the  most  recently  published  edition  of  Best’s  Reports.  Any  exception  to  this 
requirement must be reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk Manager. If an 
insurer  is  not  admitted  to  do  business  within Washington  State,  all  insurance  policies  and 



 

 

procedures  for  issuing  the  insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 RCW and 284‐15 
WAC.  
   

1. All insurance to be maintained by the Vendor, other than Professional Liability, Auto 
Liability  and Workmen’s  Compensation,  shall  specifically  include  the  County,  its 
elected officials, employees and volunteers as an “Additional  Insured” by way of 
endorsement and shall not be reduced or canceled without thirty (30) days written 
prior  notice  to  the  County.  Any  insurance  or  self‐insurance maintained  by  the 
COUNTY, its elected and appointed officials, employees and agents shall be excess 
of the Vendor’s insurance and shall not contribute to it. 

 
2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements attached, are to be provided 

to the County’s Contract Representative referenced in Section 5. 
 
3. All written notices under  this Section 10 and notice of  cancellation or  change of 

required  insurance  coverages  shall  be  mailed  to  the  County’s  Contract 
Representative referenced in Section 5.  

 
4. The  Vendor  or  its  broker  shall  provide  a  copy  of  any  and  all  insurance  policies 

specified  in this Contract upon request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the 
following address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A, 
Kennewick, WA 99336.  

   
11.   The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, or waiver of any provision(s) of this 
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice the right of 
the waiving party  to enforce any of  the provisions of  this Agreement at a  later  time.   All waivers of any 
provision(s) of this Agreement shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no action or inaction shall be 
construed to be such a waiver. 
 
12.   This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and delivered within the State 
of Washington, and it is agreed by each party hereto that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of Washington, both as to its interpretation and performance.  Any action at law, suit in equity, or 
judicial proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted and maintained only in any of the courts 
of competent jurisdiction in Benton County, Washington. 
 
13.  The County, to the extent permitted by law, and the Vendor each bind themselves, their partners, 
successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, 
successors, administrators, and assigns of such other party in respect to all covenants to this Agreement. 
 
14.  If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this Agreement to be illegal, 
or invalid in whole or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the parties' 
rights and obligations shall be construed and enforced as  if this Agreement did not contain the particular 
provision held to be invalid.  If it should appear that any provision of this Agreement is in conflict with any 
statutory provision of the State of Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall be deemed 
inoperative and null and void  insofar as  it may be  in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to 
conform to such statutory provision. 
 



 

 

15.  The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of its terms and conditions.  Any 
oral  or  written  representations  or  understandings  not  incorporated  in  this  Agreement  are  specifically 
excluded. 
 
16.  Any notices shall be effective if personally served upon the other party or if mailed by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, to the addresses set out in the Agreement Representatives Section 
of this Agreement.  Notice may also be given by facsimile with the original to follow by regular mail.  Notice 
shall be deemed to be given three days following the date of mailing or immediately, if personally served.  For 
service by facsimile, service shall be effective at the beginning of the next working day. 
 
17.  All Agreement terms, which by their context are clearly intended to survive the termination and/or 
expiration of this Agreement, shall so survive.   
 
18.  The County may terminate the Agreement in whole or in part whenever the County determines, in 
its  sole discretion,  such  termination  is  in  the best  interests of  the County.   Whenever  the Agreement  is 
terminated in accordance with this paragraph, the Vendor shall be entitled to payment for actual products 
received by County at the prices set forth herein prior to termination.  If sufficient funds are not appropriated 
or allocated for payment under this Agreement for any future fiscal period, the County will not be obligated 
to make payments for purchases for amounts incurred after the end of the current fiscal period.  No penalty 
or expense shall accrue to the County in the event this provision applies. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement this _____ day of ____________ 2016. 
 
 
BENTON COUNTY           [VENDOR’S BUSINESS NAME] 
              
           
 
___________________________________    ___________________________________ 
Shon Small, Chairman          Date      Name/Title                                            Date 
Benton County Commissioner 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
By: ________________________________   
       Ryan J. Lukson 
       Civil Deputy Prosecuting Attorney   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
Exhibit F  

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 
IN  THE MATTER  OF  PROVIDING  NOTICE  OF  THE  LOWEST  RESPONSIBLE  BIDDER  FOR  THE 
PURCHASE OF PAPER AND GLOVE SUPPLIES (CB 16‐07) 
 
WHEREAS,  the Board of Benton County Commissioners  solicited bids  for  the procurement of 
paper and glove supplies per Resolution 2016‐xxx; and 
 
WHEREAS, representatives of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office received and opened [number 
of bids] on [date] as provided in the invitation to bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, the bids were from the following Bidders: 
[list bidder’s, bid amount ];and 
 
WHEREAS, the representatives of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office reviewed the bid proposals 
and  recommend  awarding  the  vendor  purchasing  agreement  to  [vendor’s  business  name]; 
NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE  IT  RESOLVED,  the  Board  of  Benton  County  Commissioners,  Benton  County, Washington 
hereby  has  deemed  [Vendor’s  Business Name]  to  be  the  lowest  responsible  bidder  for  the 
purchase of paper and glove supplies and shall be required to enter  into an Agreement  in the 
form of Exhibit D with Benton County in accordance with the Paper and Glove Supplies Invitation 
for Bid CB 16‐07 within ten (10) days of this notice. 
 
Dated this  _____________ day of __________________, 2016. 

 
 

  ___________________________                
  Chairman of the Board 

  
  ___________________________              

  Member 
 

  ___________________________                
  Member  

Attest....................................................... 
  Clerk of the Board                            Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 

                     



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Sept. 13, 2016       
Subject: IFB – Inmate Supplies 
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  

   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract ___ _  
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
Per Resolution 2012-677, Section 2.2.3 Purchases or Leases of $25,000 or more, “purchases or leases 
of supplies, materials or equipment over twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) shall follow the “Formal 
Competitive Bid” requirements as established in RCW 36.23.245, unless otherwise exempt under RCW 
39.04.280”.  
 
To comply with Resolution 12-677, the Sheriff’s Office is required to follow the formal competitive bid 
process for the procurement of inmate supplies, including but not limited to, hygiene products, inmate 
uniforms, linens, and mattresses for the Benton County Bureau of Corrections for calendar years 
2017/2018.  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM  
 
Ryan Lukson, DPA  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Invitation for Bids (IFB) for the procurement of Inmate Supplies - CB 
16-09.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Expenditures will be part of the 2017/2018 budget.  
 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
mm Solicitation of Bids for Inmate Supplies



Orig: Sheriff’s Office    Prepared by: L. Small  
cc:  CB 16-09 file 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE SOLICITATION OF BIDS FOR THE 
PROCUREMENT OF INMATE SUPPLIES FOR THE BENTON COUNTY BUREAU 
OF CORRECTIONS  
 
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton 
County, Washington, that attached invitation for bids and corresponding documents for the 
procurement of inmate supplies, including but not limited to, hygiene products, inmate 
uniforms, linens, and mattresses for the Benton County Bureau of Corrections shall be prepared 
and advertised pursuant to the provisions of RCW 36.32.245, as more fully described in the 
invitation for bids CB 16-09 attached hereto; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the bids will be received by the Benton County Bureau of 
Corrections, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336 until 5:00 PM on 
Wednesday, October 5, 2016 and not thereafter, and will be publicly opened by representatives 
of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office at 9:00 AM (PST) on Thursday, October 6, 2016 at 7122 
W. Okanogan Place Bldg. A, Kennewick, WA 99336 in the Jail Conference Room.  
 
 
 
Dated this  _____________ day of __________________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 

 ___________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 

 
  

 ___________________________              
 Member 

 
 

 ___________________________                
 Member 

  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                  Clerk of the Board 
 

 



 

  
 

    
  

                                          
September 13, 2016 
 

INVITATION FOR BIDS (IFB) – COUNTY BID 16‐09 
 
BIDS FOR:  INMATE SUPPLIES FOR THE BENTON COUNTY BUREAU OF CORRECTIONS 
DEADLINE FOR  
BID SUBMITTAL:  WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 5, 2016 UNTIL 5:00 P.M.,  
  BENTON COUNTY BUREAU OF CORRECTIONS,  
  7122 W OKANOGAN PLACE, BLDG. B, KENNEWICK, WA 99336     
  NO BIDS WILL BE ACCEPTED AFTER THAT DATE AND TIME.   
 
 

Benton County  (County)  is  soliciting bids  for  the purchase of  Inmate Supplies  for  the Benton 
County Bureau of Corrections (Jail), 7122 W. Okanogan Pl., Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336 from 
any and all potential vendors.  The County invites you to submit a bid to provide products and 
supplies that will meet or exceed the specifications set forth in Exhibit A – Vendor Bid.  Although 
the County anticipates purchasing the quantity of products provided in Exhibit A, those quantities 
are only estimates.   As  such,  the County makes no guarantee as  to  the quantity of products 
provided in Exhibit A it will purchase over the term of the Agreement.  By submitting a bid Vendor 
agrees to provide any and all purchases at the same cost per item as provided in Exhibit A for the 
two (2) year term of the Agreement commencing January 1, 2017. In the event Vendor offers any 
of the items listed in Exhibit A at a sale price to that provided in Exhibit A, Vendor shall provide 
that sale price to the County for said item.  Vendor must provide all items listed in Exhibit A to be 
considered a responsive bidder. Failure to provide a price for any item will result in automatic bid 
disqualification. Any and all orders for products listed in Exhibit A will occur throughout the term 
of the Agreement. 

 
BIDDERS’ RECEIPT OF THE IFB PACKAGE 

a) The below Procurement/Contract Coordinator of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office is the 
only  individual  authorized  to  provide  the  IFB  package  to  interested  companies  or 
individuals.  Bidders who are working from an IFB package obtained from any other source 
may  be  working  from  an  incomplete  set  of  documents.  The  County  assumes  no 
responsibility for a bid’s errors, omissions or misinterpretations resulting from a bidder’s 
use of an incomplete IFB package. 
 

b) Bidders who have received the IFB package from a source other than the Sheriff’s Office 
Procurement/Contract Coordinator, or who have downloaded the IFB package from the 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 



  
 

County’s website, are advised to contact Lisa Small of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office 
at  (509)  735‐6555  ext.  3880  to  provide  their  company’s  name,    address,  telephone 
number,  email,  and  contact  name.  This  will  ensure  that  the  bidder  will  receive  all 
communication regarding the IFB such as Amendments and Clarifications. 

 

Your bid should be submitted in the official bid format as provided in Exhibit A and placed in a 
SEALED ENVELOPE marked “SEALED BID – Inmate Supplies CB 16‐09.”  Bids may be mailed or 
hand delivered to the Benton County Bureau of Corrections, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B, 
Kennewick, WA 99336 until 5:00 PM  (PST) Wednesday, October 5, 2016.   NO BIDS WILL BE 
ACCEPTED AFTER THAT DATE AND TIME. Emailed and faxed bids are not acceptable and will not 
be considered. The bids will be publicly opened by representatives of the Benton County Sheriff’s 
Office  at  9:00 AM  (PST)  on  Thursday, October  6,  2016  at  7122 W. Okanogan  Place  Bldg.  B, 
Kennewick, WA 99336 in the Jail Conference Room. 
    
1. The County reserves the right to reject any or all bids for good cause pursuant to RCW 

36.32.245 and to waive informalities in the bidding process.  

2. This document and the materials enclosed herewith constitute an invitation to submit 
bids only and do not  represent an offer by  the County.   Bids submitted  in  response 
hereto shall constitute offers to sell the supplies meeting the County’s specifications.  If 
the  County  does  not  exercise  its  option  to  reject  any  or  all  bids  pursuant  to  RCW 
36.32.245,  the  County  will  enter  into  a  resolution  providing  notice  of  the  lowest 
responsible bidder in the form of Exhibit E, accepting the bid of the lowest responsible 
bidder.  Upon entry of the resolution, the lowest responsible bidder shall be required 
to enter into an Agreement in the form of Exhibit D within 10 days of said resolution. 

3. The County is not liable for any costs incurred by bidders prior to issuance of or entering 
into  an  Agreement.  Costs  associated  with  developing  the  bid,  preparing  for  oral 
presentations, and any other expenses  incurred by the bidder  in responding to this IFB 
are entirely the responsibility of the bidder, and shall not be reimbursed in any manner 
by the County. 

4. Accuracy for all mathematical and number entries to Exhibit A is the sole responsibility of 
the bidder. Benton County will not be responsible for errors made by the bidder to Exhibit 
A. 

5. Bidders shall submit specifications of their bid, showing their compliance with the Jail’s 
requirements on the enclosed Vendor Bid Form, referenced as Exhibit A, or in a format 
matching the forms provided. All portions thereof must be completed in ink or mechanical 
means, setting forth all information requested.  At a MINIMUM, each of the items listed 
in the Vendor Bid Form should be addressed.  Any additional features promoted by the 
bidder should emphasize the benefits, but also address the  impact of such features on 
the price quoted.   

6. Bids  must  be  executed  by  a  person  or  persons  legally  authorized  to  execute  such 
documents on behalf of the bidding entity. 

7. Price quoted in the bid shall be exclusive of Federal Taxes.  Any Washington State Sales 
Tax  included  in  the  sales price will not be  considered a part of  the NET BID amount.  





  
 

Exhibit A     
VENDOR BID FORM 

 
 
PROJECT IDENTIFICATION:   Inmate  Supplies  for  the  Benton  County  Bureau  of 

Corrections (Jail)           
 
THIS BID SUBMITTED TO:    Benton County Bureau of Corrections 
          Attn: Lisa Small 
          7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B 
          Kennewick, WA 99336 
  
1. The undersigned Vendor proposes and agrees that if this bid is accepted it will enter into an 

Agreement with the County  in the form reflected  in Exhibit D to this  Invitation for Bids to 
supply all  items as specified or  indicated  in the Agreement for the prices and amounts set 
forth therein.  

 
2.  The Vendor accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Invitation for Bids.   This bid will 

remain open for up to 30 days after the day of submission.   
 
3.  In  submitting  this bid,  the Vendor  represents,  as more  fully  set  forth  in  Exhibit D  to  the 

Invitation for Bids, that: 
 

a)  The Vendor has examined copies of the entire Invitation for Bids, all exhibits thereto, and 
of the following addenda, if issued.  Receipt of addenda is hereby acknowledged: 

 
    Date:      Addenda Number: 
 
    ___________                     
 
    ___________             
 

b)  This bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed person, 
firm, or corporation and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement or rules of 
any  group,  association,  organization,  or  corporation;  the  Vendor  has  not  directly  or 
indirectly induced or solicited any other Vendor to submit a false or sham bid; the Vendor 
has not solicited or induced any person, firm, or corporation to refrain from bidding; and 
the Vendor has not sought by collusion to obtain for himself any advantage over any other 
vendor or over the County. 

 
4.  The Vendor will provide the products for the prices and amounts as set forth in paragraph 9 

below. 
 
5.  The Vendor agrees to supply the products in accordance with the terms and conditions set 

forth in Exhibit D.   
 
 



  
 

Exhibit A  
 
 
6.  The following documents are attached to and must be submitted in order for the bid to be 

considered: 
   

(a)  Affidavit of Non‐Collusion. 
 
(b) Anti‐Discrimination Certificate. 

 
7.  Communications  concerning  this  bid  shall  be  addressed  to  the  address  of  the  Vendor 

indicated below: 
 

__________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone____________________________Fax______________________________ 

 
 
8.  The terms used in this bid that are defined in Exhibit D have the meanings assigned to them 

in Exhibit D. 
 

 
 
 
   



Exhibit A 
9.

Exhibit A
Request for Bid - CB 16-09

 Inmate Supplies

Line    

Item 
Item  Description 

Qty per 

Case/Doz/Bndl 

Product Code /   

Item Number 

"Estimated"      

Qty of Purchase 

of Each Item      

A

Price per        

"Each" Item      

B

 Total "Estimated" 

Purchase Amount  

A  x  B = 

1 Toenail clippers no file all metal, no file 720   $                      ‐     $                          ‐   

2 Fingernail clippers no file all metal, no file, 2 inch length 720   $                      ‐     $                          ‐   

3 Razor Twin blade disposable fixed head 25,000   $                      ‐     $                          ‐   

4 Comb 5 inch, black plastic 25,000   $                      ‐     $                          ‐   

5 Toothpaste .6 oz., clear, clear plastic tubing 25,000   $                      ‐     $                          ‐   

6 Toothbrush 3 7/8 inch, 25 tuft or better 25,000   $                      ‐     $                          ‐   

7 Resealable bag  4X6" clear, ziploc 10,000   $                      ‐     $                          ‐   

8 Golf pencil  3" sharpened 20,000   $                      ‐     $                          ‐   

9 Feminine pads
adhesive, extra‐long, panty protectors, 

individually wrapped
15,000   $                      ‐     $                          ‐   

10 Disposable Briefs 
100% stretch nylon, latex free, unisex, 

muli‐size 
400   $                      ‐     $                          ‐   

11 Bar soap 3.0 oz. unwrapped, triple milled 20,000   $                      ‐     $                          ‐   

12 Bar soap 1.0 oz. unwrapped, triple milled 30,000   $                      ‐     $                          ‐   

Inmate Uniform Shirt

“BCC” screened on back

Inmate Uniform Shirt

“BCC” screened on back

Inmate Uniform Shirt

“BCC” screened on back

Inmate Uniform Shirt

“BCC” screened on back

Inmate Uniform Shirt

“BCC” screened on back

13 size: small ‐ left breast pocket   $                          ‐   

14 size: medium  ‐ left breast pocket  $                          ‐   20 

$                      ‐   

$                      ‐   

20 

15 size: large ‐ left breast pocket   $                          ‐   

16 size: 1x large ‐ left breast pocket   $                          ‐   

20 

20 

$                      ‐   

$                      ‐   

17 size: 2x large ‐ left breast pocket   $                          ‐   $                      ‐   20 



Exhibit A 
9.

Exhibit A
Request for Bid - CB 16-09

 Inmate Supplies

Line    

Item 
Item  Description 

Qty per 

Case/Doz/Bndl 

Product Code /   

Item Number 

"Estimated"      

Qty of Purchase 

of Each Item      

A

Price per        

"Each" Item      

B

 Total "Estimated" 

Purchase Amount  

A  x  B = 

Inmate Uniform Shirt

“BCC” screened on back

Inmate Uniform Shirt

“BCC” screened on back

Inmate Uniform Shirt

“BCC” screened on back

Inmate Uniform Shirt

“BCC” screened on back

Inmate Uniform Pant

“BCC” screened on one leg

Inmate Uniform Pant

“BCC” screened on one leg

Inmate Uniform Pant

“BCC” screened on one leg

Inmate Uniform Pant

“BCC” screened on one leg

Inmate Uniform Pant

“BCC” screened on one leg

Inmate Uniform Pant

“BCC” screened on one leg

Inmate Uniform Pant

“BCC” screened on one leg

Inmate Uniform Pant

“BCC” screened on one leg

Inmate Uniform Pant

“BCC” screened on one leg

31 Mattress Flame‐Chek® Mattress 25'' x 75'' x 4'' 250   $                      ‐     $                          ‐   

32 Towels
White Bath Towel ‐ Budget Grade, 5.0 lbs. 

per dz 20'' x 40''
1,000   $                      ‐     $                          ‐   

$                      ‐   

$                      ‐   

$                      ‐   

$                      ‐   

$                      ‐   

$                      ‐   

$                      ‐   

$                      ‐   

$                      ‐   

20 

20 

20 

20 

20 

20 

20 

19

20

21

22 size: small

25 size: 1x large

23

24

29

26 size: 2x large 

size: 6x large

size: 5x large ‐ left breast pocket   $                          ‐   

size: 6x large ‐ left breast pocket 

18 size: 3x large ‐ left breast pocket   $                          ‐   20  $                      ‐   

 $                          ‐   30 20 

size: 4x large ‐ left breast pocket   $                          ‐   

 $                          ‐   28

 $                          ‐   

size: 4x large

27 size: 3x large  $                          ‐   

20 

 $                          ‐   

size: 5x large  $                          ‐   

 $                          ‐   

size: medium   $                          ‐   

 $                          ‐   

size: large

20  $                      ‐   

20 

20 

$                      ‐   

$                      ‐   

 $                          ‐   



Exhibit A 
9.

Exhibit A
Request for Bid - CB 16-09

 Inmate Supplies

Line    

Item 
Item  Description 

Qty per 

Case/Doz/Bndl 

Product Code /   

Item Number 

"Estimated"      

Qty of Purchase 

of Each Item      

A

Price per        

"Each" Item      

B

 Total "Estimated" 

Purchase Amount  

A  x  B = 

33 Blankets
The Cozy Blanket, flammability 

requirements,              66" x 90" 
400   $                      ‐     $                          ‐   

34 Sandals EVA Footwear ‐ Orange 100   $                      ‐     $                          ‐   

35 Sandals SEVA Sandals ‐ Orange 100   $                      ‐     $                          ‐   

36 Flip Flops  V‐Strap Thongs ‐ Black  40   $                      ‐     $                          ‐   

Total Bid Proposal   $                          ‐   



 

  
 

Exhibit A  
 
 

BASE BID AMOUNT 
 
LUMP SUM (excluding sales tax) $_________________________________________________ 
 
LUMP SUM (excluding sales tax), in words    
 
SUBMITTED ON  _____________________________, 2016 
 
The Vendor by whom this bid is submitted and by whom the Agreement will be entered into, in case this 
bid is accepted, is a Corporation, Partnership, or Individual doing business at: 
 
       
(STREET) 
 
       
(CITY)  (STATE)  (ZIP) 
 
The undersigned hereby certifies and represents to signing this bid on behalf of the Vendor and admits the 
undersigned is authorized to do so by said Vendor. 
 
   
Legal Name of Vendor 
 
   
Signature of Authorized Person 
 
   
Title   



 

 

Exhibit B 
AFFIDAVIT OF NON‐COLLUSION 

 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
County of Benton 

 
 
                      ,  (Vendor), 

being first duly sworn, certifies that the bid above submitted is a genuine bid and not a sham or 

collusive bid or a bid made in the interest or on behalf of any person not therein named; and it is 

further certified that the said Vendor has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any Vendor 

on the above work or supplies to put in a sham bid, or any other person or corporation to refrain 

from submitting a bid; and that said Vendor has not in any manner sought by collusion to secure 

an advantage over other Vendor or Vendors. 

 
 
                       
(Company Name) 
 
 
                       
(Vendor’s Signature) 
 
 
                       
(Typed Name and Title) 
 
 
 
SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me this     day of      , 2016. 
 
 
 
 
                       
 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of _____________,  

residing at            



 

 

Exhibit C 

ANTI‐DISCRIMINATION CERTIFICATE 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
County of Benton 

 
 
The Vendor hereby stipulates that no person shall be discriminated against in the bidding of the 

supplies and/or materials herein and that the Vendor shall not refuse employment to any person 

related to this Agreement because of such person’s race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, 

handicap or national origin. Any such discrimination shall be deemed a violation of this bid and 

shall render this bid subject to forfeiture. 

 
 
                       
(Company Name) 
 
 
                       
(Vendor's Signature) 
 
 
                       
(Typed Name and Title) 
 
 
   
SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me this     day of      , 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
                       
 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of _____________,    

residing at              

   



 

 

Exhibit D 
 

“SAMPLE” VENDOR PURCHASING AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement is made and entered into by and between BENTON COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its 
principal offices at 620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "County"), and [name of Vendor and 
Vendor’s  legal  form,  i.e.  “Inc” or  “LLC”  if applicable],  (hereinafter  “Vendor) with  its principal offices at 
[Vendor’s address], (hereinafter "Vendor"). 
 
In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows:   
 
1.  Vendor agrees to furnish to the County the products as listed in Exhibit A, for [Inmate Supplies CB 
16‐09] in accordance with its bid dated ______________ and to supply the product strictly in accordance with 
the specifications and requirements set forth therein.  The County anticipates purchase of the items listed in 
Exhibit A, but does not guarantee any specific minimum quantity. Vendor agrees  to provide any and all 
purchases at the same cost per item as provided in Exhibit A for the term of the Agreement. In the event 
the Vendor offers any of the items listed on Exhibit A at a sale price to that provided in Exhibit A attached 
hereto, the Vendor shall automatically provide that sale price to the County for said item. Vendor further 
agrees if it is unable to provide any of the products listed herein during the course of this Agreement it will 
provide  a  reasonable  substitute of  said products  to  the County  at  the  same price.   What  constitutes  a 
reasonable substitute of any product provided herein is to be determined at the sole discretion of the County. 
 
2.  The Vendor's bid for [Inmate Supplies CB 16‐09], and corresponding documents, all of which are 
on file in the office of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office, shall constitute a part of this Agreement and are 
by this reference incorporated and made a part of this Agreement as though fully set forth.  Each party 
expressly covenants and agrees  to carry out and  fully perform each and all of  the provisions of  these 
documents upon its or his part to be performed. 
 
3.  County will compensate Vendor for the purchase of goods at the price set forth in Exhibit A with an 
overall Agreement amount not to exceed $_________________.  A purchase order is required for each order.  
The Vendor will supply the quantities of product requested by the County during the term of this Agreement. 
The Vendor may submit invoices to the COUNTY not more than once per month during the course of this 
Agreement.  Invoices shall cover the products supplied to the County during the billing period.  The County 
shall pay the Vendor for products provided in the month following the actual delivery of products and will 
remit payment within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt. 
 
4.  All  deliveries  are  to  be made  F.O.B.  Benton  County  Jail,  7122 W.  Okanogan  Place,  Bldg.  B, 
Kennewick, WA between the hours 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, except on regularly 
observed  state  or  federal  holidays,  unless  otherwise  requested  by  the  County.  Destination  will  be 
determined at time of order. 

 

5.  Each party to this Agreement shall have a representative.  Each party may change its 
representative upon providing written notice to the other party.  The parties' representatives are as 
follows: 

 

a.  For Vendor:    [Insert name and address] 



 

 

 

 

b.  For County:    Lisa Small 

7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B 

Kennewick, WA 99336 

509‐735‐6555 Ext. 3880 

Lisa.Small@co.benton.wa.us  

 

6.  Delivery of products cited herein by Vendor must be made within 7 days of order by the County. 
If product can’t be delivered within that period of time for any reason, Vendor must immediately notify 
the County’s above Agreement representative. 
 
7.  The Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County, its appointed and elective officers 
and employees, from and against all  loss or expense, including but not  limited to judgments, settlements, 
attorney's  fees and  costs by  reason of any and all  claims and demands upon  the County,  its elected or 
appointed officials or employees for damages arising out of any act or omission of the Vendor, its officers, 
agents and employees.   This  includes negligence on  the part of  the Vendor and  its officers, agents and 
employees due to violation of any code or regulation. It is further provided that no liability shall attach to the 
County by reason of entering into this Agreement, except as expressly provided herein. 
 
8.  This Agreement shall commence January 1, 2017 and shall continue until December 31, 2018.  
 
9.  The Vendor shall perform the terms of this Agreement using only its bona fide employees or agents, 
and  the obligations and duties of  the Vendor under  this Agreement shall not be assigned, delegated, or 
subcontracted to any other person or firm without the prior express written consent of the County. 
 
10.  Insurance:   
 
  a.   Workers  Compensation:    Vendor  shall  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations.  Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers compensation 
coverage shall be provided for all employees of Vendor and employees of any subvendor or sub‐subvendor.  
Coverage  shall  include  bodily  injury  (including  death)  by  accident  or  disease, which  arises  out  of  or  in 
connection with the performance of this Contract.  Vendor shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 
from the Department of Labor and Industries prior to commencement of work.  Except as prohibited by law, 
Vendor waives all rights of subrogation against the County for recovery of damages to the extent they are 
covered by workers compensation and employers liability. 
 
If  Vendor,  subvendor,  or  sub‐subvendor  fails  to  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations and County incurs fines or is required by law to provide benefits 
to or obtain coverage for such employees, Vendor shall indemnify the County. Indemnity shall include all 
fines, payment of benefits to Vendor or subvendor employees, or their heirs or legal representatives, and 
the  cost of effecting  coverage on behalf of  such employees. Any amount owed  to County by Vendor 
pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be deducted from any payments owed by County to Vendor 
for performance of this Contract.  



 

 

 
  b.  Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability Insurance:  Prior to the start of work 
under  this Contract, Vendor shall maintain commercial general  liability coverage  (policy  form CG0001 or 
equivalent) to protect the Vender from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, personal injury and property 
damage, which may arise from any actions or inactions under this Contract by Vendor or by anyone directly 
employed by or contracting with Vendor.   The minimum commercial general liability insurance limits shall be 
as follows: 
 
  $2,000,000 General Aggregate 
  $2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 
  $1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 
  $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 
The  commercial  general  liability policy will  contain an endorsement naming  the County,  its elected and 
appointed officials, employees and agents as an Additional  Insured and an endorsement  that specifically 
states that Vendor’s commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and not contributory, with any other 
insurance maintained by the County. 
 
The Vender will  provide  commercial  general  liability  coverage  that  does  not  exclude  any  activity  to  be 
performed  in  fulfillment  of  this Contract  and  does  not  exclude  liability  pursuant  to  the  indemnification 
requirement  under  Section  7.    Vendor’s  commercial  general  liability  policy  shall  provide  cross  liability 
coverage, indicating essentially that except with respect to the limits of insurance and any rights or duties 
specifically assigned in this coverage part to the first named insured, this insurance applies as if each named 
insured were the only named insured, and separately to each insured against whom claims are made or suit 
is brought. 
 
Vendor shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 
 

$500,000 Each Accident 
$500,000 Policy Limit for Disease 
$500,000 Each Employee for Disease 

 
 
  c.  Automobile Liability: The Vendor shall maintain, during the life of this Contract, Automobile 
Liability Insurance (ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto (Symbol 1), or if the Vendor 
has no owned autos, hired (Symbol 8) and non‐owned autos (Symbol 9), in the amount of not less than one 
million dollars ($1,000,000) per accident for Bodily Injury and Property Damage to protect Vendor from claims 
which may arise from the performance of this Contract, whether such operations be by the Vendor or by 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Vendor. 
 
  d.  Other Insurance Provisions: 
 

1. The  Vendor’s  liability  insurance  provisions  shall  be  primary  with  respect  to  any 
insurance or self‐insurance programs covering the County, its elected and appointed 
officers, officials, employees and agents. Vendor’s liability insurance policies must be 
endorsed  to  show  this  primary  coverage.  Any  insurance,  self‐insured  retention, 
deductible or  risk  retention maintained or participated  in by  the County  shall be 
excess and not contributory to Vendor’s insurance policies. 



 

 

 
2. The Vendor’s liability insurance policies shall contain no special limitations on the scope 

of protection afforded to the County as an additional insured.  
 

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect coverage 
provided to the County, its officers, officials, employees or agents. 
 

4. The Vendor’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.  
 

5. The Vendor shall include all subvendors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish 
separate  certificates  and  endorsements  for  each  subvendor.  All  coverage  for 
subvendors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.  
 

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage required by this Contract are 
not  intended  to  be  an  indication  of  exposure  nor  are  they  limitations  on 
indemnification.  
 

7. The  Vendor  shall maintain  all  required  policies  in  force  from  the  time  purchasing 
commences until purchasing  is completed.   Certificates, policies, and endorsements 
expiring  before  completion  of  purchases  shall  be  promptly  replaced.    All  liability 
insurance required under this Contract shall be written on an Occurrence Policy form.   
 

8. Vendor hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect to each  insurance policy 
maintained under this Contract. When required by an insurer, or if a policy condition 
does not permit VENDOR to enter into a pre‐loss agreement to waive subrogation 
without an endorsement, then Vendor agrees to notify the insurer and obtain such 
endorsement.  This  requirement  shall  not  apply  to  any  policy  which  includes  a 
condition expressly prohibiting waiver of subrogation by the insured or which voids 
coverage should the Vendor enter  into such a waiver of subrogation on a pre‐loss 
basis.  

 
9. Compensation and/or payments due to Vendor under this Agreement are expressly 

conditioned  upon  Vendor’s  strict  compliance  with  all  insurance  requirements. 
Payment to Vendor may be suspended in the event of non‐compliance. Upon receipt 
of  evidence  of  Vendor's  compliance,  such  payments  not  otherwise  subject  to 
withholding or set‐off will be released to Vendor. 

 
  d.  Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers:   
 

  All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued by companies authorized to do 
business under the laws of the State of Washington and have a A. M. Best's rating of at least A‐VII 
or  better  in  the  most  recently  published  edition  of  Best’s  Reports.  Any  exception  to  this 
requirement must be reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk Manager. If an 
insurer  is  not  admitted  to  do  business  within Washington  State,  all  insurance  policies  and 
procedures  for  issuing  the  insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 RCW and 284‐15 
WAC.  
   



 

 

1. All insurance to be maintained by the Vendor, other than Professional Liability, Auto 
Liability  and Workmen’s  Compensation,  shall  specifically  include  the  County,  its 
elected officials, employees and volunteers as an “Additional  Insured” by way of 
endorsement and shall not be reduced or canceled without thirty (30) days written 
prior  notice  to  the  County.  Any  insurance  or  self‐insurance maintained  by  the 
COUNTY, its elected and appointed officials, employees and agents shall be excess 
of the Vendor’s insurance and shall not contribute to it. 

 
2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements attached, are to be provided 

to the County’s Contract Representative referenced in Section 5. 
 
3. All written notices under  this Section 10 and notice of  cancellation or  change of 

required  insurance  coverages  shall  be  mailed  to  the  County’s  Contract 
Representative referenced in Section 5.  

 
4. The  Vendor  or  its  broker  shall  provide  a  copy  of  any  and  all  insurance  policies 

specified  in this Contract upon request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the 
following address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A, 
Kennewick, WA 99336.  

   
11.   The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, or waiver of any provision(s) of this 
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice the right of 
the waiving party  to enforce any of  the provisions of  this Agreement at a  later  time.   All waivers of any 
provision(s) of this Agreement shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no action or inaction shall be 
construed to be such a waiver. 
 
12.   This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and delivered within the State 
of Washington, and it is agreed by each party hereto that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of Washington, both as to its interpretation and performance.  Any action at law, suit in equity, or 
judicial proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted and maintained only in any of the courts 
of competent jurisdiction in Benton County, Washington. 
 
13.  The County, to the extent permitted by law, and the Vendor each bind themselves, their partners, 
successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, 
successors, administrators, and assigns of such other party in respect to all covenants to this Agreement. 
 
14.  If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this Agreement to be illegal, 
or invalid in whole or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the parties' 
rights and obligations shall be construed and enforced as  if this Agreement did not contain the particular 
provision held to be invalid.  If it should appear that any provision of this Agreement is in conflict with any 
statutory provision of the State of Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall be deemed 
inoperative and null and void  insofar as  it may be  in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to 
conform to such statutory provision. 
 
15.  The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of its terms and conditions.  Any 
oral  or  written  representations  or  understandings  not  incorporated  in  this  Agreement  are  specifically 
excluded. 
 



 

 

16.  Any notices shall be effective if personally served upon the other party or if mailed by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, to the addresses set out in the Agreement Representatives Section 
of this Agreement.  Notice may also be given by facsimile with the original to follow by regular mail.  Notice 
shall be deemed to be given three days following the date of mailing or immediately, if personally served.  For 
service by facsimile, service shall be effective at the beginning of the next working day. 
 
17.  All Agreement terms, which by their context are clearly intended to survive the termination and/or 
expiration of this Agreement, shall so survive.   
 
18.  The County may terminate the Agreement in whole or in part whenever the County determines, in 
its  sole discretion,  such  termination  is  in  the best  interests of  the County.   Whenever  the Agreement  is 
terminated in accordance with this paragraph, the Vendor shall be entitled to payment for actual products 
received by County at the prices set forth herein prior to termination.  If sufficient funds are not appropriated 
or allocated for payment under this Agreement for any future fiscal period, the County will not be obligated 
to make payments for purchases for amounts incurred after the end of the current fiscal period.  No penalty 
or expense shall accrue to the County in the event this provision applies. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement this _____ day of ____________ 2016. 
 
 
BENTON COUNTY           [VENDOR’S BUSINESS NAME] 
              
           
 
___________________________________    ___________________________________ 
Shon Small, Chairman          Date      Name/Title                                            Date 
Benton County Commissioner 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
By: ________________________________   
       Ryan J. Lukson 
       Civil Deputy Prosecuting Attorney   
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 





 

 

Exhibit F 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 
IN  THE MATTER  OF  PROVIDING  NOTICE  OF  THE  LOWEST  RESPONSIBLE  BIDDER  FOR  THE 
PURCHASE OF INMATE SUPPLIES (CB 16‐09) 
 
WHEREAS,  the Board of Benton County Commissioners  solicited bids  for  the procurement of 
inmate supplies per Resolution 2016‐xxx; and 
 
WHEREAS, representatives of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office received and opened [number 
of bids] on [date] as provided in the invitation to bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, the bids were from the following Bidders: 
[list bidder’s, bid amount];and 
 
WHEREAS, the representatives of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office reviewed the bid proposals 
and  recommend  awarding  the  vendor  purchasing  agreement  to  [vendor’s  business  name]; 
NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE  IT  RESOLVED,  the  Board  of  Benton  County  Commissioners,  Benton  County, Washington 
hereby  has  deemed  [vendor’s  business  name]  to  be  the  lowest  responsible  bidder  for  the 
purchase of  inmate supplies and shall be required to enter  into an Agreement  in the  form of 
Exhibit D with Benton County in accordance with the Inmate Supplies Invitation for Bid CB 16‐09 
within ten (10) days of this notice. 
 
Dated this _____________ day of __________________, 2016. 
 

  ___________________________                
  Chairman of the Board 

  
  ___________________________              

  Member 
 

  ___________________________                
  Member 

  
  Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 

Attest....................................................... 
                    Clerk of the Board  



 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Sept. 13, 2016       
Subject: IFB – Employee 

Uniforms Class A 
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  

   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract ___ _  
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
Per Resolution 2012-677, Section 2.2.3 Purchases or Leases of $25,000 or more, “purchases or leases 
of supplies, materials or equipment over twenty-five thousand dollars ($25,000) shall follow the “Formal 
Competitive Bid” requirements as established in RCW 36.23.245, unless otherwise exempt under RCW 
39.04.280”.  
 
To comply with Resolution 2012-677, the Sheriff’s Office is required to follow the formal competitive bid 
process for the procurement of Employee Uniforms – Class A and other related items. 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM  
 
Ryan Lukson, DPA  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution and Invitation for Bids (IFB) for the procurement of Employee Uniforms 
– Class A and other related items - CB 16-11.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Expenditures will be included in the 2017/2018 budget.  
 
 
MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
nn. Solicitation of Bids for Employee Class A Uniforms



Orig: Sheriff’s Office  Prepared by: L. Small 
cc:  CB 16-11 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE SOLICITATION OF BIDS FOR THE 
PROCUREMENT OF EMPLOYEE UNIFORMS – CLASS A AND OTHER RELATED 
ITEMS FOR THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE  
 
IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton 
County, Washington, that attached invitation for bids and corresponding documents for the 
procurement of employee uniforms – class A and other related items for the Benton County 
Sheriff’s Office shall be prepared and advertised pursuant to the provisions of RCW 36.32.245, 
as more fully described in the invitation for bids CB 16-11 attached hereto; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the bids will be received by the Benton County Bureau of 
Corrections, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336 until 5:00 PM on 
Wednesday, October 5, 2016 and not thereafter, and will be publicly opened by representatives 
of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office at 9:00 AM (PST) on Thursday, October 6, 2016 at 7122 
W. Okanogan Place Bldg. B, Kennewick, WA 99336 in the Jail Conference Room.  
 
 
 
 
Dated this  _____________ day of __________________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 

 ___________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 

 
  

 ___________________________              
 Member 

 
 

 ___________________________                
 Member 

  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                  Clerk of the Board 
 

 



 

  
 

    
  

                                          
September 13, 2016 
 

INVITATION FOR BIDS (IFB) – COUNTY BID 16‐11 
 
BIDS FOR:  EMPLOYEE UNIFORMS – CLASS A AND OTHER REALTED ITEMS FOR THE 

BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
DEADLINE FOR  
BID SUBMITTAL:  WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 5, 2016 UNTIL 5:00 P.M.,  
  BENTON COUNTY BUREAU OF CORRECTIONS,  
  7122 W OKANOGAN PLACE, BLDG. B, KENNEWICK, WA 99336     
  NO BIDS WILL BE ACCEPTED AFTER THAT DATE AND TIME.   
 
 
Benton County (County) is soliciting bids for the purchase of Employee Uniforms – Class A and 
Other  Related  Items  for  the  Benton  County  Sheriff’s Office,  7122 W. Okanogan  Pl.,  Bldg.  B, 
Kennewick, WA 99336 from any and all potential vendors.  The County invites you to submit a 
bid  to provide products and  supplies  that will meet or exceed  the  specifications  set  forth  in 
Exhibit A – Vendor Bid.   Although the County anticipates purchasing the quantity of products 
provided  in  Exhibit  A,  those  quantities  are  only  estimates.    As  such,  the  County makes  no 
guarantee as to the quantity of products provided in Exhibit A it will purchase over the term of 
the Agreement.  By submitting a bid Vendor agrees to provide any and all purchases at the same 
cost per item as provided in Exhibit A for the two (2) year term of the Agreement commencing 
January 1, 2017. In the event Vendor offers any of the items listed in Exhibit A at a sale price to 
that provided in Exhibit A, Vendor shall provide that sale price to the County for said item.  Vendor 
must provide all items listed in Exhibit A to be considered a responsive bidder. Failure to provide 
a price for any item will result in automatic bid disqualification. Any and all orders for products 
listed in Exhibit A will occur throughout the term of the Agreement. 

 
BIDDERS’ RECEIPT OF THE IFB PACKAGE 

a) The below Procurement/Contract Coordinator of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office is the 
only  individual  authorized  to  provide  the  IFB  package  to  interested  companies  or 
individuals.  Bidders who are working from an IFB package obtained from any other source 
may  be  working  from  an  incomplete  set  of  documents.  The  County  assumes  no 
responsibility for a bid’s errors, omissions or misinterpretations resulting from a bidder’s 
use of an incomplete IFB package. 
 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

Jerome Delvin 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 



  
 

b) Bidders who have received the IFB package from a source other than the Sheriff’s Office 
Procurement/Contract Coordinator, or who have downloaded the IFB package from the 
County’s website, are advised to contact Lisa Small of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office 
at  (509)  735‐6555  ext.  3880  to  provide  their  company’s  name,    address,  telephone 
number, fax number and contact name. This will ensure that the bidder will receive all 
communication regarding the IFB such as Amendments and Clarifications. 

 

Your bid should be submitted in the official bid format as provided in Exhibit A and placed in a 
SEALED ENVELOPE marked “SEALED BID – Employee Uniforms – Class A and Other Related 
Items CB 16‐11.”   Bids may be mailed or hand delivered to the Benton County Commissioners 
Office, 620 Market Street / PO Box 190, Prosser, WA 99350 until 5:00 PM  (PST) Wednesday, 
October 5, 2016.  NO BIDS WILL BE ACCEPTED AFTER THAT DATE AND TIME. Emailed and faxed 
bids  are  not  acceptable  and  will  not  be  considered.  The  bids  will  be  publicly  opened  by 
representatives of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office at 9:00 AM (PST) on Thursday, October 6, 
2016 at 7122 W. Okanogan Place Bldg. A, Kennewick, WA 99336 in the jail conference room. 
    
1. The County reserves the right to reject any or all bids for good cause pursuant to RCW 

36.32.245 and to waive informalities in the bidding process.  

2. This document and the materials enclosed herewith constitute an invitation to submit 
bids only and do not  represent an offer by  the County.   Bids submitted  in  response 
hereto shall constitute offers to sell the supplies meeting the County’s specifications.  If 
the  County  does  not  exercise  its  option  to  reject  any  or  all  bids  pursuant  to  RCW 
36.32.245,  the  County  will  enter  into  a  resolution  providing  notice  of  the  lowest 
responsible bidder in the form of Exhibit E, accepting the bid of the lowest responsible 
bidder.  Upon entry of the resolution, the lowest responsible bidder shall be required 
to enter into an Agreement in the form of Exhibit D within 10 days of said resolution. 

3. The County is not liable for any costs incurred by bidders prior to issuance of or entering 
into  an  Agreement.  Costs  associated  with  developing  the  bid,  preparing  for  oral 
presentations, and any other expenses  incurred by the bidder  in responding to this IFB 
are entirely the responsibility of the bidder, and shall not be reimbursed in any manner 
by the County. 

4. Accuracy for all mathematical and number entries to Exhibit A is the sole responsibility of 
the bidder. Benton County will not be responsible for errors made by the bidder to Exhibit 
A. 

5. Bidders shall submit specifications of their bid, showing their compliance with the Jail’s 
requirements on the enclosed Vendor Bid Form, referenced as Exhibit A, or in a format 
matching the forms provided. All portions thereof must be completed in ink or mechanical 
means, setting forth all information requested.  At a MINIMUM, each of the items listed 
in the Vendor Bid Form should be addressed.  Any additional features promoted by the 
bidder should emphasize the benefits, but also address the  impact of such features on 
the price quoted.   

6. Bids  must  be  executed  by  a  person  or  persons  legally  authorized  to  execute  such 
documents on behalf of the bidding entity. 





  
 

Exhibit A         
VENDOR BID FORM 

 
 
PROJECT IDENTIFICATION:   Employee Uniforms – Class A and other  related  items  for 

the Benton County Sheriff’s Office 
 
THIS BID SUBMITTED TO:    Benton County Commissioners Office 
          Attn: Lisa Small 
          7122 W Okanogan Place, Bldg. B 
          Kennewick, WA 99336 
  
1. The undersigned Vendor proposes and agrees that if this bid is accepted it will enter into an 

Agreement with the County  in the form reflected  in Exhibit D to this  Invitation for Bids to 
supply all  items as specified or  indicated  in the Agreement for the prices and amounts set 
forth therein.  

 
2.  The Vendor accepts all of the terms and conditions of the Invitation for Bids.   This bid will 

remain open for up to 30 days after the day of submission.   
 
3.  In  submitting  this bid,  the Vendor  represents,  as more  fully  set  forth  in  Exhibit D  to  the 

Invitation for Bids, that: 
 

a)  The Vendor has examined copies of the entire Invitation for Bids, all exhibits thereto, and 
of the following addenda, if issued.  Receipt of addenda is hereby acknowledged: 

 
    Date:      Addenda Number: 
 
    ___________                     
 
    ___________             
 

b)  This bid is genuine and not made in the interest of or on behalf of any undisclosed person, 
firm, or corporation and is not submitted in conformity with any agreement or rules of 
any  group,  association,  organization,  or  corporation;  the  Vendor  has  not  directly  or 
indirectly induced or solicited any other Vendor to submit a false or sham bid; the Vendor 
has not solicited or induced any person, firm, or corporation to refrain from bidding; and 
the Vendor has not sought by collusion to obtain for himself any advantage over any other 
vendor or over the County. 

 
4.  The Vendor will provide the products for the prices and amounts as set forth in paragraph 9 

below. 
 
5.  The Vendor agrees to supply the products in accordance with the terms and conditions set 

forth in Exhibit D.   
   



  
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
6.  The following documents are attached to and must be submitted in order for the bid to be 

considered: 
   

(a)  Affidavit of Non‐Collusion. 
 
(b) Anti‐Discrimination Certificate. 

 
 
7.  Communications  concerning  this  bid  shall  be  addressed  to  the  address  of  the  Vendor 

indicated below: 
 

__________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________ 
 
Phone____________________________Fax______________________________ 

 
 
8.  The terms used in this bid that are defined in Exhibit D have the meanings assigned to them 

in Exhibit D. 
 
 

 
 
 
   



Exhibit A 

9.

Exhibit A.

Request for Bid ‐ CB 16‐11

Employee Uniforms ‐ Class A 

Line 

Number 

Item Description Unit 
Product Code / 

Item Number 

"Estimated"    

Qty of 

Purchase of 

Each Item      

A

Price per       

"Each" Item    

B

Total 

"Estimated" 

Purchase 

Amount       

A  x  B = 

Blackinton Small Insignia's for Corporal, 
Sergeant, Lieutenant, Captain & 1,2,3 Stars
2 1/2 Tall Smith & Warren badge #S259
Sil‐Ray / Deputy
Gol‐Ray / Corporal, Sergeant, Lieutenant, Captain

Ballistic Vest
Survival Armor ‐ Level II with carriers

17

18

13

14

15

16

12

Dress Belt

Holster (Class A)

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11 Collar Insignia

Badges (Patrol)

Badges (Corrections)

Metal Buttons w/toggles & washers

Pistol Qualification Pin

Class A Shoes

Class A Shoes

Tie ‐ Class A

Name Tag

BCSO Collar Brass

Flying Cross #513W6697Z, Green & Taupe

Flying Cross #32213 Pink Tan 1" stripe

Low QRT Poromeric 831‐6031

Bates ‐ Chukka style boot

Clip on in Taupe

YDLE Black lettering, 5/8" 1 line name plate

4 letters/#'s pair, 3/8" silver or gold

Eisenhower "Ike" Style Jackets

White Class A long sleeve shirts

Class A Short Sleeve Shirts 

Class A Long Sleeve Shirts 

Class A Pants 

‐$                 

‐$                 

‐$                 

‐$                 

ea

ea

ea

ea 10 $                   ‐   

‐$                 

‐$                 

‐$                 

‐$                 

ea

ea

ea

ea

ea

ea

ea

‐$                 

‐$                 

‐$                 

‐$                 

‐$                 

‐$                 

‐$                 

ea

ea

‐$                 

1 $                   ‐   

4 $                   ‐   

12 $                   ‐   

2 $                   ‐   

4 $                   ‐   

5 $                   ‐   

10

‐$                 

‐$                 

Men's Survival Phoenix LT II

2 1/2 Tall Smith & Warren badge

"S" domed, silver & gold (13 pack)

Silver or Gold; Marksman, Expert, & Master

Black, shiny and with a gold buckle

Black Hawk Serpa CQC S&W M&P .40

ea

Class A Uniform Ike Jacket

Class A Uniform (Flying Cross, white)

Flying Cross #863R6697Z, Green & Taupe

ea

ea

ea

ea

1 $                   ‐   

2 $                   ‐   

7 $                   ‐   

7 $                   ‐   

7 $                   ‐   

7 $                   ‐   

$                   ‐   

5 $                   ‐   

1 $                   ‐   

5 $                   ‐   

1 $                   ‐   



Exhibit A 

9.

Exhibit A.

Request for Bid ‐ CB 16‐11

Employee Uniforms ‐ Class A 

Line 

Number 

Item Description Unit 
Product Code / 

Item Number 

"Estimated"    

Qty of 

Purchase of 

Each Item      

A

Price per       

"Each" Item    

B

Total 

"Estimated" 

Purchase 

Amount       

A  x  B = 
Ballistic Vest
Survival Armor ‐ Level II with carriers

26

27 Duty Belt Suspenders (set) D‐Ring 4 pack & tactical harness

19

23

24

Danner Acadia ‐ 200gram Insulated

20

21

22

25

Bianchi AccuMold double cuff case #7317Hand cuff case (double)

Boots (Patrol & Correction)

Vest Carriers  Safariland "Oregon City" External Carriers 

Vest Carriers Name Tape w/Velcro 

Vest Carriers Panel w/Velcro 

Cloth Name Tape with Velcro Backing 

Back Panel with Velcro Backing  

ea

ea

‐$                 

‐$                 

‐$                 

‐$                 

ea

ea

ea

ea

ea

ea

3 ‐$                 

1 ‐$                 

Boots (Patrol & Correction) Danner Acadia ‐ Nylon & Leather

Women's Survival Phoenix LT ll 

Hand cuff case Bianchi AccuMold single cuff case

20 ‐$                 

20 ‐$                 

ea 20 ‐$                  ‐$                 

Total Bid Proposal 

1 $                   ‐   

1 $                   ‐   

5 $                   ‐   

‐$                 

‐$                 

‐$                 

‐$                 

‐$                 

1 $                   ‐   



 

  
 

Exhibit A 
 
 

BASE BID AMOUNT 
 
LUMP SUM (excluding sales tax) $_________________________________________________ 
 
LUMP SUM (excluding sales tax), in words    
 
SUBMITTED ON  _____________________________, 2016 
 
The Vendor by whom this bid is submitted and by whom the Agreement will be entered into, in case this 
bid is accepted, is a Corporation, Partnership, or Individual doing business at: 
 
       
(STREET) 
 
       
(CITY)  (STATE)  (ZIP) 
 
The undersigned hereby certifies and represents to signing this bid on behalf of the Vendor and admits the 
undersigned is authorized to do so by said Vendor. 
 
   
Legal Name of Vendor 
 
   
Signature of Authorized Person 
 
   
Title 



 

 

Exhibit B 
 

AFFIDAVIT OF NON‐COLLUSION 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
County of Benton 

 
 
                      ,  (Vendor), 

being first duly sworn, certifies that the bid above submitted is a genuine bid and not a sham or 

collusive bid or a bid made in the interest or on behalf of any person not therein named; and it is 

further certified that the said Vendor has not directly or indirectly induced or solicited any Vendor 

on the above work or supplies to put in a sham bid, or any other person or corporation to refrain 

from submitting a bid; and that said Vendor has not in any manner sought by collusion to secure 

an advantage over other Vendor or Vendors. 

 
                       
(Company Name) 
 
                       
(Vendor’s Signature) 
 
                       
(Typed Name and Title) 
 
 
SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me this     day of      , 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
                       
 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of _____________,  

residing at            

 



 

 

Exhibit C 

ANTI‐DISCRIMINATION CERTIFICATE 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON 
County of Benton 

 
 
The Vendor hereby stipulates that no person shall be discriminated against in the bidding of the 

supplies and/or materials herein and that the Vendor shall not refuse employment to any person 

related to this Agreement because of such person’s race, creed, color, sex, sexual orientation, 

handicap or national origin. Any such discrimination shall be deemed a violation of this bid and 

shall render this bid subject to forfeiture. 

 
 
                       
(Company Name) 
 
 
                       
(Vendor's Signature) 
 
 
                       
(Typed Name and Title) 
 
 
   
SUBSCRIBED and SWORN to before me this     day of      , 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
                       
 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of _____________,  

residing at              

   



 

 

Exhibit D 
 

“SAMPLE” VENDOR PURCHASING AGREEMENT 
 
This Agreement is made and entered into by and between BENTON COUNTY, a political subdivision, with its 
principal offices at 620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 (hereinafter "County"), and [name of Vendor and 
Vendor’s  legal  form,  i.e.  “Inc.”  or  “LLC”  if  applicable], with  its  principal  offices  at  [Vendor’s  address], 
(hereinafter "Vendor"). 
 
In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows:   
 
1.  Vendor agrees to furnish to the County the products as listed in Exhibit A, for [Employee Uniforms – 
Class A and Other Related Items CB 16‐11] in accordance with its bid dated ______________ and to supply 
the product strictly  in accordance with the specifications and requirements set forth therein.   The County 
anticipates purchase of the items listed in Exhibit A but does not guarantee any specific minimum quantity. 
Vendor agrees to provide any and all purchases at the same cost per item as provided in Exhibit A for the 
term of the Agreement. In the event the Vendor offers any of the items listed on Exhibit A at a sale price 
to that provided in Exhibit A attached hereto, the Vendor shall automatically provide that sale price to the 
County for said item. Vendor further agrees if it is unable to provide any of the products listed herein during 
the course of this Agreement  it will provide a reasonable substitute of said products to the County at the 
same price.  What constitutes a reasonable substitute of any product provided herein is to be determined at 
the sole discretion of the County. 
 
2.  The Vendor's bid for [Employee Uniforms – Class A and Other Related Items Supplies CB 16‐11], 
and corresponding documents, all of which are on file in the office of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office, 
shall constitute a part of this Agreement and are by this reference incorporated and made a part of this 
Agreement as though fully set forth.   Each party expressly covenants and agrees to carry out and fully 
perform each and all of the provisions of these documents upon its or his part to be performed. 
 
3.  County will compensate Vendor for the purchase of goods at the price set forth in Exhibit A with an 
overall Agreement  amount  not  to  exceed  $_______________  including Washington  State  Sales  Tax.   A 
purchase order is required for each order.  The Vendor will supply the quantities of product requested by the 
County during the term of this Agreement. The Vendor may submit invoices to the COUNTY not more than 
once per month during the course of this Agreement.  Invoices shall cover the products supplied to the County 
during the billing period.  The County shall pay the Vendor for products provided in the month following the 
actual delivery of products and will remit payment within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt. 
 
4.  All  deliveries  are  to  be made  F.O.B.  Benton  County  Jail,  7122 W.  Okanogan  Place,  Bldg.  B, 
Kennewick, WA between the hours 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday, except on regularly 
observed  state  or  federal  holidays,  unless  otherwise  requested  by  the  County.  Destination  will  be 
determined at time of order. 

 
5.  Each party to this Agreement shall have a representative.  Each party may change its 
representative upon providing written notice to the other party.  The parties' representatives are as 
follows: 
 

 



 

 

a.  For Vendor:    [Insert name and address] 

 

 

b.  For County:    Lisa Small, Procurement/Contract Coordinator 

7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. B 

Kennewick, WA 99336 

509‐735‐6555 Ext. 3880 

Lisa.Small@co.benton.wa.us  

 

6.  Delivery of products cited herein by Vendor must be made within 7 days of order by the County. 
If product can’t be delivered within that period of time for any reason, Vendor must immediately notify 
the County’s above Agreement representative. 
 
7.  The Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the County, its appointed and elective officers 
and employees, from and against all  loss or expense, including but not  limited to judgments, settlements, 
attorney's  fees and  costs by  reason of any and all  claims and demands upon  the County,  its elected or 
appointed officials or employees for damages arising out of any act or omission of the Vendor, its officers, 
agents and employees.   This  includes negligence on  the part of  the Vendor and  its officers, agents and 
employees due to violation of any code or regulation. It is further provided that no liability shall attach to the 
County by reason of entering into this Agreement, except as expressly provided herein. 
 
8.  This Agreement shall commence January 1, 2017 and shall continue until December 31, 2018.  
 
9.  The Vendor shall perform the terms of this Agreement using only its bona fide employees or agents, 
and  the obligations and duties of  the Vendor under  this Agreement shall not be assigned, delegated, or 
subcontracted to any other person or firm without the prior express written consent of the County. 
 
10.  Insurance:   
 
  a.   Workers  Compensation:    Vendor  shall  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations.  Prior to the start of work under this Contract, workers compensation 
coverage shall be provided for all employees of Vendor and employees of any subvendor or sub‐subvendor.  
Coverage  shall  include  bodily  injury  (including  death)  by  accident  or  disease, which  arises  out  of  or  in 
connection with the performance of this Contract.  Vendor shall submit a copy of its certificate of coverage 
from the Department of Labor and Industries prior to commencement of work.  Except as prohibited by law, 
Vendor waives all rights of subrogation against the County for recovery of damages to the extent they are 
covered by workers compensation and employers liability. 
 
If  Vendor,  subvendor,  or  sub‐subvendor  fails  to  comply  with  all  State  of  Washington  workers 
compensation statutes and regulations and County incurs fines or is required by law to provide benefits 
to or obtain coverage for such employees, Vendor shall indemnify the County. Indemnity shall include all 
fines, payment of benefits to Vendor or subvendor employees, or their heirs or legal representatives, and 
the  cost of effecting  coverage on behalf of  such employees. Any amount owed  to County by Vendor 



 

 

pursuant to the indemnity agreement may be deducted from any payments owed by County to Vendor 
for performance of this Contract.  
 
  b.  Commercial General Liability and Employers Liability Insurance:  Prior to the start of work 
under  this Contract, Vendor shall maintain commercial general  liability coverage  (policy  form CG0001 or 
equivalent) to protect the Vender from claims for wrongful death, bodily injury, personal injury and property 
damage, which may arise from any actions or inactions under this Contract by Vendor or by anyone directly 
employed by or contracting with Vendor.   The minimum commercial general liability insurance limits shall be 
as follows: 
 
  $2,000,000 General Aggregate 
  $2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate 
  $1,000,000 Personal Injury and Advertising Injury 
  $1,000,000 Each Occurrence 
 
The  commercial  general  liability policy will  contain an endorsement naming  the County,  its elected and 
appointed officials, employees and agents as an Additional  Insured and an endorsement  that specifically 
states that Vendor’s commercial general liability policy shall be primary, and not contributory, with any other 
insurance maintained by the County. 
 
The Vender will  provide  commercial  general  liability  coverage  that  does  not  exclude  any  activity  to  be 
performed  in  fulfillment  of  this Contract  and  does  not  exclude  liability  pursuant  to  the  indemnification 
requirement  under  Section  7.    Vendor’s  commercial  general  liability  policy  shall  provide  cross  liability 
coverage, indicating essentially that except with respect to the limits of insurance and any rights or duties 
specifically assigned in this coverage part to the first named insured, this insurance applies as if each named 
insured were the only named insured, and separately to each insured against whom claims are made or suit 
is brought. 
 
Vendor shall also provide Stop Gap Employer's Liability Insurance coverage with minimum limits as follows: 
 

$500,000 Each Accident 
$500,000 Policy Limit for Disease 
$500,000 Each Employee for Disease 

 
  c.  Automobile  Liability:  The  Vendor  shall  maintain,  during  the  life  of  this  Contract, 
Automobile Liability Insurance (ISO Form Number CA0001 or equivalent) covering any auto (Symbol 1), or 
if the Vendor has no owned autos, hired (Symbol 8) and non‐owned autos (Symbol 9), in the amount of 
not  less  than one million dollars  ($1,000,000) per accident  for Bodily  Injury and Property Damage  to 
protect  Vendor  from  claims which may  arise  from  the  performance  of  this  Contract, whether  such 
operations be by the Vendor or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by the Vendor.  
 
  d.  Other Insurance Provisions: 
 

1. The  Vendor’s  liability  insurance  provisions  shall  be  primary  with  respect  to  any 
insurance or self‐insurance programs covering the County, its elected and appointed 
officers, officials, employees and agents. Vendor’s liability insurance policies must be 
endorsed  to  show  this  primary  coverage.  Any  insurance,  self‐insured  retention, 
deductible or  risk  retention maintained or participated  in by  the County  shall be 



 

 

excess and not contributory to Vendor’s insurance policies. 
 

2. The Vendor’s liability insurance policies shall contain no special limitations on the scope 
of protection afforded to the County as an additional insured.  
 

3. Any failure to comply with reporting provisions of the policies shall not affect coverage 
provided to the County, its officers, officials, employees or agents. 
 

4. The Vendor’s insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is 
made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.  
 

5. The Vendor shall include all subvendors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish 
separate  certificates  and  endorsements  for  each  subvendor.  All  coverage  for 
subvendors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.  
 

6. The insurance limits mandated for any insurance coverage required by this Contract are 
not  intended  to  be  an  indication  of  exposure  nor  are  they  limitations  on 
indemnification.  
 

7. The  Vendor  shall maintain  all  required  policies  in  force  from  the  time  purchasing 
commences until purchasing  is completed.   Certificates, policies, and endorsements 
expiring  before  completion  of  purchases  shall  be  promptly  replaced.    All  liability 
insurance required under this Contract shall be written on an Occurrence Policy form.   
 

8. Vendor hereby agrees to waive subrogation with respect to each  insurance policy 
maintained under this Contract. When required by an insurer, or if a policy condition 
does not permit VENDOR to enter into a pre‐loss agreement to waive subrogation 
without an endorsement, then Vendor agrees to notify the insurer and obtain such 
endorsement.  This  requirement  shall  not  apply  to  any  policy  which  includes  a 
condition expressly prohibiting waiver of subrogation by the insured or which voids 
coverage should the Vendor enter  into such a waiver of subrogation on a pre‐loss 
basis.  

 
9. Compensation and/or payments due to Vendor under this Agreement are expressly 

conditioned  upon  Vendor’s  strict  compliance  with  all  insurance  requirements. 
Payment to Vendor may be suspended in the event of non‐compliance. Upon receipt 
of  evidence  of  Vendor's  compliance,  such  payments  not  otherwise  subject  to 
withholding or set‐off will be released to Vendor. 

 
  e.  Verification of Coverage and Acceptability of Insurers:   
 

  All insurance required under this Contract shall be issued by companies authorized to do 
business under the laws of the State of Washington and have a A. M. Best's rating of at least A‐VII 
or  better  in  the  most  recently  published  edition  of  Best’s  Reports.  Any  exception  to  this 
requirement must be reviewed and approved in writing by the Benton County Risk Manager. If an 
insurer  is  not  admitted  to  do  business  within Washington  State,  all  insurance  policies  and 
procedures  for  issuing  the  insurance policy must comply with Chapter 48.15 RCW and 284‐15 
WAC.  



 

 

   
1. All insurance to be maintained by the Vendor, other than Professional Liability, Auto 

Liability  and Workmen’s  Compensation,  shall  specifically  include  the  County,  its 
elected officials, employees and volunteers as an “Additional  Insured” by way of 
endorsement and shall not be reduced or canceled without thirty (30) days written 
prior  notice  to  the  County.  Any  insurance  or  self‐insurance maintained  by  the 
COUNTY, its elected and appointed officials, employees and agents shall be excess 
of the Vendor’s insurance and shall not contribute to it. 

 
2. Certificates of Liability Insurance, with endorsements attached, are to be provided 

to the County’s Contract Representative referenced in Section 5. 
 
3. All written notices under  this Section 10 and notice of  cancellation or  change of 

required  insurance  coverages  shall  be  mailed  to  the  County’s  Contract 
Representative referenced in Section 5.  

 
4. The  Vendor  or  its  broker  shall  provide  a  copy  of  any  and  all  insurance  policies 

specified  in this Contract upon request of the Benton County Risk Manager at the 
following address: Benton County Risk Manager, 7122 W. Okanogan Place, Bldg. A, 
Kennewick, WA 99336.  

   
11.   The parties agree that the excuse or forgiveness of performance, or waiver of any provision(s) of this 
Agreement does not constitute a waiver of such provision(s) or future performance, or prejudice the right of 
the waiving party  to enforce any of  the provisions of  this Agreement at a  later  time.   All waivers of any 
provision(s) of this Agreement shall be in writing and in the absence of such, no action or inaction shall be 
construed to be such a waiver. 
 
12.   This Agreement has been and shall be construed as having been made and delivered within the State 
of Washington, and it is agreed by each party hereto that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of 
the State of Washington, both as to its interpretation and performance.  Any action at law, suit in equity, or 
judicial proceeding arising out of this Agreement shall be instituted and maintained only in any of the courts 
of competent jurisdiction in Benton County, Washington. 
 
13.  The County, to the extent permitted by law, and the Vendor each bind themselves, their partners, 
successors, executors, administrators, and assigns to the other party to this Agreement and to the partners, 
successors, administrators, and assigns of such other party in respect to all covenants to this Agreement. 
 
14.  If a court of competent jurisdiction holds any part, term or provision of this Agreement to be illegal, 
or invalid in whole or in part, the validity of the remaining provisions shall not be affected, and the parties' 
rights and obligations shall be construed and enforced as  if this Agreement did not contain the particular 
provision held to be invalid.  If it should appear that any provision of this Agreement is in conflict with any 
statutory provision of the State of Washington, said provision which may conflict therewith shall be deemed 
inoperative and null and void  insofar as  it may be  in conflict therewith, and shall be deemed modified to 
conform to such statutory provision. 
 
15.  The parties agree that this Agreement is the complete expression of its terms and conditions.  Any 
oral  or  written  representations  or  understandings  not  incorporated  in  this  Agreement  are  specifically 
excluded. 



 

 

 
16.  Any notices shall be effective if personally served upon the other party or if mailed by registered or 
certified mail, return receipt requested, to the addresses set out in the Agreement Representatives Section 
of this Agreement.  Notice may also be given by facsimile with the original to follow by regular mail.  Notice 
shall be deemed to be given three days following the date of mailing or immediately, if personally served.  For 
service by facsimile, service shall be effective at the beginning of the next working day. 
 
17.  All Agreement terms, which by their context are clearly intended to survive the termination and/or 
expiration of this Agreement, shall so survive.   
 
18.  The County may terminate the Agreement in whole or in part whenever the County determines, in 
its  sole discretion,  such  termination  is  in  the best  interests of  the County.   Whenever  the Agreement  is 
terminated in accordance with this paragraph, the Vendor shall be entitled to payment for actual products 
received by County at the prices set forth herein prior to termination.  If sufficient funds are not appropriated 
or allocated for payment under this Agreement for any future fiscal period, the County will not be obligated 
to make payments for purchases for amounts incurred after the end of the current fiscal period.  No penalty 
or expense shall accrue to the County in the event this provision applies. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement this _____ day of ____________ 2016. 
 
 
BENTON COUNTY           [VENDOR’S BUSINESS NAME] 
              
           
 
___________________________________    ___________________________________ 
Shon Small, Chairman                Date      Name/Title                                            Date 
Benton County Commissioner 
 
 
Approved As To Form: 
 
 
By: ________________________________   
       Ryan J. Lukson 
       Civil Deputy Prosecuting Attorney   
 
 
  





 

 

Exhibit F 
RESOLUTION 

 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 
IN  THE MATTER  OF  PROVIDING  NOTICE  OF  THE  LOWEST  RESPONSIBLE  BIDDER  FOR  THE 
PURCHASE OF EMPLOYEE UNIFORMS – CLASS A AND OTHER RELATED ITEMS (CB 16‐11) 
 
WHEREAS,  the Board of Benton County Commissioners  solicited bids  for  the procurement of 
employee uniforms – class A and other related items per Resolution 2016‐xxx; and 
 
WHEREAS, representatives of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office received and opened [number 
of bids] on [date] as provided in the invitation to bid; and 
 
WHEREAS, the bids were from the following Bidders: 
[list bidder’s, bid amount]; and 
 
WHEREAS, the representatives of the Benton County Sheriff’s Office reviewed the bid proposals 
and  recommend  awarding  the  vendor  purchasing  agreement  to  [vendor’s  business  name]; 
NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE  IT  RESOLVED,  the  Board  of  Benton  County  Commissioners,  Benton  County, Washington 
hereby  has  deemed  [Vendor’s  Business Name]  to  be  the  lowest  responsible  bidder  for  the 
purchase of employee uniforms – class A and other related items and shall be required to enter 
into  an Agreement  in  the  form of  Exhibit D  to  the Benton County  Sheriff’s Office  Employee 
Uniforms‐ Class A and other related items Invitation for Bid CB 16‐11 within ten (10) days of this 
notice. 
 
Dated this  _____________ day of __________________, 2016. 
 

 ___________________________                
 Chairman of the Board 

 
  

 ___________________________              
 Member 

 
 

 ___________________________                
 Member 

  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                    Clerk of the Board  



AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: Sept 13, 2016   

Subject: Contract Amendment 
w/Psychological 
Consultants  

Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson 

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract __X_ _  
Pass Resolution  __X__ 
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion _____  
Other  _____ 

Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____ 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 

Per Resolution 2015-033 dated January 6, 2015, the Board of Benton County Commissioners awarded the Personal 
Service Contract to Psychological Consultants, Inc. for “as needed” psychological evaluations for the Benton County 
Sheriff’s Office in the amount not to exceed $15,000 including WSST, with a contract term expiring on December 
31, 2016.  

Whereas, the attached First Contract Amendment is necessary as the Sheriff’s Office has exceeded the not to 
exceed amount of $15,000 due to all the necessary testing for new hires in 2015-2016.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Sheriff’s Office recommends increasing the overall amount not to exceed $33,000 including WSST for “as needed” 
psychological evaluations, which is supported in the Sheriff’s Patrol and Custody approved 2015/2016 budgets for 
pre-employment exams.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

No fiscal impact at this time.  

MOTION 

Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
oo. Amended Contract #1 w/Psychological Consultants, Inc. for As Needed Evaluations



Orig: Sheriff’s Office 
cc:  Auditor, S. Araiza, Psychological Consults 

                                                             Prepared by: L. Small  

RESOLUTION 
 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF THE FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE PERSONAL SERVICE 
CONTRACT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY AND PSYCHOLOGICAL 
CONSULTANTS, INC. FOR “AS NEEDED” PSYCHOLOGICAL EVALUATIONS FOR 
THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE  
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2015-033 dated January 6, 2015, the Board of Benton County 
Commissioners awarded the Personal Service Contract to Psychological Consultants, Inc. in the 
amount not to exceed $15,000 including WSST, with a contract term expiring on December 31, 
2016; and  
 
WHEREAS, the attached First Amendment is necessary as the Sheriff’s Office has exceeded the 
not to exceed amount of $15,000 due to all the necessary testing for new hires; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff’s Office recommends increasing the overall amount not to exceed 
$33,000 including WSST for “as needed” psychological evaluations, which is supported in the 
Sheriff’s Patrol and Custody approved 2015/2016 budgets for pre-employment exams; NOW, 
THEREFORE  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
concurs with the Sheriff’s Office recommendation and hereby approves the First Amendment to 
the Personal Service Contract between Benton County and Psychological Consultants, Inc. 
increasing the overall contract amount not to exceed $33,000.00 including WSST; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Chairman of the Board to sign 
the First Amendment attached hereto; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the term of the contract commences January 1, 2015 and expires 
on December 31, 2016. 
  
Dated this _________day of_____________, 2016 
 
         
 Chairman of the Board 
 
             
             
                   Member 
          
 
             
                   Member 
 
Attest:  
                       Clerk of the Board 



First Amendment to 
Personal Service Contract  

Between 
Benton County and Psychological Consultants, Inc.  

 

THIS CONTRACT AMENDMENT, made and entered into this _______ day of 
____________, 2016 by and between BENTON COUNTY, a political subdivision of the 
State of Washington, with its principal offices at 620 Market Street, Prosser, WA 99350 
(hereinafter “COUNTY”), and PSYCHOLOGICAL CONSULTANTS, INC. with its 
principal offices at 2401 Alexander Ave., Richland, WA 99354 (hereinafter 
“CONTRACTOR”). 

Recitals 

Whereas, COUNTY and CONTRACTOR entered into a Personal Service Contract 
dated January 6, 2015 (the “Contract”) whereby the CONTRACTOR would perform “as 
needed” psychological evaluations for the Benton County Sheriff’s Office, as further 
outlined in the original Contract.   

Whereas, the both parties agree it is necessary to increase the overall Contract 
amount, while maintaining the rest of the Contract in full force and effect.  

Now, therefore, in consideration of the provisions and agreements set forth herein, 
the parties agree that all provisions of their original Contract shall remain in effect except 
the below sections which are amended as follows: 

 
a) Section 5.  COMPENSATION – Section 5.b is hereby deleted and replaced in 

its entirety with the following:   
 
 b. The maximum total amount payable by the COUNTY to the 

 CONTRACTOR under this Contract shall not exceed $33,000.00, including 
 any Washington State Sales Tax.  

  





AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: Sept. 13, 2016     
Subject: MOU w/ Lourdes 

Counseling Center 
Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract __X _  
Pass Resolution  __X__ 
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion _____  
Other  _____ 

Consent Agenda           __X   _ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____ 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 

Benton County Jail and the Lourdes Counseling Center currently has a Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) in place for the purpose of providing services such as mental health evaluations, in-community 
transitional services, application or reinstatements of medical assistance, pre-release transitional 
planning, and etc. to inmates incarcerated within the Benton County Jail with mental illness.   

The current MOU is effective through August 30, 2016.   

Benton County Jail and Lourdes Counseling Center wishes to enter into another MOU for said services 
effective through August 30, 2018.  

APPROVED AS TO FORM  

Ryan Lukson, DPA  

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the attached Resolution and MOU between Benton County Jail and Lourdes Counseling Center 
and authorized the Benton County Sheriff to sign the attached MOU.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no fiscal impact.  This service is related to Lourdes Counseling Center’s contractual arrangement 
with Greater Columbia Behavior Health.  

MOTION 

Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
pp. MOU w/Lourdes Counseling Center Mental Health Evaluations



Orig:  Sheriff’s Office 
cc: Auditor, S. Araiza, LCC, GCBH 

Prepared by: L. Small  

  
 

RESOLUTION 

  

 
BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
IN THE MATTER OF APPROVING THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

BETWEEN THE BENTON COUNTY JAIL AND LOURDES COUNSELING CENTER  
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Jail and the Lourdes Counseling Center currently has a 
Memorandum of Understanding in place for the purpose of defining the working relationship between 
Our Lady of Lourdes at Pasco, a non-for-profit corporation d/b/a/ Lourdes Counseling Center related 
to Lourdes Counseling Center’s contractual arrangement with Greater Columbia Behavior Health, 
providing services to inmates with mental illness incarcerated within the Benton County Jail; and  
 
WHEREAS, the current Memorandum of Understanding is effective through August 30, 2016; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Jail and Lourdes Counseling Center wishes to enter into another 
Memorandum of Understanding to provide said services as further outline in the attached 
Memorandum of Understanding; NOW, THEREFORE 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
hereby concurs with the attached Memorandum of Understanding between the Benton County Jail 
and Lourdes Counseling Center and hereby authorizes the Benton County Sheriff to sign the 
Memorandum of Understanding attached hereto; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the attached Memorandum of Understanding shall commence 
September 1, 2016 and remain in effect through August 30, 2018. 
 
 
 

Dated this __________________ day of ___________________, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
                                   ______ _________                
 Chairman of the Board 
 
  
                                   ______ _________                
 Member 
 
 
                                   ______ _________                
 Member 
  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington. 
Attest....................................................... 
                  Clerk of the Board  







 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Sept. 13, 2016    

Subject: DEA Asset Forfeiture 

Sharing MOU   

Prepared by: L. Small       

Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  

   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract ___ _  

Pass Resolution  __X__  

Pass Ordinance  _____  

Pass Motion  _____  

Other   _____ 

 

Consent Agenda           __X   _ 

Public Hearing            _____  

1st Discussion            _____ 

2nd Discussion            _____ 

Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
  
As per Resolution 2016-641 dated August 23, 2016, the Board of Benton County Commissioners approved the 
Program Funded State and Local Task Force Agreement between Benton County, by and for, the Benton County 
Sheriff’s Office (BCSO) and United States Department of Justice, Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) assigning 
one (1) experienced deputy officer to the DEA Task Force.  
 
Attached is the DEA Asset Forfeiture Sharing Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between BCSO and DEA, which 
outlines the Equitable Sharing Program between the Task Force Members and their contribution to the Task Force.    
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Approve the attached Resolution approving the DEA Asset Forfeiture Sharing MOU and authorize the Benton County 
Sheriff’s signature on said MOU.  

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

 
Ryan Lukson  

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
 

 

 

 

MOTION 
 
Consent Agenda  

WEH
Text Box
qq. MOU w/US Dept. of Justice for DEA Task Force



Orig: BCSO 
         Auditor; PA Office, DEA  L. Small 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dated this __________ day of __________________, 2016 
 
 
 

 
       

Chairman  
 

       
Member 

      
                

Member 
 

Attest: ____________________________                             Constituting the Board of County Commissioners  
                           Clerk of the Board       of Benton County, Washington 

    

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF TO SIGN THE 
DRUG ENFORCEMENT ADMINISTRATION ASSET FORFEITURE SHARING 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT 
OF JUSTICE, DRUG ENFORCEMENT ADMINISTRATION (DEA) AND BENTON COUNTY, 
BY AND FOR, BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2016-641 the Board of Benton County Commissioners approved the 
Program Funded State and Local Task Force Agreement between Benton County, by and for, the Benton 
County Sheriff’s Office (BCSO) and United States Department of Justice, Drug Enforcement 
Administration (DEA) assigning one (1) experienced deputy officer to the DEA Task Force; and  
 
WHEREAS, the attached DEA Asset Forfeiture Sharing Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
between BCSO and DEA outlines the Equitable Sharing Program between the Task Force Participants 
and their contribution to the Task Force; and   
 
WHEREAS, the equitable sharing among the Task Force members is based on the pre-arranged 
percentages, as further outlined in the attached MOU; NOW, THEREFORE   
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington hereby 
concurs with the attached Drug Enforcement Administration Asset Forfeiture Sharing Memorandum of 
Understanding between Benton County, by and for, Benton County Sheriff’s Office and United States 
Department of Justice, Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA); and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Benton County Sheriff to sign the 
DEA Asset Forfeiture Sharing MOU attached hereto. 







L. Small  

AGENDA ITEM 
Meeting Date: Sept, 13, 2016 
Subject: MOU Modification w/ 
US Marshal – Eastern District 
of WA 
Prepared by: L. Small 
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson 

TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract _X   _ 

Pass Resolution 
Pass Ordinance 
Pass Motion 
Other 

Consent Agenda _X  _ 
Public Hearing 
1st Discussion 

2nd Discussion 

Other  

BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 

The United States Marshal Service (USMS) has been granted authority to direct and coordinate permanent US 
Marshal Services Violent Offender Task Forces consisting of Federal, state, and local law enforcement for the 
purpose of locating and apprehending fugitives. 

The Benton County Sheriff’s Office (BCSO) has a detective who is part of the Joint Law Enforcement Operations 
(JLEO) for the United States Marshal. 

Per Resolution 2015-899, the Board of Commissioners authorized the Benton County Sheriff to sign the 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Benton County Sheriff’s Office and US Marshal Eastern District of 
Washington for reimbursement of an amount up to $14,406.89 for overtime, travel, training, vehicle purchases, fuel, 
supplies or equipment for a period of October 1, 2015 to September 30, 2016. 

Per Resolution 2016-117, the Board of Commissioners approved the modification to the MOU for Joint Law 
Enforcement Operations Task Force FY-16 for a partial recoupment of funds with a reimbursement cap of 
$13,406.89 for the period of October 1, 2015 to September 30, 2016.  

Attached is a modification to above mentioned MOU between Benton County Sheriff’s Office and US Marshal 
Eastern District of Washington decreasing the original reimbursement amount to a cap amount of $8,885.50 for the 
deobligation of residual funding remaining upon completion of JLEO service for the remainder of FY-16, as the 
detective who is assigned to this position is unavailable to work the rest of this year due to an injury.  

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the attached Resolution, authorizing the Benton County Sheriff’s signature o n  t h e  attached 
Memorandum of Understanding modification for the Joint Law Enforcement Operations Task Force between 
the Benton County Sheriff’s Office and US Marshal Eastern District of Washington for the deobligation of residual 
funding remaining for JLEO services for the remainder of FY-16.  

APPROVED AS TO FORM 

Ryan Lukson has declined to approve as to form, as he did with the original MOU with JLEO, with the same concerns 
he has had with other federal and state partnerships regarding potential liability concerns.   

FISCAL IMPACT 

Reduction of FY 2016 Overtime Reimbursements back to the County in the amount of ($4,521.39) with a cap amount 
of $8,885.50. 

MOTION 

Consent Agenda 

WEH
Text Box
rr. MOU Modification #2 w/United States Marshal for Joint Law Enforcement Operations



Orig: Sheriff’s Office    L. Small  
Cc: Auditor, PA, JLEO 

 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 

IN THE MATTER OF THE BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
AUTHORIZING THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S SIGNATURE ON THE 
ATTACHED MOU MODIFICATION BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S 
OFFICE AND UNITED STATES MARSHAL - EASTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON 
FOR THE JOINT LAW ENFORCEMENT OPERATIONS FOR FY 2016 
 
WHEREAS, the United States Marshal Service (USMS) has been granted authority to direct 
and coordinate permanent USMS Violent Offender Task Forces consisting of Federal, state, and 
local law enforcement for the purpose of locating and apprehending fugitives; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Sheriff’s Office has a detective who is part of the Joint Law 
Enforcement Operations (JLEO) for the United States Marshal; and 
 
WHEREAS, reimbursement is granted by the USMS, if funding is available, for 1) overtime 
incurred by the state or local investigators who provided full time support to USMS joint law 
enforcement task forces; or 2) travel, training, purchase or lease of police vehicles, fuel, supplies or 
equipment for state and local investigators in direct support of state and local investigators; and 
 
WHEREAS, per Resolution 2015-899, the Board of Benton County Commissioners authorized 
the Benton County Sheriff to sign the Memorandum of Understanding outlining the amount of 
reimbursement to Benton County Sheriff’s Office in the amount up to $14,406.89 for the period 
of October 1, 2015 to September 30, 2016; and 
 
WHEREAS, Per Resolution 2016-117, the Board of Commissioners approved the modification to 
the MOU for JLEO Task Force FY-16 for a partial recoupment of funds with a reimbursement cap 
of $13,406.89 for the period of October 1, 2015 to September 30, 2016; and   
 
WHEREAS, attached is a modification to above mentioned MOU between Benton County Sheriff’s 
Office and US Marshal Eastern District of Washington decreasing the original reimbursement 
amount to a cap amount of $8,885.50 for the deobligation of residual funding remaining upon 
completion of JLEO service for the remainder of FY-16, as the detective who is assigned to this 
position is unavailable to work the rest of this year; NOW, THEREFORE 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington 
hereby approves the modification to the Memorandum of Understanding for the Joint Law 
Enforcement Operations Task Force FY-16 between Benton County Sheriff’s Office for the 
deobligation of residual funding remaining upon completion of JLEO service for the remainder of 
FY-16, with a reimbursement cap of $8,885.50 for the period of October 1, 2015 to September 30, 
2016; and 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Orig: Sheriff’s Office    L. Small  
Cc: Auditor, PA, JLEO 

 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Board hereby authorizes the Benton County Sheriff’s 
signature on the MOU modification between United States Marshal Service and Benton County 
Sheriff’s Office. 
 
 
 
 
Dated this    day of               , 2016 
 
 

      
 ________________________________________  

 Chairman of the Board 
 

________________________________________ 
Member 

 
________________________________________ 

            Member 
              

Attest: 
                       Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 
 
            
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Constituting the Board of County Commissioners 
of Benton County, Washington  





WEH
Text Box
ss. Salary Request Statement



WEH
Text Box
tt. Purchaser’s Revised Commitment Letter for CRID No. 21; Amending Res No. 2016-626















 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date: Sept. 13, 2016      
Subject: WTSC Interagency 

Agreement Grant 
Funding for Traffic 
Safety Emphasis 

Prepared by: L. Small       
Reviewed by: Ryan Lukson  

   

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract __X_ _  
Pass Resolution  __X__  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Consent Agenda           _____ 
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            __X__ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION/ SUMMARY 
 
Benton County Sheriff’s Office (BCSO) has received overtime funding from Washington Traffic Safety Commission 
(WTSC) for overtime relating to traffic safety emphasis patrols for several years.  
 
Attached is an Interagency Agreement between BCSO and WTSC providing funding to BCSO to conduct 
multijurisdictional, high visibility enforcement, traffic safety emphasis patrols to reduce traffic related deaths and 
serious injuries through aggressive impaired driving, occupant protection, and distracted driving.   
 
Funds break down into the following enforcement overtime categories:  
 
Impaired Driving Patrols: $3,200 
Distracted Driving Patrols: $1,200 
Seat Belt Patrols: $900 
Flex Funding: $3,200 (local DUI, Speed, Distracted, and Seat Belt Patrols)  
 
WTSC has requested that BCSO sign the document prior to signature on their end.  A fully executed copy will be 
forwarded to the Commissioners office for the records once it is received.   
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Authorize the Benton County Sheriff to sign the attached Interagency Agreement between BCSO and WTSC for 
grant funding in the amount of $8,500 for traffic safety emphasis patrol.  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM  
 
Ryan Lukson 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
This is a reimbursable grant, with no cash match requirements.  This grant will be included in the budget process.   
 
 
MOTION 
 
The Board of Benton County Commissioners hereby authorizes the Benton County Sheriff to sign the attached 
Interagency Agreement between Benton County Sheriff’s Office and Washington Traffic Safety Commission for 
grant funding in the amount of $8,500 to conduct multijurisdictional, high visibility enforcement, traffic safety 
emphasis patrols from October 1, 2016 – September 30, 2017. 

WEH
Text Box
WTSC Agreement for Grant Funding for Traffic Safety Emphasis ~ Lt. Caughey



Orig: BCSO 
Cc: Auditors, PA’s Office, WTSC  L. Small 

RESOLUTION 
  

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

IN THE MATTER OF AUTHORIZING THE BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF TO SIGN THE  
INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT BETWEEN BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND 
WASHINGTON TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMISSION PROVIDING GRANT FUNDING FOR 
OVERTIME RELATING TO TRAFFIC SAFETY EMPHASIS PATROLS  

WHEREAS, the Benton County Sheriff’s Office received the attached Interagency Agreement 
between the Benton County Sheriff’s Office (BCSO) and Washington Traffic Safety Commission 
(WTSC) outlining grant funding to BCSO to conduct multijurisdictional, high visibility enforcement, 
traffic safety emphasis patrols to reduce traffic related deaths and serious injuries through 
aggressive impaired driving, occupant protection, and distracted driving; and  
 
WHEREAS, said patrol emphasis shall be conducted on specific dates from October 1, 2016 – 
September 30, 2017, as further outline in the attached Interagency Agreement with grant funding 
as follows:  
 

 Statewide Impaired Driving Patrol Funding: $3,200   
 Statewide Distracted Driving Patrols Funding: 1,200 
 Seat Belt Patrol Funding: $900 
 Flex Patrol Funding: $3,200 

 
WHEREAS, the Benton County Sheriff recognizes the importance for traffic safety emphasis 
patrols to reduce traffic related accidents and recommends approving the Interlocal Agreement 
to accept the grant funding from WTSC in the total amount of $8,500; NOW, THEREFORE  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, Washington, 
the Board hereby concurs with the recommendation and authorizes the Benton County Sheriff to 
sign the attached Interagency Agreement between Benton County Sheriff’s Office and 
Washington Traffic Safety Commission for grant funding in the amount of $8,500 to conduct 
multijurisdictional, high visibility enforcement, traffic safety emphasis patrols; and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the term of this Interagency Agreement is October 1, 2016 – 
September 30, 2017.  
 
 
Dated this  ________ day of _____________, 2016. 

 
  ___________________________                

 Chairman of the Board 
 
  

 ___________________________                
 Member 

 
 

 ___________________________                
 Member 

  
 Constituting the Board of Commissioners 

of Benton County, Washington 
Attest....................................................... 
                  Clerk of the Board 



 
 

Agency: BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE 
Project Number: FFY2017 HVE 
 

Acknowledgement of WTSC Grant Requirements 
 
When the authorizing official and the project manager sign the agreement for a WTSC 
grant, they agree to comply fully with the terms and conditions set forth in the contract 
as well as additional federal requirements outlined in the Electronic Code of Federal 
Regulations for Federal Grants and Agreements:  (http://www.ecfr.gov/cgi-bin/text-

idx?tpl=/ecfrbrowse/Title02/2cfr200_main_02.tpl). 
 
The WTSC provides all grant recipients an opportunity to ask questions or discuss 
concerns about the terms and conditions of the grant.  This opportunity may consist of 
an in-person meeting or conference call, depending on the complexity of the project and 
the recipient’s level of experience with federal grants.  Once this opportunity has been 
provided, the grant recipient’s project manager certifies to the grant requirements, 
including the following elements: 
 

 Contract Provisions 
o Billing procedure o Political activity/Hatch Act 
o Project Reporting o Suspension & debarment 
o Nondiscrimination o Contract Termination 
o Drug-Free workplace 
o State Lobbying 

o Buy America Act 
o Federal Lobbying 

 Project changes and amendments 

 Quarterly and final reports 

 Third-party contracts 

 Indirect costs (Cost Allocation Plan or Federal Cognizant Agency rate approval letter) 

 Project Income Requirements 

 Promotional/Incentive Item Purchase Restrictions  

 Equipment purchases (approval and tracking requirements) 

 Travel rules (State Administrative & Accounting Manual-http://ofm.wa.gov/policy/10.htm)

 Light Refreshments Policy (WTSC Policy #7.5- http://wtsc.wa.gov/resources/policies/) 

 Single audit requirements  

 Time keeping requirements 

 
I understand the items listed above or they have been explained to me by 
representatives of the Washington Traffic Safety Commission. 
 
____________________________________               ____________________ 
Agency Signature (Grant Recipient)        Date 



  
 

1 
 

INTERAGENCY AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

BENTON COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE AND  
WASHINGTON TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMISSION 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between the Benton County Sheriff’s 
Office, hereinafter referred to as “AGENCY,” and the Washington Traffic Safety Commission, 
hereinafter referred to as “WTSC.”   
 
THE PURPOSE OF THIS AGREEMENT is to provide funding for the AGENCY to conduct 
multijurisdictional, high visibility enforcement (HVE) traffic safety emphasis patrols (as outlined 
in Exhibit A), in support of Target Zero priorities. The Target Zero Manager (TZM) and/or Law 
Enforcement Liaison (LEL) assigned to the AGENCY shall coordinate the Scope of Work 

as outlined below with the goal of reducing traffic related deaths and serious injuries. 
 
THEREFORE, IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED THAT:   
 
STATEMENT OF WORK 
The AGENCY shall conduct specific HVE patrols as described in the Statement of Work 
attached as Exhibit A and as coordinated by the local TZM and/or LEL. 
 
PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE 
The period of performance of this Agreement shall commence on October 1, 2016 and remain 
in effect until September 30, 2017 unless terminated sooner, as provided herein. 
 
COMPENSATION AND CONDITIONS  
Compensation for the work provided in accordance with this Agreement has been established 
under the terms of RCW 39.34.  The cost of accomplishing the work described in the Statement 
of Work will not exceed $8,500 (EIGHT THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS).  Funds 
break down into the following enforcement overtime categories: 
 

Statewide Impaired Driving Patrols: $3,200 
Grant Award # Section 402  

 
Statewide Distracted Driving Patrols: $1,200 
Grant Award # Section 402 
 
Statewide Seat Belt Patrols: $900 
Grant Award # Section 402 
 
Flex Funding: $3,200 
(Local DUI, Speed, Distracted, and Seat Belt Patrols) 
Grant Award # Section 402 
 
Motorcycle Safety: $0 
Grant Award # Section 402 
 
Target Zero Teams (DUI): $0 
Grant Award # MAP-21 Section 405d 
 



  
 

2 
 

These funds shall not be commingled and are only to be utilized for the 
specified emphasis area. 
 
See Exhibit C for detailed federal award information. 

 
 

PARTICIPATION REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS:  
For each of the emphasis patrols listed above, Multijurisdictional High Visibility Enforcement 
Protocols, as outlined in Exhibit B of this document, will be followed.  Exceptions to these 
protocols may only be provided by the WTSC Program Manager. 
 
Standardized Field Sobriety Testing (SFST) Training Requirement 
 
The AGENCY certifies that all officers participating in traffic safety emphasis patrols are SFST 
trained. To meet this requirement: 
 

• Officer must be BAC certified and have passed the SFST refresher training 
within the prior three years, or  

• Officer must have successfully completed Advanced Roadside Impaired Driving 
Enforcement (ARIDE), or  

• Officer must be a certified Drug Recognition Expert. 
 

 
SHIFT LENGTH:  The AGENCY will not schedule individual officer overtime shifts for longer 
than eight hours.  WTSC understands there may be instances when more than eight hours are 
billed because of DUI processing, etc. 
 
RESERVE OFFICERS:  The AGENCY certifies that any reserve officer for whom 
reimbursement is claimed has exceeded his/her normal monthly working hours when 
participating in this emphasis patrol and is authorized to be paid the amount requested. Reserve 
officers may only be paid at the normal hourly rate and not at the 1.5 overtime rate.   
 
DISPATCH:  WTSC will reimburse communications officers/dispatch personnel for work on this 
project providing Agency has received prior approval from the designated TZM. 
 
ALLOWABLE COSTS: The AGENCY will provide commissioned law enforcement with 
appropriate equipment (vehicle, radar, PBTs etc.) to participate in the emphasis patrols.  WTSC 
will reimburse for overtime at 1.5 times officer’s normal rate plus AGENCY’s contributions to 
employee benefits including FICA, Medicare, Worker’s Compensation and unemployment. The 
total cost of salary and benefits shall not be exceeded in any one enforcement overtime 
category and funds may not be commingled between campaign areas.  
 

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS 
Participating law enforcement officers are required to make a minimum of 3 self-initiated 
contacts per hour of enforcement. Some violator contacts may result in related, time-consuming 
activity.  This activity is reimbursable. Other activities, such as collision investigation or 
emergency response that are not initiated through emphasis patrol contact WILL NOT be 
reimbursed. 
 
 
 



  
 

3 
 

BILLING PROCEDURE  
The AGENCY shall submit invoices for reimbursement with supporting documentation to WTSC 
monthly. All invoices for reimbursement shall be submitted via WTSC’s Enterprise Management 
System (WEMS), and associated with approved HVE logs. Payment to the AGENCY for 
approved and completed work will be made by warrant or account transfer by WTSC within 30 
days of receipt of the invoice.  Upon expiration of the Agreement, any claim for payment not 
already made shall be submitted within 45 days after the expiration date of this Agreement.  All 
invoices for goods received or services performed on or prior to June 30, must be submitted in 
WEMS no later than July 31.  All invoices for goods or services performed on or prior to 
September 30, must be received by WTSC no later than November 15. 
 
 
OVERTIME REPORTING 
The AGENCY agrees to have all personnel who work HVE patrols complete officer Emphasis 
Patrol Activity Logs in WEMS within 48 hours of the end of all shifts worked. These same logs 
will be associated with invoices as detailed above. 

 
 
ADVANCE PAYMENTS PROHIBITED 
No payments in advance of or in anticipation of goods or services to be provided under this 
contract shall be made by the WTSC. 
 
AGREEMENT ALTERATIONS AND AMENDMENTS 
This Agreement may be amended by mutual agreement of the parties.  Such amendments shall 
not be binding unless they are in writing and signed by personnel authorized to bind each of the 
parties. Upon agreement by the AGENCY and the local TZM, allocation categories may be 
increased or decreased without amending this agreement PROVIDED THAT the increase in the 
allocation does not exceed 50% of the original agreed amount for the specific category.  Any 
increase in allocation exceeding 50% will require an amendment to this document. 

 
STATE AND FEDERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 
 
ALL WRITINGS CONTAINED HEREIN 
This Agreement contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties.  No other 
understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be 
deemed to exist or to bind any of the parties hereto. 
 
ASSIGNMENT 
The work to be provided under this Agreement, and any claim arising thereunder, is not 
assignable or delegable by either party in whole or in part, without the express prior written 
consent of the party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. The AGENCY shall 
provide the WTSC a copy of all third-party contracts and agreements entered into for purposes 
of fulfilling the Statement of Work outlined in Exhibit A.  All third-party awards must allow for the 
greatest practical competition in accordance with applicable procurement rules and procedures.   
 
ATTORNEYS’ FEES 
In the event of litigation or other action brought to enforce contract terms, each party agrees to 
bear its own attorney fees and costs. 
 



  
 

4 
 

BUY AMERICA ACT 
The AGENCY will comply with the provisions of the Buy America Act (49 U.S.C. 5323(j)), which 
contains the following requirements: 
 
Only steel, iron and manufactured products produced in the United States may be purchased 
with Federal funds unless the Secretary of Transportation determines that such domestic 
purchases would be inconsistent with the public interest, that such materials are not reasonably 
available and of a satisfactory quality, or that inclusion of domestic materials will increase the 
cost of the overall project contract by more than 25 percent. Clear justification for the purchase 
of non-domestic items must be in the form of a waiver request submitted to and approved by the 
Secretary of Transportation. 
 
CONFIDENTIALITY / SAFEGUARDING OF INFORMATION 
The AGENCY shall not use or disclose any information concerning the WTSC, or information 
which may be classified as confidential, for any purpose not directly connected with the 
administration of this contract, except with prior written consent of the WTSC, or as may be 
required by law.   
 
COST PRINCIPLES 
Costs incurred under this Agreement shall adhere to provisions of 2 CFR Part 200 Subpart E.  
The AGENCY shall not utilize Federal grant funds to replace routine and/or existing State or 
local expenditures; or utilize Federal grant funds for costs of activities that constitute general 
expenses required to carry out the overall responsibilities of State, local, or Federally-
recognized Indian tribal governments. 
  
COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES 
The AGENCY warrants that no person or selling agent has been employed or retained to solicit 
or secure this contract upon an agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, 
brokerage or contingent fee, excepting bona fide employees or bona fide established agents 
maintained by the AGENCY for the purpose of securing business.  The WTSC shall have the 
right, in the event of breach of this clause by the AGENCY, to annul this contract without liability 
or, in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or consideration or recover by other means 
the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage or contingent fee. 
 
DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION  
Instructions for Lower Tier Certification 
 
1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the AGENCY (hereinafter in this section referred to 
as “prospective lower tier participant”) is providing the certification set out below. 
 
2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was 
placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower 
tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal government, the department or agency with which this transaction 
originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 
 
3. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to 
which this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that 
its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed 
circumstances. 
 



  
 

5 
 

4. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible, lower tier covered 
transaction, participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily 
excluded, as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definition and Coverage 
sections of 49 CFR Part 29. You may contact the person to whom this proposal is submitted for 
assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations. 
 
5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the 
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier 
covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 
CFR Part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from 
participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with 
which this transaction originated. 
 
6. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will 
include the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and 
Voluntary Exclusion -- Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier 
covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions. (See below) 
 
7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant 
in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 
48 CFR Part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from the 
covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide 
the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant 
may, but is not required to, check the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement and 
Non-procurement Programs. 
 
8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of 
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge 
and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a 
prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings. 
 
9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in 
a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who 
is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR Part 9, subpart 9.4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, 
or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies 
available to the Federal government, the department or agency with which this transaction 
originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or debarment. 
 
Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -- Lower 
Tier Covered Transactions: 
 
1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it 
nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, 
or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or 
agency. 
 
2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this 
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal. 
 
DISPUTES 



  
 

6 
 

In the event that a dispute arises under this Agreement, it shall be determined by a Dispute 
Board in the following manner:  Each party to this Agreement shall appoint one member to the 
Dispute Board.  The members so appointed shall jointly appoint an additional member to the 
Dispute Board.  The Dispute Board shall review the facts, agreement terms and applicable 
statutes and rules and make a determination of the dispute.  The determination of the Dispute 
Board shall be final and binding on the parties hereto.  As an alternative to this process, either 
of the parties may request intervention by the Governor, as provided by RCW 43.17.330, in 
which event the Governor's process will control. 
 
DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 
In accordance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (41 USC 8103 and 42 USC 12644), 
the AGENCY shall publish a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, 
distribution, dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the 
workplace and shall specify the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such 
provision.  The AGENCY shall establish a drug-free awareness program and require that 
employees provide notification of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation occurring in 
the workplace no later than five days after such incident.  The AGENCY shall notify WTSC 
within ten days after such notification by an employee engaged in the performance of the grant.  
Within 30 days, the AGENCY will take appropriate personnel action against such employee, up 
to and including termination, and require the employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug 
abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, state, or 
local health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency. 
 
FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) 
In accordance with FFATA, the AGENCY shall, upon request, provide WTSC the names and 
total compensation of the five most highly compensated officers of the entity if:  
(i) the entity in the preceding fiscal year received— 

I. 80 percent or more of its annual gross revenues in Federal awards;  
II. $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues from Federal awards; and 

(ii) the public does not have access to information about the compensation of the senior 
executives of the entity through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986; 
 
FEDERAL LOBBYING  
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 
 
1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of 
the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee 
of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a 
Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any 
Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, 
and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, 
grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 
 
2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any 
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of 
Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the 
undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form- LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report 
Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. 
 



  
 

7 
 

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award 
documents for all sub-award at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and contracts under 
grant, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose 
accordingly. 
 
This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this 
transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for 
making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than 
$10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 
 
GOVERNANCE 
This Agreement is entered into pursuant to and under the authority granted by the laws of the 
state of Washington and any applicable federal laws.  The provisions of this Agreement shall be 
construed to conform to those laws. 
 
In the event of an inconsistency in the terms of this Agreement, or between its terms and any 
applicable statute or rule, the inconsistency shall be resolved by giving precedence in the 
following order: 

a. Applicable state and federal statutes and rules; 
b. Terms and Conditions of this agreement; 
c. Any Amendment executed under this Contract; 
d. Any Statement of Work executed under this Contract; and 
e. Any other provisions of the agreement, including materials incorporated by reference. 

 
INCOME 
Income earned by the AGENCY with respect to the conduct of the Statement of Work (e.g. sale 
of publications, registration fees, service charges) must be accounted for and income applied to 
project purposes or used to reduce project costs. 
 
INDEMNIFICATION 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the AGENCY shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 
state, agencies of state and all officials, agents and employees of state, from and against all 
claims for injuries or death arising out of or resulting from the performance of the Contract.  The 
AGENCY’s obligation to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless includes any claim by the 
AGENCY’s agents, employees, representatives, or any subAGENCY or its employees. 
   
The AGENCY expressly agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the state for any claim 
arising out of or incident to AGENCY’s or any subAGENCY’s performance or failure to perform 
the Contract.  
The AGENCY waives its immunity under Title 51 RCW to the extent it is required to indemnify, 
defend and hold harmless state and its agencies, officials, agents or employees. 
 
INDEPENDENT CAPACITY 
The employees or agents of each party who are engaged in the performance of this Agreement 
shall continue to be employees or agents of that party and shall not be considered for any 
purpose to be employees or agents of the other party. 
 
LICENSING, ACCREDITATION AND REGISTRATION 
The AGENCY shall comply with all applicable local, state, and federal licensing, accreditation 
and registration requirements/standards, necessary for the performance of this contract. 



  
 

8 
 

 
NONDISCRIMINATION 
The AGENCY will comply with all Federal statutes and implementing regulations relating to 
nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to:  

1. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Pub. L. 88–352), which prohibits discrimination on 
the basis of race, color or national origin (and 49 CFR Part 21); 

2. Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. 1681–1683 and 
1685–1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of sex;  

3. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 794), and the 
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (Pub. L. 101–336), as amended (42 U.S.C. 
12101, et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of disabilities (and 49 CFR 
Part 27);  

4. the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. 6101–6107), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of age;  

5. Tthe Civil Rights Restoration Act of 1987 (Pub. L.100–259), which requires Federal-aid 
recipients and all subrecipients to prevent discrimination and ensure nondiscrimination in 
all of their programs and activities;  

6. The Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act of 1972 (Pub. L. 92–255), as amended, 
relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse;  

7. Tthe comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and 
Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (Pub. L. 91–616), as amended, relating to nondiscrimination 
on the basis of alcohol abuse or alcoholism;  

8. Sections 523 and 527 of the Public Health Service Act of 1912, as amended (42 U.S.C. 
290dd–3 and 290ee–3), relating to confidentiality of alcohol and drug abuse patient 
records; 

9. Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended (42 U.S.C. 3601, et seq.), relating 
to nondiscrimination in the sale, rental or financing of housing; 

10. Any other nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) under which application 
for Federal assistance is being made; and 

11. The requirements of any other nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the 
application. 

 
In the event the CONTRACTOR is in non-compliance or refuses to comply with any 
nondiscrimination law, regulation, or policy, this Agreement may be rescinded, canceled or 
terminated in whole or in part, and the CONTRACTOR may be declared ineligible for further 
contracts with the WTSC.  The CONTRACTOR shall, however, be given a reasonable time in 
which to cure this noncompliance.  Any dispute may be resolved in accordance with the 
"Disputes" procedure set forth herein. 
 
POLITICAL ACTIVITY (HATCH ACT)  
The AGENCY will comply with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. 1501-1508) which limits the 
political activities of employees whose principal employment activities are funded in whole or in 
part with Federal funds.  
 
RECORDS MAINTENANCE 
The parties to this Agreement shall each maintain books, records, documents and other 
evidence that sufficiently and properly reflect all direct and indirect costs expended by either 
party in the performance of the service(s) described herein.  These records shall be subject to 
inspection, review or audit by personnel of both parties, other personnel duly authorized by 
either party, the Office of the State Auditor, and federal officials so authorized by law.  All books, 
records, documents, and other material relevant to this Agreement will be retained for six years 



  
 

9 
 

after expiration and the Office of the State Auditor, federal auditors, and any persons duly 
authorized by the parties shall have full access and the right to examine any of these materials 
during this period. 
 
Records and other documents, in any medium, furnished by one party to this Agreement to the 
other party, will remain the property of the furnishing party, unless otherwise agreed.  The 
receiving party will not disclose or make available this material to any third parties without first 
giving notice to the furnishing party and giving it a reasonable opportunity to respond.  Each 
party will utilize reasonable security procedures and protections to assure that records and 
documents provided by the other party are not erroneously disclosed to third parties. 
 
 
RIGHT OF INSPECTION 
The AGENCY shall provide right of access to its facilities to the WTSC, or any of its officers, or 
to any other authorized agent or official of the state of Washington or the federal government, at 
all reasonable times, in order to monitor and evaluate performance, compliance, and/or quality 
assurance under this contract.   
 
The AGENCY shall make available information necessary for WTSC to comply with the  right to 
access, amend, and receive an accounting of disclosures of their Personal Information 
according to the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA) or any 
regulations enacted or revised pursuant to the HIPAA provisions and applicable provisions of 
Washington State law.  The AGENCY shall upon request make available to the WTS and the 
U.S. Secretary of the Department of Health & Human Services all internal policies and 
procedures, books, and records relating to the safeguarding, use, and disclosure of Personal 
Information obtained or used as a result of this contract. 
 
RIGHTS IN DATA 
Unless otherwise provided, data that originates from this Agreement shall be “works for hire” as 
defined by the U.S. Copyright Act and shall be owned by the WTSC and the State Of 
Washington.  In the event the Materials are not considered “works for hire” under the U.S. 
Copyright laws, the AGENCY hereby irrevocably assigns all right, title, and interest in data, 
including all intellectual property rights, to the WTSC effective from the moment of creation.  
Data shall include, but not be limited to data, reports, documents, pamphlets, advertisements, 
books, magazines, surveys, studies, computer programs, films, tapes, and/or sound 
reproductions.  Ownership includes the right to copyright, patent, register, and the ability to 
transfer these rights.  
 
The AGENCY may publish, at its own expense, the results of project activities without prior 
review by the WTSC, provided that any publications (written, visual, or sound) contain 
acknowledgment of the support provided by the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 
(NHTSA) and the WTSC.  Any discovery or invention derived from work performed under this 
project shall be referred to the WTSC, who will determine through NHTSA whether patent 
protections will be sought, how any rights will be administered, and other actions required to 
protect the public interest. 
 
SAVINGS 
In the event funding from state, federal, or other sources is withdrawn, reduced, or limited in any 
way after the effective date of this contract and prior to normal completion, the WTSC may 
terminate the contract under the "Termination for Convenience" clause, without the ten day 



  
 

10 
 

notice requirement, subject to renegotiation at the WTSC’s discretion under those new funding 
limitations and conditions. 
 
SEVERABILITY 
If any provision of this Agreement or any provision of any document incorporated by reference 
shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other provisions of this Agreement which 
can be given effect without the invalid provision, if such remainder conforms to the requirements 
of applicable law and the fundamental purpose of this agreement, and to this end the provisions 
of this Agreement are declared to be severable. 
 
STATE LOBBYING  
None of the funds under this program will be used for any activity specifically designed to urge 
or influence a State or local legislator to favor or oppose the adoption of any specific legislative 
proposal pending before any State or local legislative body. Such activities include both direct 
and indirect (e.g., "grassroots") lobbying activities, with one exception. This does not preclude a 
State official whose salary is supported with NHTSA funds from engaging in direct 
communications with State or local legislative officials, in accordance with customary State 
practice, even if such communications urge legislative officials to favor or oppose the adoption 
of a specific pending legislative proposal. 
 
TAXES 
All payments accrued on account of payroll taxes, unemployment contributions, any other taxes, 
insurance or other expenses for the AGENCY or its staff shall be the sole responsibility of the 
AGENCY. 
 
TERMINATION FOR CAUSE 

If the CONTRACTOR does not fulfill in a timely and proper manner its obligations under this 

contract, or violates any of these terms and conditions; the WTSC will give the CONTRACTOR 

written notice of such failure or violation, and may terminate this contract immediately.  The 

CONTRACTOR may be given the opportunity to correct the violation or failure within 15 

(FIFTEEN) days.  If the CONTRACTOR is given the opportunity to correct the violation and the 

violation is not corrected within 15 (FIFTEEN) days, this contract may be terminated by written 

notice of the WTSC. 

TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE 

Either party may, by 30 (THIRTY) days written notice, terminate this contract.  If this contract is 

so terminated, the WTSC shall be liable only for payment required under the terms of this 

contract for services rendered or goods delivered prior to the effective date of termination. 

 
TREATMENT OF ASSETS 
1. Title to all property furnished by the WTSC shall remain property of the WTSC.  Title to all 

property furnished by the AGENCY, for the cost of which the AGENCY is entitled to be 
reimbursed as a direct item of cost under this contract, shall pass to and vest in the WTSC 
upon delivery of such property by the AGENCY.  Title to other property, the cost of which is 
reimbursable to the AGENCY under this contract, shall pass to and vest in the WTSC upon 
(i) issuance for use of such property in the performance of this contract, or (ii) 





  
 

12 
 

 
 
 

Please return this signed Agreement to your Target Zero Manager: 

 
Michael Aldridge 

Region 14 Target Zero Manager 
Benton-Franklin Traffic Safety Task Force 

10419 Aspen Loop 
Pasco, WA 99301-6543 

 
Phone: 509.492.0154 

Email: bftrafficsafetytf@pasco-wa.gov 
 
 
 

 
 

_______________________________________________ 

 
Target Zero Manager will forward this signed document to: 
 
WTSC 
621 – 8th Avenue SW, Suite 409 
PO Box 4094 4       
Olympia, WA 98504-0944 



  
 

13 
 

Exhibit A 

 
STATEMENT OF WORK 
 
 

1. GOAL: To reduce traffic related deaths and serious injuries through aggressive 
impaired driving, occupant protection, speeding and distracted driving 
multijurisdictional HVE patrols. 

 
2. SCOPE OF WORK : 

 

The specific dates for individual campaigns are subject to change. 
 

 
Impaired Driving: 
 
Agency will engage in multijurisdictional HVE patrols, as part of the national effort, 
for all or part of the following dates: 
 
 Holiday DUI Patrols; December 15, 2016 – January 1, 2017 
 Drive Sober or Get Pulled Over Labor Day DUI Crackdown;  
 August 18 – September 4, 2017. 
 
These DUI patrols shall be deployed at locations where the data indicates that the 
most traffic safety benefit can be realized as determined by the local Traffic Safety 
Task Force. Whenever possible statewide mobilization patrols shall begin after 4:00 
p.m. and will occur Friday-Sunday.  

 
Law enforcement officers will complete an Emphasis Patrol Activity Log in WEMS 
within 48 hours of the completion of the patrols. 
 
Seat Belts: 
 
Agency will engage in multijurisdictional HVE seat belt-focused patrols on some or 
all of the following dates as part of the national effort: 
 
Click it or Ticket - May 22 - June 4, 2017 
 
These patrols shall be deployed at locations where the data indicates that the most 
traffic safety benefit can be realized as determined by the local Traffic Safety Task 
Force.  Whenever possible these patrols shall occur in areas with the lowest seat 
belt use. Ideally, these patrols will not begin before 4:00 pm. 

   
Law enforcement officers will complete an Emphasis Patrol Activity Log in WEMS 
within 48 hours of the completion of the patrols. 
 



  
 

14 
 

Distracted Driving 
 
Agency may engage in multijurisdictional HVE distracted driving focused patrols, as 
part of the national effort, for all or part the following dates: 
 
U Drive. U Text. U Pay. – April 3 – 16, 2017 
 
These patrols shall be deployed at locations where the data indicates that the most 
traffic safety benefit can be realized as determined by the local Traffic Safety Task 
Force.  Wherever possible these patrols shall occur in areas with the highest number 
of distracted driving violations. 
 
Law enforcement officers will complete an Emphasis Patrol Activity Log in WEMS 
within 48 hours of the completion of the patrols. 
 
Motorcycle Safety Patrols - July 28, 2017 – August 13, 2017 
 
These motorcycle safety patrols shall be deployed at locations where the data 
indicates that the most traffic safety benefit can be realized as determined by the 
local Traffic Safety Task Force.  
 
Patrols should focus on the illegal and unsafe driving actions of motorcycles.  
 
Patrols should also focus on the illegal and unsafe driving actions of all other motor 
vehicles when relating to motorcycles. This includes failure to yield to a motorcycle, 
following too closely to a motorcycle, etc. 
 
Law enforcement officers will complete an Emphasis Patrol Activity Log in WEMS 
within 48 hours of the completion of the patrols. 
 
Whenever possible, AGENCY should include motorcycle officers in these patrols.  
 
Flex Patrols: 
 
The local Task Force may coordinate local HVE impaired driving, seatbelt, distracted 
driving, or speeding patrols during the contract period.  Refer to each section above 
for the scope of work for each category. Dates may not coincide with statewide 
patrol periods.  Dates of local patrols will be reported in advance to the WTSC on a 
quarterly basis by the county Target Zero Manager.  Refer to Exhibit B for patrol plan 
due dates.  Only work done on Task Force/TZM pre-approved dates will be 
considered for reimbursement. 
 
CONDITIONS:  

 
For each of the emphasis patrols listed above, Multijurisdictional High Visibility 
Enforcement Protocols, as outlined in Exhibit B of this document will be  



  
 

15 
 

followed.  These protocols are incorporated in their entirety to this document by 
reference. Exceptions to these protocols may only be provided by the WTSC 
Program Manager. 
 
Standardized Field Sobriety Testing (SFST) Training Requirement 
 
Agency certifies that all officers participating in these patrols are 
 SFST trained. To meet this requirement: 

• Officer must be BAC certified and have passed the SFST refresher 
training within the prior three years, or  

• Officer must have successfully completed Advanced Roadside Impaired 
Driving Enforcement (ARIDE), or  

• Officer must be a certified Drug Recognition Expert. 
 

Media Contacts: 
 
All of these patrols are conducted as part of a highly publicized, statewide effort.  As 
such, publicity campaigns about these patrols are planned to alert the public to the 
fact that extra patrols are targeting these violations.  Therefore, Agency must provide 
the names of at least two agency officers who can be available for media requests 
and questions. 
 
 
  *At least one of the individuals listed below must be available for weekend 
media contacts, beginning at noon on Fridays before mobilizations: 
 
Steve Caughey, Lieutenant_ 
Name/Title       
 
509.735.6555 ext. 3266 
Steve.Caughey@co.benton.wa.us 
Office Phone & e-mail    
 
509.396.1003_       
Cell Phone     
 
 
Bob Brockman, Detective Sergeant_ 
Name/Title       
 
509.735.6555 
Bob.Brockman@co.benton.wa.us 
Office Phone & e-mail    
 
509.528.5065_       
Cell Phone 



     

16 
 

Exhibit B 

 
Multijurisdictional High-Visibility Enforcement Protocols 

 
Purpose  
 
This protocol is intended to guide Target Zero Managers, Law Enforcement Liaisons, and law 
enforcement agencies in coordinating multijurisdictional high visibility enforcement (HVE) 
mobilizations to address impaired driving, distracted driving, speeding, and seat belt use.  
These mobilizations are funded by federal highway safety grants.  
 
Goal 
 
The goal of multijurisdictional high-visibility campaigns is to reduce fatal and serious injury 
collisions through the coordination of: 
 

 Publicity addressing increased enforcement, and 

 Increased contacts and arrests of violators. 
 

Method 
 
Funding from the Washington Traffic Safety Commission (WTSC) will support multijurisdictional 
HVE patrol activities to increase the number of officers working on impaired driving, distracted 
driving, speeding, and occupant protection enforcement.  Public education and media will be 
coordinated by the Target Zero Manager and Law Enforcement Liaison.  The law enforcement 
activity will support the media effort by demonstrating to the public that the media messages are 
true; i.e., that “extra enforcement patrols (with a particular focus) are going on now” so that the 
public takes the media messages seriously.  
 
The media work will support the police effort by encouraging voluntary compliance with the law.  
The objective of multijurisdictional HVE patrol activities is to change driver behavior by raising 
the awareness of increased enforcement. 
 
 Definitions: 
 

 HVE is enforcement of the law in conjunction with publicity that draws the attention of the 
public to the enforcement activity.  

 Multijurisdictional enforcement is defined as a minimum of three law enforcement 
agencies (LEA’s) or patrol units participating at a designated date and time, enforcing a 
specific activity, in a location determined by the local Target Zero Task Force. 

 
 
 
 
 



  
 

17 
 

Responsibilities 
 
WTSC:  
 

 Provide funding. 
 

 Provide state/local traffic fatality and serious injury data. 
 

 Coordinate paid media at the state level for statewide and local mobilizations (when 
possible). 
 

 Lead news media efforts for: 
 

o Holiday DUI 
o Click It or Ticket  
o U Drive. U Text. U Pay. 
o Drive Sober or Get Pulled Over 

 

 Summarize statewide enforcement activity. 
 

 Report results to the National Highway Traffic Safety Administration.    
 
Target Zero Manager and Law Enforcement Liaison: 
 

 Lead the development of Multijurisdictional High Visibility Enforcement Mobilization 
Plans. 
 

 Submit local patrol plans for local DUI, seat belt, speeding, and distracted mobilizations 
to the WTSC on quarterly basis: 
 

Plans Due: For local patrols planned from: 

August 31, 2016 October 1 – December 31, 2016 

October 31, 2016 January – March, 2017 

January 30, 2017 April – June, 2017 

April 30, 2017 July – September, 2017 

*One yearly plan for local mobilizations may be submitted in lieu of four quarterly plans. 
 

 Coordinate mobilization briefings. 
 

 Lead news media and community outreach efforts for local mobilizations. 
 

 Review and approve all IAAs, invoices, and other documentation before submission to 
WTSC.  This includes follow-up on incomplete invoicing paperwork and Emphasis Patrol 
Activity Logs with unexplained low contacts. 

 
 



  
 

18 
 

Law Enforcement Agencies: 
 

 Send a representative to local task force meetings to plan mobilization locations and exact 
dates. 
 

 Ensure availability of agency media contact, noted on page 3 of this agreement, prior to and 
during all mobilization dates. 
 

 Provide commissioned police officer(s) (active or paid reserve) with appropriate equipment 
(vehicle, radar, etc.) to participate in multijurisdictional HVE patrols. 
 

 Ensure that officers assigned to the multijurisdictional HVE campaigns are qualified to 
enforce the impaired driving laws as outlined on page 2, section 3 of this agreement.  
 

 Require all officers participating in multijurisdictional HVE patrols to attend mobilization 
briefings. 
 

 Ensure officers working the overtime conduct a minimum of three (3) self-initiated contacts 
per hour. 

 

 Require officers to complete and submit multijurisdictional HVE patrol productivity on WTSC 
Emphasis Patrol Activity Log. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
 

19 
 

Exhibit C 
 
 
Federal Agency – National Highway Traffic Safety Administration 
 
Funding 
Source 

Grant Award # Grant Award Name CFDA 
# 

HVE 
Categories 

402 Section 402 State and Community 
Highway Safety Program

20.600 Statewide DUI, 
Distracted Driving, 
Seat Belt, Local 
Flex, Speed, 
Motorcycle 

  National Priority Safety 
Programs 

  

405b Map-21 Section 405b Occupant Protection 20.616  

405c Map-21 Section 405c State Traffic Safety 
Information Systems 

20.616  

405d  Map-21 Section 405d  Impaired Driving 
Countermeasures 

20.616 TZT 

405d II Map-21 Section 405d II Impaired Driving Ignition 
Interlock 

20.616  

405f Map-21 Section 405f Motorcycle Safety 20.616  

 
 
 



AGENDA ITEM TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, September 13, Execute Contract Consent Agenda 
2016 Pass Resolution Public Hearing 

Subject: Pass Ordinance 1st Discussion X 
Prepared by: M. Ault, C. Fraley Pass Motion 2nd Discussion 
Reviewed by: R. Lukson Other Scheduled Business Other 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
We are requesting approval for an Imaging Contract with CI Information Management. 

SUMMARY 

Because of new construction needs, the Prosecutor's Office had to remove their files f rom the back storage 
room in the Justice Center and from the Health Department. Since no storage area could be located at 
the Benton County Justice Center, the Benton County Prosecutor's Off ice, with approval from the Benton 
County Commissioners, entered into a contract with CI Information Management for storage and retrieval 
of our files under Resolution 2016-194 (attached.) Due to unforeseen high demand of retrieving necessary 
fi les, it was determined that the files needed to be scanned into our local Benton County server for easy 
access and to reduce retrieval and storage costs. Since CI Information Management is storing our files off 
site, it is most efficient and economical to have them scan our files as wel l . 

RECOMMENDA TION 

FISCAL IMPACT 
CI Information Management indicates the total cost of the project will be $398,562 over 36 months for 2160 boxes. 
This breaks down to a total of $184.42 per box. 

MOTION 
The Imaging Contract with CI Information Management be placed on the September 20, 2016 consent agenda for 
approval by the board. 

WEH
Text Box
Document Management Agreement w/CI Information Management ~ R Lukson & M Ault



R E S O L U T I O N 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

IN THE MATTER OF SIGNING A DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR 
SCANNING PROSECUTOR'S OFFICE BOXES LOCATED AT CI INFORMATION 
MANAGEMENT SERVICE CENTER BETWEEN CI SUPPORT, L L C , DBA CI INFORMATION 
MANAGEMENT COMPANY, AND BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

WHEREAS, Benton County uses Local Government Common Records Retention Schedules (CORE) 
along with other approved schedules for the destruction and/or transfer of public record documentation to 
scan, toss, and archive; and 

WHEREAS, the Prosecutor's Office previously stored files in the Benton County Justice Center and 
Health Department; and 

WHEREAS, there is no longer storage space available within County facilities for these files, and with 
Benton County Board of Commissioner approval, 2160 boxes were sent to CI Information Management for 
storage; and 

WHEREAS, while there has been an ongoing effort to scan, toss and archive records, there are 2160 boxes 
of records stored at CI Information Management which require scanning to save the County the time and 
money of physically accessing the records at CI Information Management; 

N O W T H E R E F O R E , 

B E IT R E S O L V E D all Prosecuting Attorney's Office boxes located at CI Information Management, 411 
West Railroad Avenue, Kennewick, WA 99336, to be scanned and purged, as appropriate. 

BE IT F U R T H E R R E S O L V E D , this service agreement will be in effect for the sooner of project 
completion or thirty-six (36) months, effective the date of the last signature on the CI Information 
Management service agreement. 

B E I T F U R T H E R R E S O L V E D , the Chairman of the Board of Benton County Commissioners 
is hereby authorized to sign the CI Information Management Service Agreement on behalf of Benton 
County. 

Dated this day of 2016 

Chairman of the Board 

Member 

Member 
Constituting the Board of County 

Commissioners of Benton County, 
Washington. Attest: 

Clerk of the Board 

Original: PA 
Cc: Auditor, Commissioners, LSK, 



information 
Management 
A Columbia Industries Company 

Document Imaging Project Service Agreement: 

This Document Imaging Project Service Agreement (the "Agreement") is entered into by and 
between the "Client" and "Vendor"(as specified below) and effective as of the date noted by the 
signature of an authorized representative of the Client, and provides for certain document 
imaging services to Client. 

Client: 
Benton County, by and for the 
Benton County Prosecutor's Office 
Margaret Ault 
620 Market St. 
Prosser, WA 99350 

Vendor: 
CI Support, LLC, 
dba CI Information Management 
Jeff Thompson 
411 West Railroad Ave. 
Kennewick, WA 99336 

1. Services: 

Client hereby engages Vendor to perform certain document imaging services (the "Services"), as 
specifically noted on Exhibit A which is incorporated by reference. Vendor agrees to provide all 
services in accordance with the State scanning requirements set forth in Exhibit B which is 
incorporated by reference. Client will receive a credit for all records request services billed 
under the Records Storage Agreement between the parties dated March 15, 2016, up to $400.00 
per month for the duration of the imaging project set forth herein. 

2. Term: 

The term of this Agreement shall begin upon execution by all parties, and shall continue until the 
sooner of completion of the document imaging Project, or thirty six (36) months. Client may 
terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days written notice to Vendor. It is acknowledged 
that Vendor's failure, and any failures of its subcontractors, to complete the services provided 
herein within 36 months of execution of this Agreement will cause substantial economic 
damages and losses of types and in amounts which are impossible to compute and ascertain with 
certainty as a basis for recovery by the Client for actual damages, and that liquidated damages 
represent a fair, reasonable, and appropriate estimate thereof. Accordingly, in lieu of actual 
damages for such delay, Vendor agrees that liquidated damages may be assessed and recovered 
by the Client against Vendor, in the event of delayed completion without the County being 
required to present any evidence of the amount or character of actual damages in the amount of 
two hundred dollars and zero cents ($200.00) for each day that the project is not complete 
beyond the time allotted herein. The date for project completion may only be extended by 
mutual agreement between the parties in writing. Such liquidated damages are intended to 
represent estimated actual damages and are not intended as a penalty, and Vendor shall pay them 
to the Client without limiting the Client's right to terminate this Agreement as set forth herein. 



3. Project Billing and Payment: 

(a) Pursuant to Exhibit A, Vendor wil l invoice Client at the beginning of each month a pro-rated 
portion of the total scanning project cost in the amount of eleven thousand seventy one dollars 
and sixteen cents ($11,071.16) ($398,562/36 months). Any additional services requested by 
Client above and beyond those set out in the fixed quote set forth in Exhibit A shall be billed 
separately by Vendor. 

(b) Invoices are payable upon receipt. Payments over forty-five (45) days late may be assessed a 
late payment fee of 1.5% per month on the base invoice charge. 

(c) Upon termination of the Agreement, for any reason, by the Client before the completion of 
the Services, Client shall pay all amounts due for Services provided by Vendor through the date 
of termination. 

4. Confidential Information: 

Vendor wil l not disclose any Client business information obtained while performing the Services 
required under this Agreement. Vendor shall exercise that degree of care in safeguarding the 
records entrusted to it by Client which a reasonable and careful company would exercise with 
respect to similar records of its own. 

5. Client Representations and Warranties: 

(a) the scanning, imaging or otherwise reproducing the records of the Client by Vendor pursuant 
to this Agreement wil l not infringe or otherwise violate any intellectual property rights of any 
third parties; 

(b) the scanning, imaging or otherwise reproducing the records of the Client by Vendor wi l l not 
violate any applicable laws; 

(c) Client has ful l power and authority to enter into this Agreement; 

(d) the scanning, imaging or otherwise reproducing the records of the Client by Vendor pursuant 
to this Agreement wi l l not violate, conflict with, or result in a breach of, any agreement to which 
the Client is a party, or by which Client's assets may be bound or affected; 

(e) the scanning, imaging or otherwise reproducing the records of the Client by Vendor pursuant 
to this Agreement does not require the consent of any governmental or regulatory agency or any 
other third party. 

(f) Client has ful l authority to control and electronically store any images under this Agreement 
and no image to be stored under this Agreement shall be owned by a party other than Client, 
except as agreed to by Vendor; 

(g) Client wil l provide a list of authorized representatives of Client, together with list o f 
authorization rights of each representative with respect to the access of images stored 
electronically, to this Agreement and the Services, with any changes to such list to be provided, 
in writing, to Vendor, of any additional authorized individuals. 

6. Indemnification: 



Vendor shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend Client, its officers, officials, employees and 
agents, from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, liability, loss, expenses, damages, and 
judgments of any nature whatsoever, including reasonable costs and attorneys' fees in defense 
thereof, for injury, sickness, disability or death to persons or damage to property or business, 
which are caused in whole or in part by any act or omission, negligent or otherwise, of Vendor or 
its subcontractors, which arise in connection with its work performed under this Agreement, or 
are caused or occasioned in whole or in part by reason of the presence of Vendor or its 
subcontractors or their property upon or in the proximity of the property of Client. 

Client shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend Vendor, its officers, officials, employees and 
agents, from and against any and all claims, actions, suits, liability, loss, expenses, damages, and 
judgments of any nature whatsoever, including reasonable costs and attorneys' fees in defense 
thereof, for injury, sickness, disability or death to persons or damage to property or business, 
which are caused in whole or in part by any act or omission, negligent or otherwise, of Client or 
its subcontractors, which arise in connection with its work performed under this Agreement, or 
are caused or occasioned in whole or in part by reason of the presence of Client or its 
subcontractors or their property upon or in the proximity of the property of Vendor. 

7. Limitation of Liability: 

(a) Vendor shall be liable for loss or damage to items provided to Vendor by Client under this 
Agreement only when such loss or damage is caused solely by the negligence or willful 
misconduct of Vendor. In the event Vendor is determined to be liable for loss or damage, such 
loss or damage is further limited as follows: 

(i) In the event the damaged items consist of boxes of paper records, the liability of 
Vendor is expressly limited to the replacement of the physical box or container which is 
damaged or destroyed without any consideration or value whatsoever given to any data or 
information which may be contained in such paper records, as such amounts are further 
limited by applicable insurance proceeds described in Section 7; 

(ii) In the event the damaged items consist of documents stored electronically, Vendor 
liability is expressly limited to the costs of recapture or restoring electronically stored 
items from back-up or from original documents, as such amounts are further limited by 
the applicable insurance proceeds described in Section 7; 

(iii) The Client acknowledges that Vendor has in effect and shall maintain casualty and 
extended coverage insurance covering loss or damage to the Client's property incurred as 
a result of the negligence or wil lful misconduct of Vendor with respect to paper records 
stored, in the amount of $2.00 per unit stored, with respect to documents stored 
electronically an amount not to exceed $2,500.00 per any one occurrence, in recreating, 
gathering and assembling such electronic data. 

(iv) the Client acknowledges that the liability of Vendor for claims, losses or damages 
incurred by Client as a result of a casualty involving damage to Client's property shall in 
no event exceed and is expressly limited to the available insurance proceeds described in 
Section 7(a)(iii) above. Upon Client's request, Vendor wi l l furnish Client proof of 
insurance coverage for all items belonging to Client provided to Vendor pursuant to this 
Agreement. 



(v) the client acknowledges that the Vendor also has in effect and shall maintain 
professional liability/errors and omissions insurance covering, among other things, the 
cost and expense incurred in connection with a data or information security breach. The 
Client acknowledges that Vendor shall only be liable for any claims, losses, costs, 
expenses or damages incurred in connection with a data or information security breach 
resulting solely from the negligence or wil l ful misconduct of Vendor and any such 
liability shall not exceed an amount equal to the available insurance proceeds from such 
professional liability/errors and omissions insurance policy. 

(b) Client acknowledges that it may carry its own insurance coverage on its property provided to 
Vendor pursuant to this Agreement and such insurance shall be in addition to any insurance 
coverage provided by Vendor. Client is encouraged to review its own insurance coverage to 
determine the applicability of such coverage to the property it intends to provide to Vendor 
pursuant to the Agreement. 

(c) Neither Vendor nor Client shall be liable to the other party for any special, indirect, incidental 
or consequential damages of any kind, including, without limitation, lost profits or loss of use of 
data or information regardless of the form of the claim and regardless of whether any such 
damages were foreseeable. 

(d) Client acknowledges that it is Client's responsibility to promptly review the scanned images 
delivered by Vendor for acceptability and completeness. Should Client believe that Vendor 
failed to perform all of its obligations under this Agreement, Client shall provide written notice 
to Vendor describing in reasonable detail the failure of Vendor to adequately perform its 
obligations hereunder and such notice shall be delivered to Vendor by no later than ninety (90) 
days following Vendor's delivery of the scanned images. Upon timely receipt of such notice by 
Vendor, Vendor shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to re-scan and such re-scanning by 
Vendor shall be the sole remedy of the Client for any failures to provide acceptable scanned 
images. 

8. Miscellaneous: 

(a) A l l notices, demands or other communications to be given or delivered under or by reason of 
the provisions of this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been given 
when delivered personally to the recipient, sent to the recipient by reputable overnight courier 
service (charges prepaid), mailed to the recipient by certified or registered mail, return receipt 
requested and postage prepaid or sent via facsimile with a copy mailed to the recipient. Such 
notices, demands and other communications shall be sent to the parties at the addresses indicated 
in the authorized signature section of this Agreement. 

(b) This Agreement (consisting of all exhibits and schedules attached and the Project Acceptance 
Agreement) constitutes the entire agreement between Vendor and Client with respect to the 
subject matter of this Agreement for the Benton County Prosecutor's Office, and supersedes all 
previous agreements between them with respect to the subject matter hereof with respect to 
document imaging. No change, amendment, supplement, modification, waiver or discharge of 
any provision of this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and executed by both parties. 

(c) This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Washington without giving 
effect to its conflicts or law provisions. 



(d) A l l Contract terms, which by their context are clearly intended to survive the termination 
and/or expiration of this Agreement, shall so survive. 

9. Authorized Signatures: 

Accepted By: Presented By: 

Client Authorized Representative: C I Information Management: 

Name: Name: '^Y€: 

Signature: Signature^ 

T i t l e : Title: flfoft^t Oj?4&to„J 

Date: Client # Assigned ffclO ~ (01 ( 



mm 

EXHIBIT A 
Imaging Services Proposal 

P r e p a r e d f o r : 

Benton County PA Office 
August 25, 2016 

Prepared By: CI Information Management 



Imaging Services Proposal 

CI Information Management (CUM) is a full-service Records Storage and Imaging Center. CUM 
keeps your company compliant with state and federal laws while giving you easy access to all of 
your files. 

Initial Imaging Projections 
From our recent meeting, we have mutually agreed that you have 2,160 boxes that need 
scanning services. Imaging will include the following: 

• Imaging/Capture 
• Prep time 
• Indexing 

• Transfer to Digital Media 

• Secure Document Destruction 

PA Files by Department 

1. Administrative boxes 75 x $184.52 per box = $13,839 

• Includes destruction of 75 boxes 

2. Civil boxes 178 x $184.52 per box = $32,844.56 

3. District Court boxes 350 x $184.52 per box = $64,582 

• Includes destruction of 159 boxes 

4. ENTF boxes 107 x $184.52 per box = $19,743.64 

5. Felony boxes 1,450 x $184.52 per box = $267,554 

• Includes destruction of 286 boxes 
Total Price $398,562 over 36 months including W.S.S.T., if applicable 

Total project cost is $398,562 over 36 months for 2,160 boxes including W.S.S.T., if applicable. 
This breaks down to a fixed price of $184.52 per box. This pricing reflects all 5 listed 
department's boxes being scanned. After project specifications and guidelines are provided to 
CUM by Benton County's PA office and we have receive a signed contract as well as authorization 
to start the project, we will have all work complete within 36 months. Any boxes requested to be 
scanned by Client above the quoted 2,160 to be scanned will be billed at the rate of $184.52 per 
1.2 cu. ft. box. Boxes with sizes other than standard 1.2 cu. ft. will be charged pro-rata to their 
size. Any of the 2160 boxes specified by Client to be shredded will be billed at no charge. 

2 



Columbia Industries-Our Mission 

Your dollars, will be assisting individuals with disabilities to reach their full potential. 
Columbia Industries, a 501 C (3) company, serves on average 150 clients per year, who often 
attain skills never believed possible because of the services available to them. Together, we 
can make a difference. 

Thank you 

Information 
Management 
A Columbia Industries Company 

Columbia 
ndustries 

If* \our Partner for Success! 

a 

CI Information Management Is a Columbia Industries company. 

Our 'Family of Se/v/ces"provide ever-expanding 
and best-in-class services to help people with disabilities 

and other barriers to achieve personal success. 

Federal 
Htii 

3 



Exhibit B: Washington State scanning standards 

All Imaging services performed by Vendor wil l meet the scanning standards set forth by the 
Washington State Archives, including but not limited to: Chapter 40.14 RCW, Preservation and 
Destruction of Public Records; Chapter 434-662 WAC, Preservation of Electronic Records; and 
Chapter 434-663 WAC, Imaging Systems, Standards for Accuracy and Durability. 

To that effect, Vendor agrees to the following: 

1. Records shall be scanned and verified in a systematic and consistent fashion that ensures 
a complete and accurate copy of the source. Records that are not completely and 
accurately captured must not be destroyed. Vendor is assured by Client that all records 
scanned and subsequently requested to be destroyed by Client are Non-Archival in 
nature. 

2. Vendor shall develop written quality control procedures and work instructions to ensure a 
consistent capture of complete and accurate copies of original records. Vendor shall train 
all staff with scanning responsibilities to ensure that they adhere to these requirements 
and procedures. 

3. Quality control procedures wi l l be implemented to ensure capture of complete and 
accurate copies. These quality controls wil l include, but not be limited to: 

(i) Enhancements or other manipulations of the scanned images (such as de-skew, de-
speckle, etc.) in order to improve the quality of the resulting image. 

(ii) Routine use of scanning targets to verify configuration settings. 

(iii) Visual comparisons and inspections of each imaged record and source document, or 
of selected images and source documents. 
(iv) Regular calibration and testing of systems and scanners. 
(v) Periodic checks that the indexing/metadata is accurate and appropriate. 
(vi) In instances where a complete and accurate image cannot be obtained and verified 
and the source document must be retained for the entire minimum retention period, the 
image should be labeled or tagged as "best scan possible". 

(vii) In instances where the content of the source document is not completely legible 
(faded receipt, coffee stain covering information, etc.), the source document must be 
retained for the entire minimum retention period. (If the image is more legible than the 
source document, retention of the source document is not necessary.) 

4. Short-term records (six years of less) wil l be imaged with an acceptable industry-standard 
file format (PDF, JPEG or TIFF). 

5. Long-term records (over six years of anticipated storage) wil l be images with an 
acceptable industry-standard lossless file format such as TIFF or PNG. 

6. A l l black and white documents containing fonts no smaller than 6-point and grayscale 
records will be scanned with a resolution of at least 200 dpi. 

7. A l l black and white maps, engineering drawings, and other bitonal documents containing 
fonts smaller than 6-point, fine detail, or poor contrast, scanned with a resolution of at 
least 300 dpi. 

8. Al l color records wil l be scanned with a resolution of at least 150 dpi, acknowledging that 
300 dpi is preferred. 



RESOLUTION 2016 194 

B E F O R E T H E BOARD O F COMMISSIONERS O F BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 

I N T H E M A T T E R O F S I G N I N G A N I N F O R M A T I O N M A N A G E M E N T SERVICE 
A G R E E M E N T B E T W E E N C I SUPPORT, L L C , D B A C I I N F O R M A T I O N 
M A N A G E M E N T C O M P A N Y A N D B E N T O N C O U N T Y , W A S H I N G T O N 

W H E R E A S , Benton County Offices and Departments use Local Government Common 
Records Retention Schedules (CORE) along with other approved schedules for the 
destruction and or transfer o f public record documentation to scan, toss, and archive; and 

W H E R E A S , while there has been an on-going effort to scan, toss and archive records, there 
are still several years of records boxed and stored in prime unfinished space wi th in Benton 
County's numerous facilities; and 

W H E R E A S , there is no longer storage space located with Benton County's facilities and the 
prime unfinished space, currently being utilized by boxes, needs to be turned into office 
space due to the number o f new hires and programs established by the passing o f the public 
safety tax in November 2014; and 

W H E R E A S , the Commissioners' Office worked wi th both the Clerk and Prosecuting 
Attorney to determine each office's specific current and future records retention schedule 
requirements; and 

W H E R E A S , the Clerk's Office searched for available companies, companies that were 
located in the Tri-Cities area and could meet the records retention schedule requirements-
N O W , T H E R E F O R E 

BE I T RESOLVED all current Clerk and Prosecuting Attorney Office's boxes located in the 
unfinished areas o f the Kennewick Justice Center 2 n d floor and Benton-Franklin Health 
District Building be moved and stored by CI Information Management at their secured 
storage facility located in Kennewick; and 

BE I T F U R T H E R R E S O L V E D , this service agreement w i l l be in effect for a period of 
three (3) years effective the date o f the last signature on the CI Information Management 
Service Agreement. 

B E I T F U R T H E R R E S O L V E D , the Chairman o f the Board o f Benton County 
Commissioners is hereby authorized to sign the CI Information Management Service 
Agreement on behalf o f Benton County. 

cc: Clerk; Prosecuting Attorney; Commissioners; and Auditors Hottell 



Dated this .JS.. day of.. fel^t. / > 2 0 

Attest: u 
Clerk of the Board 

Chairman Pro-Tern 
J E R O M E DELVIN - ABSENT 

Member 

Constituting the Board of County 
Commissioners of Benton County, Washington 

cc: Clerk; Prosecuting Attorney; Commissioners; and Auditors Hottell 



ty. 

Information 
Management 

P.O. Box 7346 - Kennewick, WA 99336 - 509-586-6090 

I n f o r m a t i o n M a n a g e m e n t S e r v i c e A g r e e m e n t 
This Information Management Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into as of this /5*". day oiTfja^ch 20^>("Effective Date") 
h Z T t ^ ^ C I S u p p o r t ' L L C ' d b a C I ^formation Management (Company), having a place of business at 900 S. Dayton, Kennewick, 
WA 99336 ( Company") and Benton County, a political subdivision, with its principal offices at 620 Market Street, Prosser WA 99350 
("Client"). ' 

1. RECORDS MANAGEMENT SERVICES - Company hereby agrees to accept for storage and to service under its management 
system such materials (Stored Material) as Records, Media, and/or Materials Client requests, subject to all terms and conditions herein 
including those incorporated as attachments hereof. Client agrees to pay Company for its services according to Company's current rate 
schedule, or any revisions thereto. The attached Schedule A- information Management and Document Destruction Fee Schedule 
Schedule B-Standard Storage & Operating Procedures, Schedule C- "FACT Act" or "FACTA" Aff idav i t , Schedule E-' 
"HJPPA" or Business Associate Agreement, are incorporated herein and made a part hereof. Unless modified by specific 
provisions set forth in Schedule A, B, C, or E the following terms and conditions shall apply to this Agreement. 

1.1. STORED MATERIAL - From and after the effective date for the time period set forth in Section IV. 1, the Company 
shall store Client's marked boxes at a secure storage facility located in Kennewick WA 99336 and service the Stored Records Media 
and/or Material as set forth herein as identified on Client's Intake Transmittal Form. Client and Company may modify or add' to the 
record matenals included in the Schedule of Stored Materials. Such additional Stored Material shall, unless otherwise agreed in 
writing, be deemed to be held under the same terms and conditions as the Stored Material. 

1.2. ACCESS TO STORED MATERIAL -
a. Stored Material and information contained in said Stored Material shall be delivered only to Client's Authorized 
Representatives as stated in Client's Authorized Representative form which may be amended at any time by mutual 
agreement of the parties. Client represents that the Authorized Representatives have full authority to personally 
access Stored Material at Company's facility, order any service for the removal of the Stored Material, and to deliver 
and receive such. Such order may be given via telephone, electronically, fax, or in writing. 
b. When any Stored Material is ordered out, a reasonable time shall be given to the Company to carry out 
said instructions; and if it is unable to do so (or to provide any other service herein contemplated) because of acts of 
God or public enemy, seizure or legal process, strikes, lockouts, riots and civil commotions, extreme weather or 
other reason beyond the Company's control, or because of loss or destruction of goods for which the Company 
is not liable, or because of any other excuse provided by law, the Company shall not be liable for failure to carry 
out such instructions or services. 
c. The Company reserves the right to deny access to or delivery of Stored Material until such time as Client has 
cured any default under this Agreement. 
d. Authorized representatives of Client shall have the right at reasonable times and upon reasonable notice to examine 
the records and/or media and compilations of data of the Company which pertain to the performance of the provisions 
of the Agreement, 
e. The Company shall not be liable for damage to Client materials in transit, or to items which may receive sudden 
and accidental damage, pursuant to conditions specified in Section III . 
f. The Company shall have no liability to Client by granting access to any Records to any person authorized under 
this Section, unless the Company receives prior notice revoking the authorization. 

1.3. DECLARATION OF EXCESS VALUATION - Client declares that the valuation of deposits made hereunder 
is $2.00 per carton, container, disk, tape, or disk pack and agrees to pay an additional monthly rate of 
$ per $1000.00 of declared Excess Valuation, of which payment shall be made simultaneously with the normal 
monthly rate specified herein. The Company may, at its discretion, elect to repair, replace or restore lost or damaged 
property up to the valuation declared by the Client, whether the property is lost in whole or in part. Client shall cause its insurers 
of deposjis-to waive any right of against the Company. 

I . 
(ClientSignature) (Date) 

CUM, Benton County Agreement March, 2016 
Page 1 of 6 



1.4. DISPOSAL OF RECORDSI.4.1. FACTA - This Agreement adopts the standard of proper disposal set forth in the 
Federal Trade Commission's Rule, "Disposal of Consumer Report Information and Records" (16 CFR Part 682), hereinafter referred 
to as the "FTC Disposal Rule", (Schedule C). At the time of signing this Agreement Client shall sign, or designate an Authorized 
Representative of the Client to sign a copy of the attached Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act ("FACT Act" or "FACTA") 
Affidavit (Schedule C). 

1.4.1. PROCEDURE - Upon written instruction from the Client or its Authorized Representatives, the Company 
may facilitate proper disposal of Stored Material. The Client releases the Company from all liability by reason of 
the destruction of such Stored Material pursuant to such authority or notice. The Company shall facilitate such proper 
disposal in accordance with the FTC Disposal Rule requirements in effect at the time of the final disposition by 
means of shredding at the rates set forth in Schedule A. 

II. RATES - Client agrees to pay Company for its services according the attached Schedule A with the exception of the following 
services provided to Client within 90 days of execution: (1) Client, through the Benton County Prosecutor's Office (including the Child 
Support Division), will be provided by Company with the equivalent of 1500 1.2cf boxes worth of Initial Intake Records Services free 
of charge with the exception of a $100 delivery truck fee per pickup; (2) Client, through the Benton County Clerk's Office, will be 
provided by Company with the equivalent of2500 1.2cf boxes worth of Initial Intake Records Services free of charge with the exception 
of a $ 100 delivery truck fee per pickup. For purposes of this section Initial Intake Records Services includes all fees incurred by Company 
associated with the initial intake of records, including but not limited to, providing boxes for storage, removal of boxes and bins from 
the Client's premises, transportation to Company records storage facility, receiving, verifying, and shelving boxes, providing bar code 
labels for each box, as well as importing Client's inventory supply list. Furthermore, all fees set forth in Schedule A associated with the 
viewing and access of records shall not apply to records stored by Company for Client, through the Benton County Prosecutor's Office 
(with the exception of records stored for the Child Support Division which will be charged pursuant to Schedule A), while Company is 
performing scanning services pursuant to a separate agreement. Said waiver of fees by Company is up to a maximum of five (5) hours 
of viewing time at Company's secure storage facility per month by the Benton County Prosecuting Attorney's Office (excluding the 
Child Support Division), and no more than twenty-five (25) boxes accessed during those five (5) hours, with no more than fifteen (15) 
boxes delivered to Client next day delivery once a month free of charge. Said waiver of fees is contingent on Client entering into a 
separate scanning agreement with Company for the scanning of all boxes stored for the Benton County Prosecuting Attorney's Office 
(excluding records stored for the Child Support Division), and lasts until the full performance of scanning services by Company at which 
time the fees associated with the viewing and access of records set forth in Schedule A will go into effect. Client and Company believe 
execution of, and commencement of operations under the scanning agreement referenced in this section will be completed within 90 
days of execution of this storage agreement. I f the separate scanning agreement is not executed within 90 days of this agreement's 
execution the fees set forth in Schedule A will immediately go into effect thereafter. Fees may increase, and will be accepted by Client 
up to three percent (3%) per year. Monthly storage/retention charges shall be due in advance. For Stored Material received during a 
month or stored for a portion of a month, charges will be assessed according to Schedule A. Company reserves the right to request 
amendment of Schedule A in the event of an unexpected and severe increase in vendor-driven operating expenses which are beyond 
the control of Company. Additional service charges and late payment fees, if any, shall be paid simultaneously with the monthly 
storage/retention charges. If the Client fails to pay the charges when due, Client shall be liable for late charges at the rate of 5% 
per annum. 

IIL LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY 

IIL1. STORED MATERIAL - The Company shall not be liable for any loss or damage to Stored Material, however caused, 
unless such loss or damage resulted from the failure by the Company to exercise such care in regard thereto as a reasonably 
careful person would exercise in like circumstances. The Company is not responsible for the repair, replacement or restoration 
of lost or damaged property, subject to the conditions and limitations imposed by this Agreement. Company's liability if any, 
for loss damage, or destruction to part or all of the Stored Material stored hereunder shall be limited to $2.00 per carton, cubic 
foot, container, X-ray, disk, tape, disk pack or hard drive which amount Client declares to be the value of Stored Materials, 
unless Client declares an excess valuation and pays an additional monthly charge for said excess valuation, as provided in 
Section 1.3. In such case, Company liability shall be limited to the amount of the excess valuation per carton, cubic foot, 
container, X-ray, disk, tape, disk pack or hard drive. Such limitation of liability shall apply irrespective of the cause of loss] 
damage, or destruction of the Stored Material. The Company accepts no liability for the deterioration of media in storage. Client 
shall cause its insurers of deposits to waive any right of subrogation against the Company. 

CUM, Benton County Agreement March, 2016 
Page 2 of 6 



111.2. CLAIMS FOR LOSS - Claims by the Client for loss, damage, or destruction must be presented in writing to the 
Company within a reasonable time and in no event longer than one hundred eighty (180) days after Client is notified 
by the Company or otherwise receives notice that loss, damage or destruction to part or all of the Stored Material has 
occurred. 

111.3. COMMON CARRIER - Although some ancillary transportation may be furnished in connection with the delivery 
and pickup of Stored Material and other services, the Company is not and shall not be deemed a contract or common carrier, 
and the limitations on liability and claims procedure in this Agreement shall apply to any such ancillary transportation services! 

IV. TERM AND TERMINATION 

IV.l. TERM AND RENEWAL - The Initial Term of this Agreement shall commence as of the Effective Date first set 
forth above and continue for three (3) years. After the Initial Term, the term shall be automatically extended and be renewed 
for no more than four successive periods of one year each (a "Renewal Term") unless either party gives notice to the other of 
termination, in writing, at least sixty (60) days in advance of expiration of the Initial Term or Renewal Term. Upon giving 
such notice, this Agreement shall terminate at the end of the then current term. Such notice of termination shall specify an 
address for delivery of the Stored Materials. 

IV. 2. TERMINATION - In the event of termination, all amounts due for services rendered to date and storage fees through 
the effective Initial or Renewal Term shall become due and payable in accordance with Schedule A. If, without notification of 
termination, substantially all of the Stored Items are withdrawn from storage, this withdrawal will be considered a Termination. 
On termination or expiration of this Agreement, Client shall promptly return any property belonging to Company (such as 
keys, containers, etc.) and Company shall remove and deliver all Stored Material and other property in Company's possession 
or Premises, at Client's expense, to Client at Client's designated address. 

V. DEFAULT 

V. l . The occurrence of any one or more of the following events shall constitute Events of Default: 
a. Failure to pay any sum due hereunder within thirty (30) days of invoice date; or 
b. Breach of any provisions of this Agreement; or 
c. Company's failure to deliver the services to Client as set forth herein; or 
d. Either party becomes insolvent or files, or has filed against it, any proceeding in federal or state court seeking 
debtor relief. 

V.2. Upon the occurrence of any of the Events of Default, Company, or Client as applicable, at their sole option, may 
exercise any or all of the following remedies: 

a. Demand payment in advance by certified check, cashier's check, money order, or wire transfer prior to 
the performance of any services on behalf of the Client. 
b. Upon 60 days' notice to Client, Company may demand in writing that Client pick up the Stored Material; or 
deliver the Stored Material to the Delivery Address, i f none specified, to the Client Address. 
c. Terminate this Agreement, whereupon Company or Client shall recover all damages suffered by reason of such 
termination, including reasonable attorneys' fees. 

V J . In the event Company or Client takes any action pursuant to this Section, it shall have no liability to Company or Client 
or anyone claiming through Client. The exercise by Company or Client of any one or more of the remedies provided in 
this Agreement shall not prevent the subsequent exercise by Company or Client of any one or more of the other remedies 
herein provided. All remedies provided for in this Agreement are cumulative and may, at the election of Company or Client, 
be exercised alternatively, successively or in any other manner and are in addition to any of the rights provided by law! 
Company or Client shall be entitled to include all reasonable attorneys' fees and costs incurred in connection with the 
enforcement of this Agreement. 

VI. OWNERSHIP WARRANTY - The Client warrants that it is the owner or legal custodian of the Stored Material, or otherwise 
has full authority to store or destroy said record material in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. Client shall reimburse Company 

CUM, Benton County Agreement March, 2016 
Page 3 of 6 



for any expenses reasonably incurred by Company (including reasonable legal fees) by reason of Company complying with its 
obligations under this Agreement to destroy or store such materials in the event of a dispute concerning the handling of the materials 
provided by Client to Company. 

VII. INDEMNIFICATION - Unless caused by the negligence or intentional acts of the Company or its subcontractors, the Client 
agrees to fully indemnify and hold harmless the Company, its officers, employees and agents for any liability, cost or expense, 
including reasonable attorneys' fees, that the Company may suffer or incur as a result of claims, demands, costs or judgments 
against it arising out of its services under this Agreement. 

VIII. RULES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

VIII. l . OPERATING PROCEDURES - The Client agrees to comply with the attached Schedule B-Standard Storage and 
Operating Procedures. 

VI1I.2. RIGHT TO RELY ON INSTRUCTIONS - Company may act in reliance upon any instruction, instrument, or 
signature reasonably believed by Company to be genuine, and may assume that any of Client's employees or any employee of 
Client's affiliates or subsidiaries giving any written notice, request, or instruction has the authority to do so. 

VIII.3. COMPLIANCE WITH CONTRACTS, LAWS AND REGULATIONS - Client shall be responsible for, and 
warrant compliance with, all contractual restrictions and all applicable laws, rules and regulations, including but not limited to 
environmental laws and contractual restrictions and laws governing the confidentiality, retention and disposition of information 
contained in any materials delivered to Company. Company shall comply with applicable laws, statutes, regulations and 
ordinances. 

VUI.4. COOPERATION AND ASSISTANCE - Client shall cooperate with Company with regard to the performance of the 
Services, subject to normal security requirements and in a manner that is not unnecessarily disruptive to Client's business 
operations, by providing to Company such information, data, access to premises, management decisions and approvals as may 
be reasonable to permit Company to perform the Services hereunder. 

VIII.5. DISALLOWED ITEMS - The Client shall not, at any time, store with the Company, any narcotics, materials 
considered to be highly flammable, explosive, toxic, radioactive, organic material which may attract vermin or insects, or 
any other materials which are otherwise illegal, dangerous and unsafe to store or handle in an enclosed area. The Company 
reserves the right to open and inspect any record materials tendered from storage and refuse acceptance of any record materials 
which fail to comply with the Company's storage restrictions and guidelines. Client shall not store negotiable 
instruments, jewelry, check stock, ticket stock or other items which have intrinsic market value. In the event of the accidental 
or negligent custodial transfer of hazardous or regulated waste, including bio-hazard, Client agrees to arrange to appropriately, 
safely and legally assume custody of such hazardous materials at their expense and further to indemnify the Company from 
any property damage or personal injury resulting from such transfer of material. 

VIII.6. MATERIAL VARIANCES TO DESCRIPTIONS - Itemized lists or descriptions of contents of materials submitted 
by the Client to the Company shall be generally considered for recordkeeping, reconciliation, and reference purposes only, and 
are not to be considered proof that said documents contained on such lists and descriptions are in fact contained in the materials 
accepted. Company will make provision for validation of such document contents in advance and under special terms and fess 
at the request of the Client. 

VIII.7. ACCEPTANCE - In the absence of an executed Agreement, the act of tendering said material for storage and/or 
other services by Company constitute acceptance by Client to the terms, conditions and rates of this Agreement. 

VIIL8. INVENTORY SHORTAGE - Unless the Company is contracted by the Client to inventory the contents of all 
materials stored, the Company shall not be liable for loss of goods due to inventory shortage or unexplained or mysterious 
disappearance of goods; and the Company shall not be liable for such loss unless the Client establishes such loss occurred 
because of the Company's failure to exercise the care required under Section III, above. 

IX. CONFIDENTIALITY - The Company shall exercise the same degree of care in safeguarding Stored Material entrusted to it by 

CUM, Benton County Agreement March, 2016 
Page 4 of 6 



Client which a reasonable and careful Company would exercise with respect to similar records of its own provided; however, that 
liability of the Company to Client shall be limited as set forth in Section I I I above. Company shall not access Client's records 
without express authorization from an Authorized Representative. The Company may comply with any subpoena or similar order 
related to the stored records, provided that the Company notifies Client promptly upon receipt thereof, unless such notice is prohibited 
by law. Client shall pay Company's reasonable charges, including attorneys' fees, for such compliance. 

X. DISPUTE RESOLUTION - Should the parties be unable to resolve any differences resulting from the interpretation or 
administration or alleged breach by either party of this Agreement, or relating in any way to Stored Material, the same shall be finally 
resolved by binding arbitration within the City of Kennewick, Benton County, Washington, conducted by the American Arbitration 
Association before a panel of one arbitrator pursuant to the Commercial Arbitration Rules then in effect. Each party shall bear one-
half (V2) of the expense of the arbitrator. Each party shall bear its own expenses and attorneys' fees related to the arbitration. Any 
award or decision by the arbitrator(s) shall be final and binding between the parties and enforceable by any court of competent 
jurisdiction. During any arbitration proceedings, Company shall continue to provide Services, and Client shall continue to make 
payments to Company, in accordance with this Agreement. The fact that arbitration is or may be allowed shall not impair the exercise 
of any termination rights under this Agreement. 

XL MISCELLANEOUS 

XL I. ENTIRE AGREEMENT - This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between Company and Client with respect 
to the subject matter of this Agreement. No change, waiver, or discharge of this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and 
executed by the party against whom such change, waiver, or discharge is sought to be enforced. This Agreement may be 
amended only by an amendment in writing signed by Client and Company. No waiver of any right or remedy shall be effective 
unless in writing and nevertheless, shall not operate as a waiver of any other right or remedy on a future occasion. The 
term "Agreement" as used herein shall be deemed to include all such schedules. All words and phrases in this Agreement 
shall be construed to include the singular or plural number, and the masculine, feminine or neuter gender, as the context 
requires. 

XI.2. BINDING NATURE AND ASSIGNMENT - This Agreement shall be binding on the parties and their respective 
successors and assigns. Company shall have the right of assignment to successor with one hundred eighty (180) days written 
notification to Client. 

XI3. INVALIDITY - Every' provision of this Agreement is intended to be severable. I f any term or provision is illegal, 
invalid or unenforceable, there shall be added automatically as part of this Agreement, a provision as similar in terms as 
necessary to render such provision legal, valid and enforceable. This Agreement shall be constructed in accordance with 
the laws of Washington State without giving effect to its conflict of laws or principles. In addition, the Company shall have, 
and may exercise, all rights granted to warehousemen by the Uniform Commercial Code as adopted in Washington State. 
All Schedules, if any, attached hereto are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part hereof. 

XI.4. FORCE MAJEURE - Each party shall be excused from any delay or failure in performance under this Agreement for 
any period if and to the extent that such delay or failure is caused by acts of God, governmental actions, labor unrest, riots, 
unusual traffic delays or other causes beyond its control. 

XI.5. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES - Company is acting as an independent contractor hereunder and has the sole right 
and obligation to supervise, manage, contract, direct, procure, perform, or cause to be performed all work to be performed by 
Company under this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed or construed to constitute or create a 
partnership, association, joint venture, agency or fiduciary relationship between the parties hereto. 

XI.6. EXCLUSIVITY - Client agrees to retain Company on an exclusive basis at all facilities covered by this Agreement for 
the term of this Agreement. 

XI.7. NOTICES - All notices under this Agreement shall be in writing. Unless delivered personally, all notices shall be 
addressed to the appropriate addresses noted herein, or as otherwise noted in writing in accordance with this provision. 
Notices shall be effective upon receipt unless mailed by certified or registered mail, in which event notices shall be deemed 
to have been received as of the third business day after the date of posting. 

CUM, Benton County Agreement March, 2016 
Page 5 of 6 



XI.8. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT - Company hereby acknowledges that the Client is a governmental entity and as such is 
subject to the requirements of the Public Records Act, RCW 42.56 et seq. Accordingly, Company understands that to the extent 
a proper request is made, the Client may be required by virtue of that Act to disclose any records related to this Contract actually 
in its possession or in Company's possession. This may include records that Company might regard as confidential or 
proprietary. To the extent that Company provides any records to the Client that it regards as confidential or proprietary it 
agrees to conspicuously mark the records as such. Company also hereby waives any and all claims or causes of action for any 
injury .t may suffer by virtue of Client's release of records covered under the Public Records Act. Client agrees to take all 
reasonable steps to notify Company in a timely fashion of any request made under the Public Records Act which will require 
disclosure of any records marked by Company as confidential or proprietary, so that Company may seek a judicial order of 
protection if necessary. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly constituted legal representatives 
as of the Effective Date first set forth above. Upon execution, this Agreement replaces any and all previous agreements between Client 
and Company for the same services. 

Benton County 
By 

Shon Small, Benton County Commissioner 

CI Information Management 

pson, Directafbf Operations 

7122 West Okanogan Place. Building "A" 
Street Address 

900 S. Davton 
Street Address 

Kennewick. WA 99336 
City, State, Zip Code 

Date 

Kennewick. WA 99336 
City, State, Zip Code 

Date 

CUM, Benton County Agreement March, 2016 
Page 6 of 6 



CI Information Management and Document Destruction Fee Schedule 

Schedule 'A' 

Benton County Date 

ADF Add Document to Existing File $4.00 per occurance 
ANF Add New File to Existing Cont $4.00 per occurance 
ARI Admin Removal/Deletion from Locator System $2.50 per occurance 
BX1 Purchase Std LLT Cont $2.50 per occurance 
CPY Photocopy Per Page $1.00 per occurance 
CRF Client Pick Up Fi leAape 8a-5p $10.00 per occurance 
CTR Client Pick-Up Cont 8a-Sp $10.00 per occurance 
CVR Client Viewing Room Rental (per hour) $10.00 per occurance 
DBS Shredding Destruction (per cu f t ) $2.32 per.occurance 
0PL-2ONE1 Del/Pick Up Lrg Truck (71-480 cf) $100.00 per occurance 
DPL-ZONE 2 Del/Pick Up Lrg Truck (71-480 cf) $200.00 per occurance 
DPL- ZONE 3 Del/Pick Up Lrg Truck (71-480 cf) $275.00 per occurance 
DPL-ZONE 4 Del/Pick Up Lrg Truck (71-480 cf) $375.00 per occurance 
DPL- ZONE 5 Del/Pick Up Lrg Truck (71-480 cf) $475.00 per occurance 
DST Retrieval of Cont, for Certified Dest.fper cu f t ) $2.92 per occurance 
FAX Facsimile Per Page $1.00 per occurance 
FFC File Found In Chart $1.00 per occurance 
FNF File Not Found $3.50 per occurance 
FRC File Retrieval $3.00 per occurance 
IBI Initial Box Intake/Data Entry (per cu f t ) $2.08 per occurance 
IF1 Index File 1-3 Fields $0.50 per occurance 
IF2 Index File 4-6 Fields $0.75 per occurance 
IF3 Index File 7+ Fields $1.00 per occurance 
LID Replace Unstable Lid $1.50 per occurance 
MIN Stg Cont- Min Monthly $25.00 per occurance 
MLR Misc Labor Charge/ Hr $40.00 per occurance 
OSB Convert Open Shelf Files to Boxes (+carton) $3.00 per occurance 
PRF Perm Remove File to Client $4.00 per occurance 
PRM Perm Remove Container (per cu f t ) $2.92 per occurance 
PRR RUSH Perm Remove File (Within Normal Business Hours) $8.00 per occurance 
RBA Cont Retrieval EMERGENCY AFTER HOURS (per cu f t ) $22.92 per occurance 
RBR RUSH Cont Retrieval 8a-5p (per cu ft) (Within Normal Business Hours) $3.75 per occurance 
RFA File Retrieval EMERGENCY AFTER HOURS $70.00 per occurance 
RFR RUSH File Retrieval 8a-5p $8.00 per occurance 
RFX RUSH Fax per page (Within Normal Business Hours) $2.00 per occurance 
RNF RUSH File Not Found (Within Normal Business Hours) $11.00 per occurance 
ROD RUSH Scan on Demand per page ($18 minimum up to 100 pgs- then $0,18 a page) $0.18 per occurance 
RTF File Refiied $4.00 per occurance 
RTN Container Returned to Shelf (per cu f t ) $2.08 per occurance 
RUC Repack Unstable Cont (+ carton cost) $6.00 per occurance 
SCR Stnd Cont Retrieval (per cu f t ) $2.08 per occurance 
SOD Scan on Demand per page ($12 minimum up to 100 pgs- then $ 0.12 a page) $0.12 per occurance 
SRI Stg Cont-Std (1.2 c u f t ) $0.35 monthly 
SR2 Stg Cont -LLT (2.4 c u f t ) $0.35 monthly 
SR3 Stg Cont-Legal (3.6 c u f t ) $0.35 monthly 
SR6 Stg Cont - Odd Size/Quote (cu.ft.) (get measurements) monthly 
SSF Special Shipping Fee (+ postage) $5.00 per occurance 
SSR Search Fee-Per Special Request $9.00 per occurance 

CIIMv.3.8.2016 

CI Information Management 
586-6090 ext 400 396-7551 fax Page 1 of 2 



CI Information Management and Document Destruction Fee Schedule 

Schedule 'A' 

Benton County Date 

STR Staircase Charge per Trip w i th 1.2 cu f t box $1.00 per occurance 
TFS Fuel Surcharge $1.20 per occurance 
TR1 Handling Each Add'l Item (files each) (boxes by cu ft) $1.25 per occurance 
TR2 Handling Each Add'l Item (each 2.4 cu f t container) $2.50 per occurance 
TR3 Handling Each Add'l Item (each 3.6 cu f t container) $3.75 per occurance 
TRA- ZONE 1 EMERGENCY AFTER HOURS Trip Charge $125.00 per occurance 
TRA- ZONE 2 EMERGENCY AFTER HOURS Trip Charge $250.00 per occurance 
TRA- ZONE 3 EMERGENCY AFTER HOURS Trip Charge $375.00 per occurance 
TRA- ZONE 4 EMERGENCY AFTER HOURS Trip Charge $525.00 per occurance 
TRA- ZONE 5 EMERGENCY AFTER HOURS Trip Charge $650.00 per occurance 

TRO-ZONE 1 Trip Charge Standard {0-70 CF) $19.00 per occurance 
TRO- ZONE 2 Trip Charge Standard (0-70 CF) $55.00 per occurance 
TRO-ZONE 3 Trip Charge Standard (0-70 CF) $85.00 per occurance 
TRO-ZONE 4 Trip Charge Standard (0-70 CF) $125.00 per occurance 
TRO-ZONE 5 Trip Charge Standard (0-70 CF) $175.00 per occurance 

TRR-ZONE 1 RUSH Trip Charge w/in 3 hrs -Normal business hours $29.00 per occurance 
TRR-ZONE 2 RUSH Trip Charge w/in 3 hrs -Normal business hours $97.00 per occurance 
TRR-ZONE 3 RUSH Trip Charge w/in 3 hrs -Normal business hours $145.00 per occurance 
TRR-ZONE 4 RUSH Trip Charge w/in 3 hrs -Normal business hours $245.00 per occurance 
TRR-ZONE 5 RUSH Trip Charge w/in 3 hrs -Normal business hours $325.00 per occurance 
TRX Trip No Charge $0.00 per occurance 
VAD Verify & Autti for Cert Destruction $1.25 per occurance 

Burbank Benton City Boardman Pendleton Wenatchee 
Finley Hermiston Grandview Set ah Ellen sburg 

Ken newick Lowden Granger Toppenish Leavenworth 
Pasco Prosser Milton-Freewater Yakima 

Richland Touchet Sunnyside 
West Richland Umatilla Walla Walla 

Wapato 

CUM v.3 8.2016 
CI Information Management 

586-6090 ext 400 396-7551 fax Page 2 of 2 



f j j f l Information 
V^r Management 

Benton County 

Schedule B' - Standard Storage and Operating Procedures 

OBJECTIVE: 
The purpose of this document is to provide both parties with a set of procedures and rules for our mutually successful partnership. These procedures are 
intended to allow us to manage the day-to-day workflow in an efficient manner so that we may provide superior customer service at a reasonable price. The 
ordering/authorization procedures are required as part of our commitment to manage your vital records with the highest levels of security. 

OPERATING HOURS: 
1. Regular operating hours are 8:00 AM to 4:30 PM Monday through Friday. 
2. Holidays are: New Year's Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, Fourth of July, Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day and the day after, and Christmas 

Day. 
3. All orders requiring retrieval and/or delivery outside of regular operating hours are subject to After Hours retrieval and/or delivery charges. 

REGULAR ORDERS: 
1. Orders placed before 10:00 am will generally be delivered the next business day. 

RUSH ORDERS: 
1. RUSH retrievals/deliveries will be delivered within three Operating Hours, and will be charged at RUSH retrieval and delivery rates. 
2. RUSH requests that cause the 3-hour delivery window to fall outside of normal operating hours will be charged the After Hours rates. 

ORDERING: 
1. Faxed requests on CIIM forms are preferred, with full details of material being requested, including container name and number or CIIM's Barcode 

Number as provided in your regular reports. Requests must be signed by an Authorized Individual, with the specified delivery address that has been 
designated by an Authorized Management Representative. 

2. Telephoned requests must be followed by a faxed request, thereby generating an acceptable audit trail, preferably on an CIIM Form, i f a CIIM form 
is not available, then faxes must be sent on company letterhead or company fax form, with all required information. 

3. All RUSH requests must be made by an Authorized Individual by a telephone call, relating what material is being requested to assure timely receipt 
of the request A confirming fax must be sent for all RUSH requests. 

AUTHORIZATIONS: 
1. Orders will be processed only if requested by a Management Authorized Individual. 
2. Items will only be delivered to an authorized location, and delivery receipts being signed by a Management Authorized Individual. 
3. Exceptions to the authorized list will only be made with a written request on company letterhead, and signed by an Authorized Management 

Individual. 

STORAGE CHARGES 
1. Odd sized items (other than the standard record storage cartons) will be charged based on volume of cubic feet displacement in the storage facility, 

or by the linear foot. 
2. Unstable Record Storage Cartons will be repacked at Client expense, at the current rate for Repacking an Unstable Container. 

Ail files retrieved from inside cartons will be indexed by C I I M at the then current indexing fee. 
Media Tapes will be retrieved from inside containers only if C I I M has previously indexed the tapes in the container. 

Any exceptions to these rules and procedures shall be noted below and signed by the same 
individual that signed the Information Management Agreement. 

CIIMV4.07.14 



Benton County 

Schedule ' C - Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act 
("FACT Act" or "FACTA") Affidavit 

This affidavit is designed to facilitate compliance with the rule of the Federal Trade Commission, "Disposal of 
Consumer Report Information and Records" (16 CFR Part 682), hereinafter referred to as the "FTC Disposal 
Rule". The initial FTC Disposal Rule is attached as an appendix to this affidavit. Any future amendments to this 
rule's duties and obligations are automatically incorporated in the definition of "FTC's Disposal Rule". The 
FTC Disposal Rule was promulgated pursuant to the FACT Act, and it sets for the standard for proper disposal 
as follows: 

"Any person who maintains or otherwise possesses consumer information for a business purpose must properly 
dispose of such information by taking reasonable measures to protect against unauthorized access to or use of 
the information in connection with its disposal." 16 CFR § 682.3(a) 

"'Consumer information' means any record about an individual, whether in paper, electronic, or other form, that 
is a consumer report or is derived from a consumer report. Consumer information also means a compilation of 
such records. Consumer information does not include information that does not identify individuals, such as 
aggregate information or blind data." 16 CFR § 682.1(b) 

In signing this attachment to the Service Agreement, Benton County ("THE CLIENT") acknowledges that CI 
Information Management ("THE COMPANY") has made THE CLIENT aware of its obligation to properly 
dispose of "consumer information". 

In order to facilitate compliance with the FACT Act, THE CLIENT hereby certifies that its records and 
information materials provided to THE COMPANY for offsite information management on March 9. 
20J6[date] ("Stored Material") comply with one of the following conditions indicated below: 

I hereby certify that NO Stored Material contains any "consumer information" as defined in 
16 CFR § 682.1(b). 

I hereby certify that all Stored Material which contains "consumer information" as defined in 
16 CFR § 682.1(b) has been identified clearly. THE CLIENT further directs THE 
COMPANY to facilitate proper disposal of all identified "consumer information" at its final 
disposition date, in accordance with the FTC Disposal Rule. 

I hereby certify that, because it is not known whether all Stored Material does or does not 
contain "consumer information" as defined by 16 CFR § 682.1(b), THE CLIENT directs 
THE COMPANY to facilitate proper disposal of all information owned by THE CLIENT for 
which THE COMPANY is custodian at its final disposition date, in accordance with the FTC 
Disposal Rule. 

I , the undersigned, certify that I have read the information contained in this Addendum to the Service 
Agreement and have informed THE COMPANY of the true condition of the records owned by THE CLIENT. 
Representing THE CLIENT, 

Name (Signature) Title 

Name (Print) Date 

Page 1 of2 
CIIM V3.9.2016 



Appendix 

16 CFR Part 682—Disposal of Consumer Report Information and Records 

§ 682.1 Definitions. 

(a) In general. Except as modified by this part or unless the context otherwise requires, the terms used in this part have the 
same meaning as set forth in the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. 1681 et seq. 

(b) "Consumer information" means any record about an individual, whether in paper, electronic, or other form, that is a 
consumer report or is derived from a consumer report. Consumer information also means a compilation of such records. 
Consumer information does not include information that does not identify individuals, such as aggregate information or 
blind data. 
(c) "Dispose", "disposing", or "disposal" means: 
(1) The discarding or abandonment of consumer information, or 

(2) The sale, donation, or transfer of any medium, including computer equipment, upon which consumer information is 
stored. 

§ 682.2 Purpose and scope. 

(a) Purpose. This part ("rule") implements section 216 of the Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act of 2003, which is 
designed to reduce the risk of consumer fraud and related harms, including identity theft, created by improper disposal of 
consumer information. 

(b) Scope. This rule applies to any person over which the Federal Trade Commission has jurisdiction, that, for a business 
purpose, maintains or otherwise possesses consumer information. 
§ 682.3 Proper disposal of consumer information. 

(a) Standard. Any person who maintains or otherwise possesses consumer information for a business purpose must 
properly dispose of such information by taking reasonable measures to protect against unauthorized access to or use of the 
information in connection with its disposal. 

(b) Examples. Reasonable measures to protect against unauthorized access to or use of consumer information in connection 
with its disposal include the following examples. These examples are illustrative only and are not exclusive or exhaustive 
methods for complying with the rule in this part. 

(1) Implementing and monitoring compliance with policies and procedures that require the burning, pulverizing, or 
shredding of papers containing consumer information so that the information cannot practicably be read or reconstructed. 
(2) Implementing and monitoring compliance with policies and procedures that require the destruction or erasure of 
electronic media containing consumer information so that the information cannot practicably be read or reconstructed. 
(3) After due diligence, entering into and monitoring compliance with a contract with another party engaged in the business 

of record destruction to dispose of material, specifically identified as consumer information, in a manner consistent with this 
rule. In this context, due diligence could include reviewing an independent audit of the disposal company's operations 
and/or its compliance with this rule, obtaining information about the disposal company from several references or other 
reliable sources, requiring that the disposal company be certified by a recognized trade association or similar third party, 
reviewing and evaluating the disposal company's information security policies or procedures, or taking other appropriate 
measures to determine the competency and integrity of the potential disposal company. 
(4) For persons or entities who maintain or otherwise possess consumer information through their provision of services 

directly to a person subject to this part, implementing and monitoring compliance with policies and procedures that protect 
against unauthorized or unintentional disposal of consumer information, and disposing of such information in accordance 
with examples (b)( 1) and (2) of this section. 

(5) For persons subject to the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act, 15 U.S.C. 6081 et seq., and the Federal Trade Commission's 
Standards for Safeguarding Customer Information, 16 CFR part 314 ("Safeguards Rule"), incorporating the proper disposal 
of consumer information as required by this rule into the information security program required by the Safeguards Rule. 

§ 682.4 Relation to other laws. 
Nothing in the rule in this part shall be construed: 

(a) To require a person to maintain or destroy any record pertaining to a consumer that is not imposed under other law; or 
(b) To alter or affect any requirement imposed under any other provision of law to maintain or destroy such a record. 

§ 682.5 Effective date. 
The rule in this part is effective on June 1,2005. 

CIIM V3.9.2016 
Page 2 of2 



Benton County 

Schedule *E' - Business Associate Addendum to Records 
Storage and Service Agreement - "HIPAA" 

This Addendum to Records Storage and Service Agreement ("Addendum") dated is made a 
part of the Records Storage and Service Agreement, including the Schedules (exhibits) thereto, between CI 
Information Management and Benton County, dated ("Agreement"). Any inconsistency between 
the Agreement and this Addendum shall be governed by this Addendum. 

Section I . Definitions 

a. Breach. "Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "breach" in 45 CFR § 164.402. 

b. Business Associate. "Business Associate" shall mean CI Information Management 

c. Covered Entity "Covered Entity" shall mean Benton County 

d. Individual. "Individual" shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR § 160.103 
and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45 CFR S 
164.502(g). 

e. Privacy Rule. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable 
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 160 and Part 164, Subparts A and E. 

f- Protected Health Information. "Protected Health Information" or "PHI" shall have the same 
meaning as the term "protected health information" in 45 CFR § 160.103, limited to the information 
created or received by Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity. 

g. Required By Law. "Required By Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" 
in 45 CFR §164.103. 

h. Secretary. "Secretary" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or 
his designee. 

i . Security Rule. 'Security Rule' shall mean the Standards for Security of Individually Identifiable 
Health Information at 45 CFR part 164, subparts A and C). 

j - Storage and Service Agreement. Prior agreement signed between Covered Entity and Business 
Associate in which the Business Associate regularly Uses and/or Discloses protected health 
information in its performance of services for the Covered Entity. 

k - Unsecured Protected Health Information. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means 
protected health information that is not rendered unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to 
unauthorized individuals through the Use of a technology or methodology specified by the 
Secretary in guidance issued under section 13402(hX2) of Public Law 111-5. 

Capitalized terms Used but not otherwise defined in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as ascribed to 
those terms in 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164. 

Section I I . Obligations and Activities of Business Associate 

a. Business Associate agrees to not Use or Disclose Protected Health Information other than as permitted 
or required by this Agreement, the Records Storage and Service Agreement and the HITECH Act, or as 
Required By Law. Business Associate may Use and Disclose Covered Entity's PHI only i f such Use or 
disclosure is in compliance with each applicable requirement of the Privacy Rule's Business Associate 
Contract standard [sec. 164.504(e)]. 

CIIM Benton County 3.9.2016 
Page 1 of 5 



b. Business Associate agrees to Use appropriate safeguards to prevent Use or Disclosure of the Protected 
Health Information other than as provided for by this Agreement or the Record Storage and Service 
Agreement or to carry out other legal responsibilities of Business Associate. 

c. Business Associate agrees to implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that 
reasonably and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of the protected 
health information that it creates, receives, maintains, or transmits on behalf of the Covered Entity as 
required by the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, and HITECH Act. 

d. Business Associate recognizes that, as of February 18, 2010, the administrative, physical, and technical 
standards and implementation specifications of the Security Rule apply to Business Associate in the 
same manner that they apply to Covered Entity. 

e. Business Associate agrees to report to Covered Entity any Use or Disclosure of the Protected Health 
Information not provided for by this Agreement or the Records Storage and Service Agreement of 
which it becomes aware. Such notice shall be given promptly, and in any event within the timeframe 
required by 45 CFR 164.410. 

f. Business Associate shall, following the discovery of a Breach, notify the Covered Entity of such breach 
promptly and in any event within sixty (60) days after the Breach was discovered or should have been 
discovered. Such notice shall include the identification of each individual whose unsecured PHI has 
been, or is reasonably believed by the Business Associate to have been, accessed, acquired, or Disclosed 
during such breach i f Business Associate knows such information. 

g. Business Associate agrees to ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to whom it provides 
Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of 
Covered Entity agrees to the same privacy and security restrictions and conditions that apply through 
this Agreement to Business Associate with respect to such information. 

h. I f PHI is in a Designated Records Set, Business Associate agrees to provide access, at the request of 
Covered Entity, and in the time and manner agreed by both parties, to Protected Health Information in 
such Designated Record Set, to Covered Entity or, as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in 
order to meet the requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524. 

i . I f PHI is in a Designated Records Set, Business Associate agrees to make any amendment(s) to 
Protected Health Information in such Designated Record Set that the Covered Entity directs or agrees to 
pursuant to 45 CFR § 164.526 at the request of Covered Entity or an Individual, and in the time and 
manner agreed by both parties. 

j . Business Associate agrees to document disclosures of Protected Health Information and information 
related to such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an 
Individual for an accounting of disclosures of Protected Health Information in accordance with the 
Privacy Rule and the HITECH Act. Business Associate agrees to provide to Covered Entity, in time 
and manner consistent with terms in the Records Storage and Service Agreement, information collected 
to permit Covered Entity to respond to a request by an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of 
Protected Health Information in accordance with the Privacy Rule and the HITECH Act. 

k. Business Associate agrees to make its internal practices, books, and records, including policies and 
procedures and Protected Health Information, relating to the Use and Disclosure of Protected Health 
Information created or received by Business Associate on behalf of, Covered Entity available to the 
Covered Entity, or to the Secretary, in a time and manner consistent with the terms of the Records 
Storage and Service Agreement or designated by the Secretary, for purposes of the Secretary 
determining Covered Entity's compliance with the Privacy Rule, Security Rule, or the HITECH Act. 

1. Business Associate agrees to provide to Covered Entity or an Individual, in time and manner consistent 
with the terms and conditions of the Records Storage and Service Agreement, information collected in 
accordance with Section I I . of this Agreement, to permit Covered Entity to respond to a request by an 

CIIM Benton County 3.9.2016 
Page 2 of 5 



Individual for an accounting of disclosures of Protected Health Information in accordance with 45 CFR 
§ 164.528. 

Section I I I . Permitted Uses and Disclosures bv Business Associate  

General Use and Disclosure Provisions 

a. Services 

Business Associate provides services for Covered Entity that involve the Use and Disclosure of 
Protected Health Information, which services are described in the Storage and Services Agreement. 
Except as otherwise specified herein, the Business Associate may make any and all Uses of Protected 
Health Information necessary to perform its obligations as set forth in the Records Storage and Service 
Agreement . Additionally, Business Associate may Disclose Protected Health Information for the 
purposes authorized by this Agreement only (a) to its employees, subcontractors and agents, in 
accordance with Section I -VI , or (b) as directed by the Covered Entity, i f such Use or Disclosure of 
Protected Health Information would not violate the Privacy Rule or HITECH Act 

Section IV. Specific Use and Disclosure Provisions 

Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may Use Protected Health Information for 
the proper management and administration of the Business Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities of 
the Business Associate. 

a. Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may Disclose Protected Health 
Information for the proper management and administration of the Business Associate, provided that 
disclosures are Required By Law, or Business Associate obtains reasonable assurances from the person 
to whom the information is Disclosed that it wi l l remain confidential and Used or further Disclosed 
only as Required By Law or for the purpose for which it was Disclosed to the person, and the person 
notifies the Business Associate of any instances of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the 
information has been breached. 

b. Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may Use Protected Health 
Information to provide Data Aggregation services to Covered Entity as permitted by 45 CFR § 
164.504(eX2)(i)(B). 

Section V. Obligations of Covered Entity 

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any limitation(s) in its notice of privacy practices in 
accordance with 45 CFR § 164.520, to the extent that such limitation may affect Business Associate's 
Use or Disclosure of Protected Health Information. 

b. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation of, permission by an 
Individual to Use or Disclose Protected Health Information, to the extent that such changes may affect 
Business Associate's Use or disclosure of Protected Health Information. 

c. Covered Entity will not ask the Business Associate to undertake any acts inconsistent with the Security 
Rule, the Privacy Rule or the HITECH Act. 

d. Covered Entity agrees to provide Business Associate with information about Disclosures requested by 
individuals. 

e. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any restriction to the Use or Disclosure of Protected 
Health Information that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.522, and the 
HITECH Act to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate's Use or Disclosure of 
Protected Health Information. 

CIIM Benton County 3.9.2016 
Page 3 of 5 



Section V I . Permissible Requests by Covered Entity 

Covered Entity shall not request Business Associate to Use or Disclose Protected Health Information in any 
manner that would not be permissible under the Security Rule, Privacy Rule or the HITECH Act i f done by 
Covered Entity unless these activities are permitted under Section IV. o f this Agreement. Covered Entity shall 
reimburse Business Associate for any damages, costs, fines or penalties incurred by reason of actions taken by 
Business Associate pursuant to Covered Entity instructions that are in breach of this provision. 

Section VII . Term and Termination 

a. Te jm The Term, Termination and Effects of Termination of this Agreement shall be the same as the 
terms and conditions identified in the Records Storage and Service Agreement. The obligations of 
Business Associate shall terminate when all of the Protected Health Information provided by Covered 
Entity to Business Associate, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity 
is destroyed or returned to Covered Entity, or, i f it is infeasible to return or destroy Protected Health 
Information, protections are extended to such information, in accordance with the termination 
provisions in the Records Storage and Service Agreement. 

b. Termination for Cause. Upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a material breach by Business Associate, 
Covered Entity shall first: 

1. Provide a reasonable opportunity, in no case less than 60 days, for Business Associate to cure 
the breach or, at the discretion of Business Associate, end the violation and terminate this 
Agreement i f Business Associate does not cure the breach or end the violation within the time 
specified by Covered Entity and by this section; 

2. Immediately terminate this Agreement, subject to the remainder of the terms of the Records 
Storage and Service Agreement, i f Business Associate has breached a material term of this 
Agreement and cure is not possible; or 

3. I f neither cure nor termination is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the violation to the 
Secretary. 

c. Effect of Termination. 

1. Except as provided in the Records Storage and Service Agreement and paragraph (2) of this 
section, upon termination of this Agreement in accordance with the provisions of this 
agreement and the Records Storage and Service Agreement, Business Associate shall return all 
Protected Health Information received from Covered Entity, or created or received by Business 
Associate on behalf of Covered Entity. This provision shall apply to Protected Health 
Information that is in the possession of subcontractors or agents of Business Associate. 
Business Associate shall retain no copies of the Protected Health Information. 

2. In the event that Business Associate determines that returning the Protected Health Information 
is infeasible, Business Associate shall provide to Covered Entity notification of the conditions 
that make returning infeasible. Upon the Covered Entity's acceptance that returning of 
Protected Health Information is infeasible, Business Associate shall extend the protections of 
this Agreement to such Protected Health Information and limit further Uses and Disclosures of 
such Protected Health Information to those purposes that make the return infeasible, for so long 
as Business Associate maintains such Protected Health Information. Business Associate shall 
be entitled to compensation for continued maintenance of Protected Health Information as 
provided for in Schedule B of the Records Storage and Service Agreement. 

Miscellaneous 

a - Regulatory References. A reference in this Agreement to a section in the Privacy Rule means the 
section as in effect or as amended. 

CIIM Benton County 3.9 2016 
Page 4 of 5 



b. Amendment. The Parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this Agreement from time 
to time as is necessary for the Parties to comply with the requirements of the Privacy Rule and the 
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Pub. L. No. 104-191 and regulations 
issued thereunder, unless such requirements would be not commercially reasonable or would cause a 
Party to be out of compliance with its legal obligations.. 

c. Survival. The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under Section 7. Term of this 
Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

d. Interpretation. Any ambiguity in this Agreement shall be resolved to permit Covered Entity to comply 
with the Privacy Rule and the HITECH Act. 

/ / / / / ^ 
Signature: "'Ck^ Signatu ' ' , / " 

Name: <~>h/ZN C N a m e : ^ f f f ^ ^ g ^ 

Title: & f J f r / * X j < f r V f * Title: {bricks Qj£ (9^tf«fa*( 

Date: S ^ ^ / ^ ~ Date: 3- lB~l()  

CIIM Benton County 3.9.2016 
Page 5 of 5 



Benton County 
Use of Jail Facilities Agreement Discussion

WEH
Text Box
Use of Jail Facilities Agreement Discussion ~ Smith Kelty



Current Billing

Expenditures $11,825,403 

Other Revenue $    (457,643)

Contract Revenue $ (3,851,809)

Contract Expenditures 51,242 $   3,631,865 

Contract Admin Fee $      181,593 

Contract Net Income $      (38,351)

Admin Fee $      591,270 

Depreciation $      178,000 

Billable Expenditures $12,098,679 

Benton County 119,663 68.490% $   8,286,386 

Kennewick 34,898 19.974% $   2,416,606 

Richland 17,021 9.742% $   1,178,665 

W. Richland 1,875 1.073% $      129,839 

Prosser 1,259 0.721% $        87,183 

174,716 100.000% $12,098,679 

Proposed Revenue Sharing

$15,457,268 

$    (457,643)

$ (3,851,809)

51,242

$11,147,816 

$      772,863 

$      178,000 

$12,098,679 

119,663 68.490% $   8,286,386 

34,898 19.974% $   2,416,606 

17,021 9.742% $   1,178,665 

1,875 1.073% $      129,839 

1,259 0.721% $        87,183 

174,716 100.000% $12,098,679 

Proposed Expenses Only

$15,457,268 

$      772,863 

$      178,000 

$16,408,131 

170,905 75.636% $12,410,411 

34,898 15.444% $   2,534,148 

17,021 7.533% $   1,235,994 

1,875 0.830% $      136,155 

1,259 0.557% $        91,423 

225,958 100.000% $16,408,131 

Variance

$4,124,025 

$    117,542 

$      57,329 

$        6,315 

$        4,241 

$4,309,452 

Benton County – Billing  Scenarios



Benton County – Financial vs. Operational


	CA - Facilities d.pdf
	Agenda Item JC Roofing
	Notice of Lowest Responsible Bidder Resolution-Roofing

	CA - Fairgrounds f.pdf
	Copy of blank LIT.pdf
	Resolution
	Form





